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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

STATEMENT OF THE MANAGEMENT
EEERE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Trio Industrial Electronics Group Limited (the
“Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
am pleased to present to you the annual report of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

With its continuous remarkable performance achieved in the
industrial electronic manufacturing service (‘EMS”) industry,
the Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 23 November 2017 (the “Listing Date”). This achievement
is significant to us as it enables us to gain access to the
international capital markets, enhance our corporate and brand
image, and strengthen further our leading position within the
industrial electronics manufacturing sector in the region.

We offer our customers a comprehensive scope of services,
from procurement of raw materials, manufacturing to product
delivery. We also provide technical advice and engineering
solutions to our customers during product design and
development stage. Leveraging our substantial industry
experience and expertise, we seek to continuously improve
our production process, expand the scope of our services,
and strengthen our manufacturing capabilities with a view
to become a manufacturer of world-class standard. During
2017, we were in the process of applying for an accreditation to
Industry 4.0. Based on the assessment by the relevant German
appraisal institute and the progress information available to
us, subject to any unforeseen circumstances, we anticipate
that we shall be able to be accredited by the German institute
for an Industry 4.0 level appropriate to our operations and
standards by 2019. This accreditation will certainly endorse
our positioning as a manufacturer of world-class standard,
strengthen our competitiveness as well as enhance our
reputation in the industry.
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With governmental support for developing renewable energy
in many countries and greater environmental awareness
amongst the general public, it is anticipated that there
will be an increasing proportion of energy generated from
renewable sources. This stimulates the demand for renewable
energy equipment. In addition, the rising popularity of big
data analytics, cloud computing services, the ‘Internet of
Things’ and many other innovated subjects will increase the
requirement for industrial electronics products in all kind of
aspects. To grasp these business opportunities, the Group
has been approaching a number of potential customers in
these emerging and innovative sectors for possible cooperation
to meet the demand in evolving industries, such as electric
vehicle (“EV”) chargers, smart city systems, renewal energy
facilities, medical and/or healthcare devices, etc. To facilitate
our accommodation for the above demand, we established a
Hong Kong subsidiary, e-Tech Engineering Company Limited
(“e-Tech”) in December 2017 to engage in the design and
manufacture of industrial electronics products as original
design manufacturer (*ODM”). We do not anticipate that such
business expansion will generate a huge economic benefit to
the Group in the short run; however, it is a gateway to sustain
our competitiveness and long-term business growth.

The Dublin office in Ireland has been determined by the Board
to be the regional headquarters of the European operations.
This office will have many more functions and responsibilities
than originally planned. It will work closely with the Hong Kong
headquarters to promote businesses, global material sourcing
and purchasing, and product design and development in the
near future. Our European team comprises of six experienced
executives at the moment, headed by Mr. Geoges Rene Gener,
Chairman of the European Operations. The Dublin office is now
cultivating research and development networks with the Irish
governmental authorities, universities, design houses, start-
ups, etc. We believe this is a critical and strategic move to
correspond with the new visions and goals of the Group.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

STATEMENT OF THE MANAGEMENT
EEERE

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our most sincere
thanks to Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley for his outstanding
leadership and invaluable contributions to the growth of the
Group in the past decades. We wish Mr. Kwan an enjoyable
lifestyle and great success in his interests development.
Moreover, | would also present my great appreciation to our
management team and employees who have contributed to
our success and are working towards achieving our visions.
My heartfelt gratitude is also expressed to all of our business
partners, customers, suppliers and the Shareholders. With your
kind support and trust, | am confident that we will lead the
Group to another milestone, a stage that our people will share
pride and rewards.

On behalf of the Board

Lai Yiu Wah

Deputy Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and
sales of customised industrial electronic components and
products, including (i) electro-mechanical products; (ii)
switch-mode power supplies; and (iii) smart chargers. As
an original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”), the Group
manufactures products in accordance with the design and
technical specifications provided by customers.

The Company’s shares have been successfully listed (“the
Listing”) on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on the
Listing Date, which is a significant milestone in the Company’s
history and strategic development. Since that date, the
Company has been actively implementing its business
strategies as set out in the prospectus dated 13 November
2017 (the “Prospectus”), which include, among other things,
the establishment of Strategic Talent Centre (“STC”) in the
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of
China (the” PRC”) and the recruitment of high calibre personnel
to enhance its competitiveness in the industrial electronics
sector.

The Group’s performance continued to be strong in the
financial year ended 31 December 2017 (“FY2017”). With the
comprehensive scope of services, together with the in-house
developed manufacturing execution system, Trio Manufacturing
In-line Control System (“T-MICS”), and quality control system,
the Group differentiated itself from other EMS suppliers, and
managed it to keep the growing momentum in all dimensions
in FY2017. The Group experienced an increase in revenue,
gross profit and gross profit margin in FY2017, which were
mainly due to an increase in customer demands on the Group’s
products and cost cutting initiatives on programs of raw
materials achieved by the Group. The growth in gross profit
and gross profit margin in FY2017, however, was less than the
management’s expectation, which was mainly due to shortage
in supplies of certain components in the second half of 2017
which had deferred production and product shipment during
this period. The Group has exercised more prudent measures
to make better planning in material sourcing to push stock on
hand a bit forward to ensure materials can all be in stock for
production to satisfy customers’ order demand.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEARR D

Excluding the impact of one-off listing expenses of HK$13.5
million and HK$4.0 million in FY2017 and the financial year
ended 31 December 2016 (“FY2016”), respectively, the adjusted
profit before income tax in FY2017 of HK$100.6 million would
remain comparable with that in FY2016 of HK$101.4 million.

In order to achieve continuous business growth, the Group
established a Hong Kong subsidiary, e-Tech, in December
2017 to engage in the design and manufacture of industrial
electronics products as ODM. The Group has been in touch
with a number of potential customers in new emerging and
innovative sectors for possible cooperation to supply products
to be applied in evolving industries, such as EV chargers,
renewal energy facilities, medical and/or healthcare devices,
etc. Subsequent to FY2017, the Group has set up new offices in
Dublin, Ireland and Munich, Germany according to the Group’s
business strategy to engage in sales and marketing, global
sourcing of electronics materials and service support in the
European region. These new offices will allow the Group to
penetrate into new markets and further explore potential
business opportunities in Europe.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During FY2017, key driver of the Group’s growth in revenue
was mainly from the increase in sales of electro-mechanical
products and switch-mode power supplies, contributed by the
increase in sales orders from these customers.

The table below summarises the amount of revenue generated
and as a percentage of total revenue from each product
category for FY2017 and FY2016:
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2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—REF

HK$’000 % HK$'000 %

FET % TET %

Smart chargers BeemE R 341,538 43.3 336,607 45.2
Electro-mechanical products HE E 292,040 371 257,708 34.6
Switch-mode power supplies HEEIR 147,074 18.7 138,520 18.6
Others™ Hfp 7,390 0.9 12,070 1.6
Total @t 788,042 100.0 744,899 100.0
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Note:

(1) Others include automatic testing equipment (“ATE”), power switch gear
boards and catering equipment control boards.

The Group recorded an increase in revenue by 5.8% from
HK$744.9 million in FY2016 to HK$788.0 million in FY2017,
which was mainly attributable to the increase in sales of
electro-mechanical products applied for professional beauty
and animal grooming products, renewable energy facilities,
water filtration systems, and access and security control
systems, as well as the increase in revenue from switch-mode
power supplies which included power supply modules and
power supply boards for industrial use.

The table below summarises the geographical revenue segment
based on the location of customers for FY2017 and FY2016:

TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTEEERRAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBEARR DM

Bt -

(1) AteEastmiReg ([BBERURE]) 25
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2017 2016
—B—tF —EREF

HK$°000 % HK$'000 %

FHET % FET %

Europe B 494,829 62.8 465,129 62.4

North America®? 1bE@ 210,093 26.7 215,004 28.9

South-east Asia® HEgo@ 34,819 4.4 32,314 4.3

The PRC (including Hong Kong) HE (BEERH) 31,663 4.0 24,609 3.3

Others® Hith® 16,638 2.1 7,843 1.1

Total HBET 788,042 100.0 744,899 100.0
Notes: HEt ¢

(1) Europe includes Austria, Denmark, France, Germany, Hungary, Ireland, Italy,
Sweden, Switzerland and the United Kingdom.

2) The USA and Canada for FY2016; the USA for FY2017.

(3) South-east Asia includes Malaysia, Singapore and the Philippines.

(4) Others include Australia, India, Israel and Japan.

Europe and North America remained the two largest overseas
markets of the Group which in aggregate contributed over
89.5% and 91.3% of our total revenue during FY2017 and
FY2016, respectively. Growth of the European market was
mainly attributed to the continuous increase in sales of
electro-mechanical products and switch-mode power supplies
to this market during FY2017.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEARR D

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group in FY2017 primarily comprised
of direct materials, direct labour cost, and manufacturing
overheads. While the revenue increased by 5.8%, the cost of
sales only increased by 2.9% from HK$536.4 million in FY2016
to HK$552.1 million in FY2017, which was mainly due to cost
cutting initiatives on programs of raw materials achieved by
the Group.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit was HK$235.9 million and HK$208.5
million, representing a gross profit margin of 29.9% and 28.0%
in FY2017 and FY2016, respectively. Such increase was mainly
contributed by the increase in customer demands on the
Group’s products and the achievement of cost cutting initiatives
on raw materials during FY2017.

Other (loss)/income

Other (loss)/income in FY2017 and FY2016 amounted to a loss
of HK$2.9 million and a gain of HK$6.0 million, respectively. Due
to the appreciation of Renminbi (“‘RMB”) and Euros (“EUR”), the
Group recorded a loss on foreign exchange of HK$4.4 million
in FY2017, while in FY2016, as a result of the depreciation of
RMB and EUR, the Group recorded a gain on foreign exchange
of HK$4.2 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly comprised of (i)
freight, insurance and transportation charges; (ii) marketing
and promotion expenses; and (iii) custom and declaration
charges.

Selling and distribution expenses increased from HK$15.7
million in FY2016 to HK$17.2 million in FY2017. The increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in freight, insurance
and transportation charges as a result of the increase in sales
to Europe, the PRC and other regions.
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Administrative expenses

The Group recorded an increase in administrative expenses of
28.1% from HK$90.1 million in FY2016 to HK$115.3 million in
FY2017. This increase was primarily because of the increase
in employee benefit expenses as a result of (i) bonus to the
Group’s staff; (ii) annual salary increment; (iii) the record of
directors’ fee for newly appointed Independent Non-executive
Directors; and (iv) Executive Directors’ remuneration increment
during FY2017. The increase in administrative expenses was
also due to the increase in listing expenses from HK$4.0 million
in FY2016 to HK$13.5 million in FY2017.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses increased from HK$1.9 million in
FY2016 to HK$4.3 million in FY2017. This was mainly due to
(i) an increase in provision for impairment loss/write-off of
obsolete inventories from HK$1.6 million in FY2016 to HK$2.2
million in FY2017 pursuant to the Group’s inventory provision
policies; and (ii) a decrease in a gain on derivative financial
instruments in relation to a number of RMB forward foreign
exchange contracts in FY2017 from HK$1.2 million in FY2016
to HK$0.1 million in FY2017 as most of the forward foreign
exchange contracts had expired in the first quarter of FY2017.

Finance expenses, net

Net finance expenses decreased slightly by 4.3% from HK$9.5
million in FY2016 to HK$9.1 million in FY2017. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in bank interest expense as a result
of the decrease in bank borrowings during FY2017.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense decreased by 22.4% from HK$22.1 million
in FY2016 to HK$17.1 million in FY2017, which was primarily
due to a reduced income tax expense for Trio Microtronics
Co., Ltd. (“Trio Microtronics”) as a result of a preferential tax
rate of 15% from the recognition of “New and High Technology
Enterprise” applicable in FY2017. Further details in applying
the preferential tax rate to determine income tax expense is
set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements in
this annual report.

TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTEEERRAT
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEARR D

Profit for the year

As a result of the above, the Group’s profit in FY2017 decreased
by 7.0% from HK$75.3 million in FY2016 to HK$70.0 million in
FY2017. The net profit margin also decreased from 10.1% in
FY2016 to 8.9% in FY2017. This was mainly due to an increase
in listing expenses by HK$9.5 million in FY2017.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During FY2017, the Group’s operation and capital requirements
were financed principally through a combination of cash flows
generated from the operating activities, proceeds from the
Listing and bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2017 and
2016, the Group had net current assets of HK$288.5 million
and HK$107.7 million, respectively, including bank balances and
cash (including restricted bank deposits) of HK$169.7 million
and HK$16.6 million, respectively. The Group’s current ratio
(as calculated by current assets divided by current liabilities)
increased from 1.8 times as at 31 December 2016 to 2.5 times
as at 31 December 2017. Gearing ratio is calculated by net
debt divided by total capital as at the end of the year. Net debt
is calculated as total borrowings (including bank borrowings
and finance lease payables) less cash and bank balances,
while total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position, plus net debt,
where applicable. The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 was nil and 9.3%, respectively. The improvement
in liquidity and gearing positions was mainly attributable to the
increase in working capital level from the net proceeds received
from the Listing during FY2017.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks:
(i) market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk), (ii) credit risk; (iii) liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
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Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Entities
within the Group are exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to HK$,
EUR and RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises from export sales,
purchases, other future commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’s functional currency.

The management of the Company has set up a policy to require
the group companies to manage their foreign exchange risk
against their functional currencies. The group companies do
not adopt formal hedge accounting policy. It manages its
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the movements of
foreign currency rates and will consider to enter into forward
foreign exchange contracts to reduce the exposure should the
need arises.

A gain on derivative financial instruments of HK$0.1 million was
recognised in FY2017, decreased by 87.6% from HK$1.2 million
in FY2016, as most of the forward foreign exchange contracts
had expired in the first quarter of FY2017.

During FY2017, no new forward foreign exchange contracts had
been entered into by the Group.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings.
Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at
variable rates. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group does not adopt
any interest hedging strategy.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has bank borrowings of
HK$18.0 million (2016: HK$19.0 million), which are primarily
denominated in HK$ and US$.
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Credit risk
Credit risk arises mainly from cash deposited at banks, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

The management of the Company makes periodic assessment
on the recoverability of trade and other receivables based on
historical payment records, the length of the overdue period,
the financial strength of the debtors and whether there are any
disputes with the debtors. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables falls within the
recorded allowances and the management is of the opinion
that adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has been
made in the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the customer bases are widely
dispersed despite that 37.3% (2016: 43.9%) of the trade
receivable were due from the Group’s largest customer and
70.5% (2016:77.9%) were due from the five largest customers
determined on the same basis.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating entities
of the Group. Such forecasting takes into consideration the
Group’s debt financing plans, covenant compliance and, if
applicable external regulatory or legal requirements - for
example, currency restrictions.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources
including orderly realisation of short-term financial assets
and receivables; and long-term financing including long-term
borrowings. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding
by keeping sufficient bank balances, committed credit lines
available and interest bearing borrowings which enable the
Group to continue its business for the foreseeable future.
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COMMITMENTS

The Group’s contract commitments mainly include minimum
lease payment under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of rented premises amounted to HK$2.6 million and
HK$1.4 million as at 31 December 2017 and 2016, respectively.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company’s shares were successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date. There has
been no change in the capital structure of the Group since then.
The share capital of the Company only comprises of ordinary
shares.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had 1,000,000,000
shares in issue.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not hold any significant
investments (2016:none).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Prior to the Listing, the Group completed the Reorganisation,
details of which are set out in note 1.2 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report. Subsequent to
the completion of the Reorganisation and up to the date of
this annual report, the Group did not have any acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as those disclosed in the Prospectus or otherwise in
this annual report, the Group currently has no other plan for
material investments and capital assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2017 (2016: none).
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TREASURY MANAGEMENT

During FY2017, there had been no material change in the Group’s
funding and treasury policies. The Group has a sufficient level
of cash and banking facilities for the conduct of its trade in the
normal course of business.

The management of the Company closely reviews trade
receivable balances and any overdue balances on an ongoing
basis and only trade with creditworthy parties. The management
of the Company closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position
to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets,
liabilities and commitments can meet its funding requirements
to manage liquidity risk.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss amounted to HK$2.7 million (2016:
HK$2.5 million), property, plant and equipment amounted to
HK$24.4 million (2016: HK$23.9 million) and bank deposits
amounted to HK$8.1 million (2016: HK$10.1 million) have been
charged as security for bank borrowings of the Group.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had property, plant and
equipment with net book value amounted to HK$1.7 million
held under finance leases (2016: HK$4.0 million).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The total number of employees were approximately 1,600 as
at 31 December 2017 (2016: approximately 1,600). The Group’s
employee benefit expenses mainly included salaries, overtime
payment and discretionary bonus, share options, other staff
benefits and contributions to retirement schemes. For FY2017,
the Group’s total employee benefit expenses (including
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$152.7 million (2016:
HK$132.3 million).

Remuneration is determined with reference to the qualification,
experience and work performance, whereas the payment of
discretionary bonus is generally subject to work performance,
the financial performance of the Group in that particular year
and general market conditions.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and that the risks of non-compliance
with such requirements. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief, and having made all reasonable
enquiries, the Group has complied with all relevant laws
and regulations in Hong Kong and the applicable PRC labour
laws and regulations in all material respects during the year
ended 31 December 2017 save for the matters disclosed in
“Non-compliance Matters” under the section “Business” in the
Prospectus.

The Group also complies with the requirements under the
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”) for the
disclosure of information and corporate governance in all
material respects.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the
environment from its business activities. The Group continually
seeks to identify and manage environmental impacts
attributable to its operational activities in order to minimise
these impacts if possible.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises employees as one of the valuable assets
of the Group. The Group strictly complies with the labour
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC and regularly
reviews the existing staff benefits for improvement.

The Group provides good quality services to customers and
maintains a good relationship with them. The Group is able to
establish trust and long-standing business relationship with
its major customers.

The Group also maintains effective communication and
develops long term and stable relationships with suppliers.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no material
dispute nor disagreement between the Group and its suppliers.
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS STRATEGIES WITH ERRRABRERER 2R
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

The following sets out a comparison of the business strategies FX#HIIR _ZE—+FHRFRERBERFHR
as stated in the Prospectus with the Group’s actual business B - ?Hxi&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ']%f“ﬁﬁu,\$il,\%
progress for FY2017 and up to the date of this annual report: EFER LR

Actual business progress up to the date of this

Business strategies as stated in the Prospectus annual report

BRER AL ER R BEXFHRAPNEREBER

Continue to expand the customer base in the There has been satisfactory progress in exploring
European market and explore new markets in the new potential customers in different regions.
PRC, the USA and other Asian countries The Group has successfully attracted two new

customers, which are expected to have solid sales
orders placed with the Group in 2018. As well, the
sales orders backlog and pipelines are normal,
healthy and have increased comparing to the
corresponding period in 2017.

SERERBNTSEPHUAREFE  XERAEMEN ETEMERANRAFEEEP ATECIRGREER - K

e AR EEEXNBARMEHES  MEMHZETPERZ

T N\FOAREEBEHEEHERE - &t&l\ C RTEK
NEFBTHIHEFTEBESMERKE - WHE-T—
T ERRRELREFER -

Manufacture products of higher value and/or with To explore more business opportunities in
higher profit contribution per the resources manufacturing products with higher value and/
or higher profit contribution margin, the Group
(i) proactively participates in more industry
exhibitions to promote and market its products
to local and overseas electronics manufacturers
in new emerging and innovative sectors, such as
EV chargers, healthcare/medical industry, etc.; (ii)
sets up new offices in Europe to provide platforms
for direct communication with our existing and
potential customers; and (iii) cooperates with
existing and potential customers, design houses
and engineers to develop innovations and
technologies in new industries.
EERARBERS L IFHEREHE D RTRVEEBRREBER SABSFHENEMNESH
#o AEENOEERZ2EFLZITERE - UM ERE
TR (PINEBHEFTER  RE/BRITES) B
iy FogINE FROEE BN R A ER ¢ (i)
EEMHEE R ERG  ARFTAERAEEATERS
BEEPEEER  R(NEREREEZP « &
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Business strategies as stated in the Prospectus

BB AT B R R
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Actual business progress up to the date of this
annual report

HEXRFHAPNEREBER

Continue to expand the operations in ATE
business segment

B R BB LA B XS

Further enhance the production efficiency and
expand the production capacity

#E—PlREEERE MR RER

The Group has actively started the marketing of ATE
business in the fourth quarter of FY2017. It is a
solid supplementary advantage that the Group can
offer to its existing and potential customers.

AEBEPR -+ HFUBRFEENZTEERRFAED
AR EEBREHETIIE - W HIAREBAIMIERAR &
BEEFPRHENASENEHTEY -

The Group is working closely with Shiji Cooperative
Economic Association of Dongchong Town, Nansha
District, Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province (B
REABEMTEPRIBEAOERN S IELEHS
1), the landlord of the Group’s Nansha plant, and
the construction company on the construction
and design layouts of new factory buildings to
ensure relevant approvals and certificates can be
obtained to implement the expansion project.

AREBERFTIMAENREERRANRE  HERERE
MAmARFRBEAERNDSELEREL (BAE
EEAMENE) NBERATRERESIE - ARRA
BEEME X LBEEMETERGE -
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EEENWRDT
Actual business progress up to the date of this

Business strategies as stated in the Prospectus annual report

1B 212 P A Y SR SR M BEXAFRANNBEREKER

Strengthen the sales and marketing efforts in the The Group set up offices in Dublin, Ireland and

industrial EMS sector Munich, Germany to engage in sales and

marketing, global sourcing of electronics materials
and service support in the European region.
Another office in Paris, France, as stated in the
Prospectus, is scheduled to be established by mid-
2018.

MEH TS FRERBALNHEEREHNE AEBEEERRTAMEEERERRINBFRL
NEBMNEARFIHE RS  2REFYHORE
NRREEERBOZIEIE BREZLS —M
AREBERAOMERAENR T — \FEPKIL -

Continue to recruit talents and professionals The STC in the Guangzhou City was formally set up in

the fourth quarter of FY 2017. Recruitment of high
calibre talents is in good progress and as at date
of this annual report, the number of employees
working in this STC is eight. The management of
the Company is optimistic to further recruit talents
of necessary level and number at this STC in the
coming months.

EERBES AT REEAL UREMNTHEBATHLERZZE—FHRFES
MEEKL - BFEATNEEBIDERIERN > MEzE
RERBEY  BAN\ZRBREEZBBAT T OIE- K
NEEEEHNARIREAE — S HREZBEEAT F O
PR RABB AT RRRLEE] -
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company’s shares have been successfully listed on the
Stock Exchange on the Listing Date. The actual net proceeds
from the Listing, after deducting the listing-related expenses,
were HK$110.0 million (the “Actual Net Proceeds”). The table
below sets out an adjusted allocation as adjusted in the same
manner and same proportions as shown in the Prospectus and
the actual use of the Actual Net Proceeds as at 31 December
2017.
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RRARRGE KN £ B BRI PT =1 o
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F #8 /3110,000,0008 T (BB B REF
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Incurred at Balance as at
31 December 31 December

The Actual Net 2017 2017

Business strategies as set out in the Prospectus

Proceeds MRZ-ZE—tHF& RZZ—+LF
ERHMB +t—A=+—H +t=HA=+—H

B E 2T AT R IR 28 ZiEtR
HK$’ million HK$’ million HK$’ million
BEET BEET BEEET
Development of new production base 77.8 - 77.8
BRIMAEEEN
Upgrading of existing production facilities 4.5 - 4.5
FHRIREEERE
Establishment of offices in Dublin, Ireland and Paris, France 11.8 - 11.3
TERBESAMNREBIERRE Y P EE
Establishment of the STC in the Guangzhou City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC 11.3 0.1 11.2
TEFBIERE BN T SR A o
Working capital and other general corporate purposes 5.1 5.1 -
LEE MHEM—REERS
110.0 5.2 104.8

The unutilised net proceeds have been deposited in interest-
bearing bank accounts with licensed banks in Hong Kong.

AEANAEREFRLEFRET BFER
TR BERTTARP A
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Company’s shares were successfully listed on the Main
Board of Stock Exchange on the Listing Date. The Board
considers that such public listing status on the Stock Exchange
allows the Company to gain access to the capital market for
corporate finance exercise which will assist the Group in future
business development, enhances its corporate profile and
recognition and strengthens its competitiveness.

Looking into 2018, despite the uncertainties and competition,
the Group will continue to actively explore new market
opportunities and strive for new developments. To reach the
long-term goal of being a manufacturer of word-class standard,
the Group will continue to place investment in the production,
engineering and information technology facilities, The Group
will continue to invest in upgrading production facilities
to achieve the accreditation of Industry 4.0 in 2019, set up
European offices to expand customer bases in Europe and the
USA and further develop the STC for talents reserve. In terms
of marketing strategy, apart from further development in the
ATE business, the Group will also focus on some products with
higher value and/or higher profit contribution margin, which
the Group considers as some “New Era” electronic products
used in some evolving industries, including smart chargers for
transportation facilities, power supplies for renewable energy
facilities and components for medical/healthcare equipment
and devices.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley (BfER), aged 63, is one of the
founders of the Group, the Chairman, chief executive officer
(“CEO”), Executive Director and the director of marketing of
the Group. He is also the chairman of each of the Nomination
Committee and Risk Management Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee. He is responsible for the overall
strategic planning and management of the Group as well as
supervision of the marketing division. Mr. Kwan has taken a
leave of absence since October 2017.

Mr. Kwan informed the Board that, due to his retirement to
pursue a healthy lifestyle and other personal interests, he
has decided not to stand for re-election at the annual general
meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company to be held on 25 May
2018 and he would retire from his positions as Chairman,
CEOQ, Executive Director, Director of Marketing, member of
the Remuneration Committee, Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, Chairman of the Risk Management Committee with
effect from the conclusion of the AGM.

In September 1983, Mr. Kwan founded the Group with Mr. Kwan
Chan Kwong and worked as a manager from September 1983 to
February 1989, as a general manager from June 1989 to June
1990, and has been a director of Trio Engineering since July
1990. Mr. Kwan was appointed as Director of the Company since
15 April 2016. He has approximately 30 years of experience in
the electronics industry, in particular plastic injection moulding
and electronic assembly services.

Mr. Kwan obtained a diploma in management studies in the
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in September 1993.

Before joining the Group, Mr. Kwan worked in Timco (H.K.)
Limited, a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and
principally engaged in electronics manufacturing, as a shipping
clerk from October 1976 to 1978, as a shipping supervisor
from 1978 to 1980 and as a marketing executive from 1980 to
August 1983.
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ExSkeREEERE

Mr. Lai Yiu Wah (Z#B2), aged 62, is the deputy Chairman,
Executive Director and the chief financial officer of the
Company. He is a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk Management
Committee. Mr. Lai joined our Group since April 2015 and has
been the Director of the Company since 15 April 2016. He is
responsible for the corporate and strategic development and
investor relationships of the Group as well as the management
of the finance division. During the leave of absence of Mr. Kwan
Tak Sum, Mr. Lai has acted in the capacity of the Chairman
(acting) of the Board and chairman of the Risk Management
Committee. Mr. Lai has extensive experience in accountancy
and has been engaged in the profession for over 35 years.

Mr. Lai obtained a higher diploma in accountancy in November
1978 from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong
Kong Polytechnic University). He was admitted as a fellow of
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now known as the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in September
1988.

Mr. Lai served in different positions, including trainee
and supervisor, in Coopers & Lybrand (now known as
PricewaterhouseCoopers) from November 1978 to August 1981,
and served in different positions, including internal auditor and
credit controller, in A.S. Watson & Co., Limited from December
1981 to June 1983.In 1983, Mr. Lai founded Thomson Y.W. Lai &
Co.,which had been the Group’s auditors and tax representative
from August 2008 to April 2015 and from July 2008 to April
2015, respectively, before Mr. Lai was invited to join our Group
in April 2015.
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Mr. Tai Leung Lam (& R 1), aged 70, is the Executive Director
and the director of manufacturing of the Group. Mr. Tai joined
our Group since October 1985 and was appointed as Director
of the Company on 15 April 2016. He is responsible for the
management, strategic planning and development of the
manufacturing division. During the leave of absence of Mr.
Kwan Tak Sum Stanley, Mr. Tai has acted in the capacity of CEO
of the Group (acting). Mr. Tai was a director of Trio Engineering
from October 1985 to July 1987, and has been serving in the
same position from July 1990 until present. Mr. Tai has over 45
years of experience in the electronics industry, and specialises
in the establishment and management of production plants for
electronics manufacturers.

Mr. Tai obtained a diploma in Wireless Mechanical Maintenance
without Wireless Telegraph Communication in The World
Electric Engineering College (B8t A E# TIEZE4L) in March
1965. Mr. Tai attended short courses in Quality Assurance
and Component Testing for Transistor Radio, as well as The
Use of Radio and T.V. Servicing Equipment at the department
of electrical engineering in Morrison Hill Technical Institute
(now known as Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education)
during the session from 1970 to 1971 and during the
session from 1971 to 1972, respectively. During the period
from October 1976 to 1983, Mr. Tai held various positions in
Timco Manufacturing Co. Limited (“Timco”), a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong and principally engaged in
electronics manufacturing. Timco was dissolved in December
1991 as a result of creditor’s winding up.

Mr. Joseph Mac Carthy, aged 52, is the Executive Director
and the director of marketing of the Group. Mr. Mac Carthy
joined our Group since March 1996 and was appointed as
Director of the Company on 15 April 2016. He is responsible
for the overall management and supervision of the marketing
activities in Europe and the USA. He joined us as a consultant
in March 1996 and has been a director of Trio Engineering
since October 2003. Before joining the Group. Mr. Mac Carthy
worked in different companies engaging in related industries.
Mr. Mac Carthy has been in the industry of design engineering
for electronic and magnetic products for over 20 years.

In 1985, Mr. Mac Carthy obtained a national certificate in
electronic engineering from Waterford Institute of Technology
in Ireland.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fung Chun Chung ($EH), aged 75, is an Independent
Non-executive Director appointed on 10 February 2017, and
a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk Management
Committee. Mr. Fung has over 40 years of experience in the
electronics industry.

Mr. Fung received an advanced diploma in engineering from
North-East Essex Technical College in the United Kingdom
in July 1968 and a master degree of science in engineering
from the University of Hong Kong in November 1978. Mr. Fung
was admitted as a member of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers in January 1983, and a member of the Institution
of Production Engineers (now known as the Institution of
Engineering and Technology) in the United Kingdom in July
1971.

Mr. Fung worked as a manager of production in Transelectronics
Ltd. from June 1970 to December 1974, responsible for leading
the development of the company and training of the production
operators and staff. Mr. Fung was appointed as the chairman of
Manlion Industrial Co., Ltd., a company principally engaged in
the manufacturing of lighting products and festival items and
decorations, in October 1983, and of Packway Industries Ltd.,
a company principally engaged in the manufacturing of battery
chargers and festival items and decorations, in November
2007. In addition, Mr. Fung was the secretary of the Hong Kong
Electrical Appliance Industries Association from 2006 to 2008
and the executive committee member of group four (electrical
products) of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries from July
2005 to July 2015.
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Mr. Cheung Kin Wing (3R#%E), aged 63, is an Independent
Non-executive Director appointed on 10 February 2017, and is
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each
of the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management
Committee. Mr. Cheung has more than 30 years of experience
in information technology (“IT”), financial accounting, auditing
and management.

Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor degree in commerce
from the University of Calgary in Canada in June 1979. He
became a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales in May 1986 and February
2015, respectively.

From September 1980 to March 1995, Mr. Cheung held
several positions, including assistant manager, manager
and senior manager in Coopers & Lybrand (now known as
PricewaterhouseCoopers). He was a partner of Coopers &
Lybrand (now known as PricewaterhouseCoopers) from
March 1995 until his resignation in May 1999. Since February
1999, Mr. Cheung has been a director and lead consultant
of Sunplex Consultants Limited, a company principally
engaged in the provision of human resources management
and IT consultancy services. He was an independent director
of Principal Trust Company (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly
known as AXA China Region Trustees Limited), a provider of
investment and retirement solutions, from August 1999 to
August 2015 and an independent non-executive director of
Bank of Communications Trustee Limited, from November
2003 to January 2018. Mr. Cheung was a director of the finance
and operations department of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants from July 2004 to April 2008 and
a consultant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants from April 2008 to August 2008.

Mr. Cheung is currently an independent non-executive director
of BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited, (whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1338),
ENM Holdings Limited (whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 128), and Kin Pang Holdings Limited
(whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code:
1722).
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Mr. Wong Raymond Fook Lam (Z#E%:), aged 63, is the
Independent Non-executive Director appointed on 10 February
2017,and is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Risk Management Committee. Mr. Wong has
approximately 30 years of experience in financial management,
treasury, internal control and investment in the commercial
field.

Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive director of
Wenzhou Kangning Hospital Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2120), from April 2015 to June
2016. From January 1997 to June 2007 and from July 2009 to
December 2016, Mr. Wong served as an executive director of
SOCAM Development Limited ("SOCAM”), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 983) and a member of the Shui
On Group, a group principally engaged in property development
and construction in Hong Kong and the PRC. He also took up the
role of chief financial officer from July 2009 to December 2016
and assumed the role of managing director of SOCAM from
July 2013 to December 2016. During his tenure with SOCAM,
he was primarily responsible for financial, treasury and legal
and secretarial functions, corporate restructuring, mergers and
acquisitions, investment decisions, investor relationships and
corporate governance matters. In March 2007, Mr. Wong was
appointed an executive director of China Central Properties
Ltd., an affiliated company of SOCAM, which was listed on the
London Stock Exchange. Following the privatisation of China
Central Properties Ltd. in June 2009, he rejoined SOCAM. From
1992 to 1995, Mr. Wong served as the finance director of the
Shui On Group.

Mr. Wong obtained a diploma in accountancy from the City
of London Polytechnic (now known as London Metropolitan
University) in June 1976. He is a Fellow of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and an Associate
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and New
Zealand.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Georges Rene Gener, aged 69, is the Chairman of European
Operations, overseeing the overall business operations and
developments in the European market. He has over 35 years of
experience in the industrial electronics industry.

Mr. Gener obtained a Diploma in Electrical Engineering from
ESIGELEC Graduate School of Engineering in Paris, France
in 1970. He further obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration from Institut de Controle de Gestion in Paris,
France in 1990.

From 1977 to 1982, Mr. Gener first worked in PHILIPS
Components as Sales Manager for automotive and industrial
markets in France. He then joined SPRAGUE, an American
industrial group for electronic component business, from 1982
to 1991. He first worked as a Sales Manager in France and
Large Account Manager in Europe, and later as the Managing
Director of FILMAG division of SPRAGUE and eventually, after
the successful acquisition by FEE, as Managing Director of FEE
FILMAG. From 1992 to 2000, Mr. Gener worked as the Sales
Director for MYRRA France, an industrial company for magnetic
components with businesses worldwide. He handled the setting
up of the factory in Poland. In 2000, after the successful
management buyout of MYRRA, he became the Chairman
and major shareholder and engaged in the international
development of the company, including setting up factories
in Poland and the PRC, as well as building agents and sales
structures internationally, thereby developing the company’s
markets globally. In 2013, ACAL PLC of the United Kingdom
acquired the entire equity of MYRRA and Mr. Gener had since
then become the President of MYRRA France until February
2018. He joined our Group as the Chairman of European
Operations in February 2018.
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Mr. Lai Sek Piu (32851F), aged 58, is the director of Innovation
and Development Division and is responsible for the
management and supervision of the Group’s innovation and
development. He has over 32 years of experience in the field
of manufacturing and engineering.

Mr. Lai completed a three years’ part-time course in electronic
engineering at Kasetsart University in Thailand in July 1993.

Mr. Lai worked as a section manager in Capetronic International
(Thailand) Public Company Limited in Thailand, a company
principally engaged in the manufacturing, distribution and
provision of after-sales services for computer monitors in
Thailand, from August 1988 to February 1997. He joined the
Group as an engineer in November 1998 and a general manager
of manufacturing division in April 2007, and has been the
director of Innovation and Development Division since January
2018.

Mr. Fok Ka Fai (EX &), aged 59, is the company secretary and
the head of the Finance Division of the Group. He is responsible
for the management and supervision of the Finance Division.
Mr. Fok has more than 35 years of experience in finance and
accounting in various industries.

Mr. Fok obtained a higher certificate of business studies in
banking in November 1989 from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic University). He
further obtained an honour bachelor of science degree in
financial services from the University of Manchester in the
United Kingdom through distance learning in August 2006
and a master degree in corporate governance from the Open
University of Hong Kong in December 2009. Mr. Fok was awarded
associateship from the Institute of Financial Services of United
Kingdom (now known as The London Institute of Banking
and Finance) in September 2006, the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers (now known as Certified Banker) in December 2006,
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
in February 2010 and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries in February 2010.

Annual Report 2017 %

BBHEELE 85 RAMRERIEE &
BEARBAFRERNEEREE - RREE
R TRBAEHABI2F &L

REER—NMN=ZFLtAETEHNEEKRE
(Kasetsart University)5ef Xk = F % BHIET T
F2RE -

BEER—NANNANENAZ—ALALEFZA
£ %= BECapetronic International (Thailand)
Public Company Limited (—REBH EZEH
BIBTSREE  DHERIERERRE AR
BEEBIILERE - BR—HANANF+—ANAR
EEETTRM R_SESLFMAETLEE
BB W T - NF-ARB—ERAH
REBREPBES o

ERERLE 595 RARWERAEEMB
MEE AEMBHNEERES BR4AH
ZETENAHE LG T A BISFLR -

ERER—N)/\NWF+—ARESEEITZSR (R
WMABBEIRS) ERRITHEMESAE
E-FR-_ZTRFNABRERRETE—F
EREESHNFAE 2 eRREEEES L
BUNRKR-_ZTNF+-_AEDES AR KE
GCEERBLIEN - BEXAER ST RENA
RELHS BB % E GRH AThe London

Institute of Banking and Finance) €1 + =
EERFT_AKEFERTEGE T (BEA
RITEEET)  —E-TFE_ARBETNE
RITBABREETR-IZ—SF-_AKES
BETWELAEE L -



TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

ETXEFEBAERLA

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Before joining the Group, Mr. Fok worked in Ace Win Investment
Co., Ltd., a company principally engaged in garment
manufacturing and trading, as a financial controller from
December 1999 to August 2002, in Smart Union (Hong Kong)
Ltd., a company principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of toys, as a senior finance manager from August 2002
to September 2004, and in Golden Lady Trading Co., Ltd., a
company principally engaged in garment trading, as a financial
manager from February 2005 to January 2008. He was the
group financial controller of the Group from November 2008
to December 2017 and has been the company secretary since
10 February 2017. Mr. Fok has been the head of the Finance
Division of the Group since January 2018.

Mr. Lo Ka Kei Jun (BE#), aged 39, is the director of the
Marketing Division and is responsible for the management
and supervision of the Group’s marketing. Mr. Lo has 13
years of experience in international marketing and business
development in the electronics industry.

Mr. Lo obtained a higher national diploma in business and
marketing in July 2001 and a bachelor of arts degree in business
management in September 2002 from the Southampton
Institute in the United Kingdom. He obtained a master degree in
management and a master degree in business administration
from Macquarie University in Australia in November 2013 and
December 2014, respectively.

Mr. Lo worked in Apogee International Limited, a company
principally engaged in the manufacturing of electronic products
and audio and innovative designed items, as a marketing
executive from June 2003 and an assistant marketing manager
from May 2005 to October 2005. He joined the Group as a
marketing executive in February 2006 and the general manager
of the Marketing Division since September 2012, and has been
the director of the Marketing Division since January 2018.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ExSkeREEERE

Mr. Shahpour Javanmard Emamghissi, aged 61, is the director
of project development and is responsible for business
development in the European market and supervision of
the product designs. He has over 30 years of experience
in the electronic engineering industry and specialises in
manufacturing, quality control and business development
management.

Mr. Emamghissi obtained a higher national diploma in electrical
and electronic engineering from Liverpool Polytechnic (now
known as Liverpool John Moores University) in the United
Kingdom for session 1980/1981 and subsequently received a
diploma in electrical and electronic engineering from Leeds
Polytechnic (now known as Leeds Beckett University) in the
United Kingdom in June 1982 and a postgraduate diploma in
manufacturing management and technology from the Open
University in the United Kingdom in July 1997.

Mr. Emamghissi worked as part of a team working on projects
designing automation and monitoring systems in Micro
Systems Control Limited, an engineering automation company
in the United Kingdom, from September 1982 to January 1984.
He held various positions (electronics design and test engineer,
project engineer and telecom engineering manager) in Denis
Ferranti Group, a telecom and consumer electronics contract
manufacturer in the United Kingdom, from February 1984 to
March 2003. From June 2003 to November 2003, he worked as
a project manager and as a process engineer in Eaton Electrical
Part of Eaton Corporation USA, a manufacturer of electrical
distribution equipment, circuit breakers and safety products in
the United Kingdom. He then served as an operations manager
in Thermatru UK Manufacturing Limited, a company principally
engaged in the manufacturing and supply of composite security
and fire doors in the United Kingdom, from November 2003 to
April 2005. He worked as an engineering project manager in
Dolgarrog Aluminium Limited, a manufacturer and supplier of
flat aluminium products to aerospace and other industries in
the United Kingdom, from June 2005 to November 2005. He
worked as an offshore manufacturing and quality manager in
Lake Communications Limited, a supplier of communication
equipmentin Ireland, from November 2005 to December 2011.
During the period from December 2011 to December 2015, Mr.
Emamghissi worked as a consultant for Mr. Mac Carthy, and
provided support to the sales activities in Europe as well as
technical support to the customers therein. He formally joined
the Group as the director of project development in January
2016.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wan Mei Wa Ruby (iB 3£ %), aged 34, is the Group Financial
Controller, responsible for overall financial management of the
Group.

Ms. Wan obtained a Bachelor of Commerce (Honours) in
Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan University (formerly
known as Hong Kong Shue Yan College) in July 2006 and a Master
of Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in October 2012. She is an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, and the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Wan has
over 10 years of experience in audit and assurance, financial
management, and corporate governance. She previously worked
as a manager, assurance in an international accounting firm.
Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Wan was a finance manager of
Guardforce (Macau) Limited, a company principally engaged
in the provision of security services, transporting money and
other valuable goods.

Ms. Wan joined our Group as the Assistant Financial Controller
in March 2015 and has been the Group Financial Controller
since January 2018.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERERE

The Company’s corporate governance code is based on the
principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Company is
committed to ensuring a quality board and transparency and
accountability to Shareholders.

The Company complied with all code provisions in the CG Code
during the period from 23 November 2017, being the Listing
Date, to 31 December 2017 except for paragraph A.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code, which provides that the roles
of chairman and CEO should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley
is the Chairman and CEO of the Company. Mr. Kwan Tak Sum
Stanley has taken a leave of absence since October 2017 and
his roles as Chairman and CEO have been taken up by Mr. Lai
Yiu Wah and Mr. Tai Leung Lam, respectively. In substance, the
Company has therefore, complied with paragraph A.2.1 of the
CG Code.

The Board has reserved for its decision and consideration in
relation to (i) formulating the strategic objectives of the Group;
(i) considering and deciding the Group’s significant operational
and financial matters, including but not limited to substantial
mergers and acquisitions and disposals; (iii) overseeing
the Group’s corporate governance practices; (iv) ensuring a
risk management control system in place; (v) directing and
monitoring senior management in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives; and (vi) determining the remuneration
packages of all Directors and the Group’s senior management,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments for loss or termination of their office or appointment.
Implementation and execution of Board policies and strategies
and the daily administrative matters are delegated to the
respective Board committees and the management team of
the Company.
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The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year
and additional meetings will be held or resolutions in writing
signed by all Directors in lieu of a meeting will be arranged as
and when required. If a substantial shareholder of the Company
or a Director has a conflict of interest in a transaction which
the Board determines to be material, it will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
Comprehensive information on matters to be discussed at
the Board meeting will be supplied to the Directors in a timely
manner to facilitate discussion and decision making.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

At the date of this annual report, the Board comprises four
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The name and office of each of the members of
the Board and the Board committees of the Company are as
follows:

Board members Office
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ESENE

B

Kwan Tak Sum Stanley
Lai Yiu Wah

TR

Tai Leung Lam

R

Joseph Mac Carthy
Joseph Mac Carthy

Fung Chun Chung

ST

Cheung Kin Wing

SRIELR

Wong Raymond Fook Lam

AR

Chairman, CEO, Executive Director and Director of Marketing

TR ITHARR  ITEENEHARE

Deputy Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
(during the absence of Mr. Kwan, also the acting Chairman)

BIEE BTEERERUEE (REEERRBETAREEE)

Executive Director and Director of Manufacturing (during the absence of
Mr. Kwan, also the acting CEO)

HMITESRAEERE (REEERRIRETARIEITHER)

Executive Director and Director of Marketing

WITEFREHER

Independent Non-executive Director

BIUIFHITES

Independent Non-executive Director

BIUFNTES

Independent Non-executive Director

BIUJFTESR
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley has taken a leave of absence since
October 2017 and his capacity as Chairman, CEO and various

RAIRR

FERB T —tEF+AERKR ME

ERER  THRAHLSZESNRBK AN

committees has been taken up by: TATER:

Board Mr. Lai Yiu Wah, acting Chairman

EEay RBESLE - REXR

CEO Mr. Tai Leung Lam, acting CEO

T A B RMESE - RIBITHARE

Nomination Committee Mr. Fung Chun Chung (chairman)

REEE® IBEAPEE (EF)

Risk Management Committee Mr. Lai Yiu Wah (chairman)

EREEZES RBERE (EF)

Mr. Kwan Take Sum Stanley has decided not to stand for re- BAEREADRER -_E—/\ERA-+HH

election upon his retirement by rotation at the forthcoming SBITHEEREBEAS FHFEREBTHE

AGM to be held on 25 May 2018. R o

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS BEREEEHKE

Cheung Kin Wing (chairman) SRR (F/E)

Fung Chun Chung I

Wong Raymond Fook Lam =B

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEMBERS FHESERE

Wong Raymond Fook Lam (chairman) =RER (FE)

Kwan Tak Sum Stanley RAER

Lai Yiu Wah Rz

Fung Chun Chung G

Cheung Kin Wing SREEER

NOMINATION COMMITTEE MEMBERS REZEERE

Kwan Tak Sum Stanley (chairman) BER (F/E)

Fung Chun Chung (during the absence of Mr. Kwan, IHHEP (RALEERRIBREEESERE)
being elected as chairman)

Lai Yiu Wah Rz

Wong Raymond Fook Lam E &R

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE EREEZESS

Kwan Tak Sum Stanley (chairman) BER (F/E)

Lai Yiu Wah (during the absence of Mr. Kwan, E (RELTENRIMERAERE)
being elected as chairman)

Cheung Kin Wing SREELR

Fung Chun Chung ISR

Wong Raymond Fook Lam E A&
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Each of the Executive Directors has signed a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years, commencing
from 10 February 2017 (subject to termination in certain
circumstances as stipulated in the relevant service contract).

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has signed
a service contract with the Company for an initial term of
three years, commencing from the Listing Date (subject to
termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the
relevant service contract).

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles”).

The Board composition is regularly reviewed to ensure that
it has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Group. A balanced
composition of Executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors is maintained to ensure independence
and effective management. The Company has satisfied the
relevant provision of the Listing Rules in having at least one
of the Independent Non-executive Directors with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. There is no relationship among the
members of the Board.

The appointment of Directors is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee and
approved by the Board based on a formal written procedure and
policy for the appointment of new Directors. When selecting
potential candidates for the Directors, their skills, experience,
expertise, devotion of time and non-conflicts of interests are
the key factors.

The daily operation and management of the business of
the Group, among other matters, the implementation of
strategies, are delegated to the Executive Directors and senior
management. They report periodically to the Board on their
work and business decisions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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All Directors have been fully consulted about any matters
proposed for inclusion in the agenda for regular meetings. The
chairman of the Board (or acting chairman) has been delegated
with the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each
Board meeting to the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”).

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the chairman
of the Board (or acting chairman) seeks to ensure that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board
meetings and have received adequate and reliable information
in a timely manner.

Notices of at least 14 days are given to the Directors for regular
meetings, while the Board papers are sent to the Directors
not less than three days before the intended date of a Board
or Board committee meeting. With respect to other meetings,
the Directors are given as much notice as is reasonable and
practicable in the circumstances. The Directors can attend
meetings in person or through other means of electronic
communication in accordance with the Articles. The Company
Secretary ensures that the procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. Minutes of the Board
meetings and meetings of the Board committees are kept by
the Company Secretary and are available for inspection at any
time on reasonable notice by any Director.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and
are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever
they deem necessary. The Directors will be updated with
legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the
Directors in the discharge of their duties from time to time.

Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors or members
of the relevant Board committees for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting.

Any material transaction, which involves a conflict of interests
between a substantial shareholder or a Director and the
Company, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened Board meeting with the presence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors. Directors are abstained
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.
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The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

RESPONSIBILITIES

In the course of discharging their duties, the Directors act in
good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. Their responsibilities
include (i) regular board meetings focusing on business
strategy, operational issues and financial performance; (ii)
monitoring the quality, timeliness, relevance and reliability of
internal and external reporting; (iii) monitoring and managing
potential conflicts of interest of management, board members
and shareholders, including misuse of corporate assets and
abuse in connected transaction; and (iv) ensuing processes
are in place to maintain the overall integrity of the Company,
including financial statements, relationships with suppliers,
customers and other stakeholders, and compliance with all
laws and ethics.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the consolidated financial
statements are set out on page 93 of this annual report.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets
out the approach to achieve a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company and also to enhance the quality
of performance of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives as stated in the above. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises seven
Directors. Three of the Directors are Independent Non-executive
Directors and are independent of the management, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management
process. The Board is also characterised by significant diversity,
whether considered in terms of professional background and
skills.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2017,
two Board meetings were held to approve the grant of share
options to Directors and employees and the incorporation of a
subsidiary. The Board also held a Board meeting on 23 March
2018 to approve the annual results of the Company. No general
meeting was held during the period from the Listing Date to 31
December 2017. A general meeting was held on 12 February
2018 to approve the grant of the share options to the Executive
Directors.
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Details of the Directors’ attendance records in Board meetings
during the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2017
are set out below:
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EtmBEz—_2—+F+-_A=+—HH
M BEFENEEFLHMNEELSFBOT

No. of Board
meetings attended/
Name of Directors held
HEEESgER
EENE BREBEITRY
Executive Directors
HITEE
Kwan Tak Sum Stanley * 0/2
BRI R
Lai Yiu Wah 2/2
Rz
Tai Leung Lam 2/2
CI=R)
Joseph Mac Carthy 2/2
Joseph Mac Carthy
Independent non-executive Directors
BB ITEE
Fung Chun Chung 2/2
ISR
Cheung Kin Wing 2/2
IR
Wong Raymond Fook Lam 2/2
EE R
* Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley has taken a leave of absence since October 2017.  * BfERELERRBFH_T—HF+ ARBIKE -

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has established four committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and Risk Management Committee. Specific
responsibilities of each committee are described below. All
committees have defined terms of reference which are no less
exacting than those set out in the CG Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 27 October 2017 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules and paragraph C3 and paragraph D3 of the CG
Code. The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Cheung Kin Wing, Mr. Fung Chun Chung and Mr. Wong
Raymond Fook Lam. The chairman of the Audit Committee is
Mr. Cheung Kin Wing, who holds the appropriate professional
qualifications as required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but not
limited to, the following: (i) making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and removal of the external
auditor; (i) reviewing the financial statements of the Group and
monitoring the integrity of such financial statements; and (iii)
overseeing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2017,
no Audit Committee meeting was held. Ore Audit Committee
meeting was held in January 2018 to discuss the general
functions of the Audit Committee and to review the engagement
of external auditor. An Audit Committee meeting was also held
on 23 March 2018 with all the members present to review
and consider, inter alias, the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
re-appointment of independent auditor of the Group. There was
no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection and appointment of the external auditor.

The Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee considered that the relevant
financial statements have been prepared in compliance with
the applicable accounting principles and requirements of the
Stock Exchange and disclosures have been fully made.

Annual Report 2017 %

BREES
EZREZEEN T —tF+AZ+EAKL
Wi EMMRAIEI2HER D EEASTAIZECS
MDSEHFI EMmBEEE  c EREEERES
HKE  BIREELE  FEPLENEER
hE - BREZECEIRARERLE  HAA
EHABES 0B EI2IHERENESEEE
B o

BERZEENIRBEEE (BTRR) A&
(VN BERBEANERERBRAEEEIE
HHEREE  (DVBHAAKEBM ST R MERZ
FHBRROTREMYE  (NEBUBRRREAK
N EBESIZIEFF -

mMETEHE-—Z-—tF+_A=+—H8HH
- BERREGUEBTEZR N_FT—\F
—R BRZREERTT REF UTWE
ZEEgm—REBEE - SWinal IR AT RO B
f-BRZEENMNR_T—\F=ZR=+=H
BIT—R&% (2ENEHELRE)  UEHK
ZR(EHeR) ~r&E8E—F—tF+=-HA
St HLEFENEERYHRE - UREH
ZEAEEBUILEE EFEGHEREZES
EEENZEIBZEMRTELRE RO -

REEECEHNARARBE_T—+tF+
A=+—HALFENGARVKHREK - BRE
ERR AREMBHRREEREANGHR
KRB RZFEREMMmE - WO AP 2 mIE

m || B

\
Y

as



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B1 of the
CG Code on 27 October 2017. The Remuneration Committee
comprises five members, namely, Mr. Wong Raymond Fook
Lam, Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley, Mr. Lai Yiu Wah, Mr. Fung
Chun Chung and Mr. Cheung Kin Wing. The chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. Wong Raymond Fook Lam.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include,
but not limited to, the following: (i) making recommendations
to the Board on the policy and structure for the remuneration
of all the Directors and senior management; (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy; (iii) determining the specific remuneration packages of
all Directors and senior management; and (iv) reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time.

No Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the
period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2017. One
Remuneration Committee meeting was held on 26 January 2018
to determine the remuneration policy of the Group and review
the remuneration of the Directors. Another Remuneration
Committee meeting was also held on 23 March 2018 to review
the remuneration of senior management.

Details of the directors’ remuneration and five highest paid
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out
in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration of
the senior management is listed below by band:
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph A5 of the CG Code
on 27 October 2017. The Nomination Committee comprises
four members, namely Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley, Mr. Lai Yiu
Wah, Mr. Fung Chun Chung and Mr. Wong Raymond Fook Lam.
The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Kwan Tak
Sum Stanley.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include, but
are not limited to, the following: (i) reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board; (ii) assessing the independence
of the Independent Non-executive Directors; and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors.

No Nomination Committee meeting was held during the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2017. In the absence of
Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley, Mr. Fung Chun Chung was elected
as the chairman. At a Nomination Committee meeting held
on 23 March 2018, the Nomination Committee members (i)
reviewed and considered that the structure, size, diversity
and composition of the Board are appropriate; (ii) assessed
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors;
(iii) recommended the re-appointments of Directors, and (iv)
recommended the aforesaid matters to the Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board composition
by considering the benefits of all aspects of diversity, including
but not limited to those described under the heading of Board
Diversity Policy in this annual report. The Board Diversity Policy
shall be reviewed by the Nomination Committee, as appropriate,
to ensure its effectiveness.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on 27
October 2017 to oversee the future hedge activities. The Risk
Management Committee comprises five members, namely Mr.
Kwan Tak Sum Stanley, Mr. Lai Yiu Wah, Mr. Cheung Kin Wing,
Mr. Fung Chun Chung and Mr. Wong Raymond Fook Lam. The
chairman of the Risk Management Committee is Mr. Kwan Tak
Sum Stanley.

The primary functions of the Risk Management Committee
include, but are not limited to, the following: (i) reviewing the
risk management system of the Group and ensure that the
management has performed its duties to establish an effective
risk management system:; (ii) formulating risk policies and
standards; (iii) reviewing the material risk exposures of the
Group; (iv) reviewing annually the changes in nature and extent
of significant risks; (v) reviewing annually the scope and quality
of management’s ongoing monitoring of risk management
systems; (vi) reviewing the Directors’ decisions on entering
into hedge arrangements; (vii) reviewing the effectiveness of
the hedge policy; and (viii) providing recommendations to the
Board on improving the hedge policy, where appropriate and if
necessary.

No Risk Management Committee meeting was held during the
period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2017. One Risk
Management Committee meeting was held on 26 January
2018 to review the material risk exposures of the Group and
formulate risk policies. In the absence of Mr. Kwan Tak Sum
Stanley, Mr. Lai Yiu Wah was elected as the chairman.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code of conduct governing Directors’ securities transactions.
All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and there were no events of non-
compliance from the Listing Date up to the date of this annual
report.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT FOR
DIRECTORS

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities.
Before the Listing, each newly appointed Director received
training from the legal adviser of the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company in Hong Kong.
The Directors are continually updated with business and
market changes, and legal and regulatory developments to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities through various
Board meetings, resolutions, memoranda, Board papers, and
updates on corporate governance practices and director’s
responsibilities under the Listing Rules, applicable laws and
other relevant statutory requirements.

Up to date of this annual report, the current Board members
have participated in the following training programs:

ESCRHBEXRRE

EXETRARAEREMTERIME - X EHaT
BAHMEESTHRIZRBRAABTE LT AF
EENEELEERBNEI EFEBERE
EX0g3 RER ik EFeXhH
BRI EMARR - ERAEREMBBEATERE
MEEEARTHANEETRE RN  KERS
EBEBMMSEE  UREREMEEERZ
B UBRERITERE

BEEAFRAH BRESEEFSUEE2MAT
FEFIERIE -

Types of training
kY]]

Name of Directors

ESnR

Executive Directors
HITEE

Kwan Tak Sum Stanley
BEi=R

Lai Yiu Wah

Tai Leung Lam

R

Joseph Mac Carthy
Joseph Mac Carthy

Independent non-executive Directors
BUIFNTEE

Fung Chun Chung

SEEH

Cheung Kin Wing

SRR

Wong Raymond Fook Lam

HAE A

Reading materials
updating on
new rules and

Attending training
organised by legal

adviser regulations
HEHEEER BEAEH AR
ZHRIEHI ER 2 EH

v v

v v

v v

v v

v v

v v

v v
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers’
liabilities have been in force to protect the Directors and
officers of the Group from their risk exposure arising from the
business of the Group and, as at the date of this annual report,
the Directors and officers of the Company are indemnified
under a directors’ and officers’ liability insurance against any
liability incurred by them in discharge of their duties while
holding office as the Directors and officers of the Company. The
Directors and officers of the Company shall not be indemnified
where there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust
proven against them.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is to ensure a good information
flow within the Board and between the Board and senior
management of the Company, to provide advice to the Board
in relation to the Directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules
and applicable laws and regulations and to assist the Board
in implementing the corporate governance practices. Mr. Fok
Ka Fai, the Company Secretary, had attended not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training as required under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2017.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for monitoring
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group on an ongoing basis and reviewing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than to eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Company improves its
business and operational activities by identifying the areas
of significant business risk by means of a regular review and
taking appropriate measures to control and mitigate these
risks. The management of the Company reviews all significant
control policies and procedures and highlights all significant
matters to the Board and Risk Management Committee on a
timely basis to ensure prompt remedial actions are taken.

Although the Group does not have an internal audit function,
the Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good
corporate governance practice and internal control systems.
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The Board, through the Risk Management Committee,
conducted an annual review of both design and implementation
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, which covered all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls. Such
annual review was done with a view to ensuring that resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting, internal control and financial
reporting functions are adequate. In this respect, the Risk
Management Committee communicated any material issues
to the Board.

The results of the independent review and assessment
were reported to the Risk Management Committee and the
Board. Moreover, improvements in internal control and risk
management measures to enhance the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and to mitigate
risks of the Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the
findings and recommendations, as well as the comments of
the Risk Management Committee, the Board considered the
internal control and risk management systems are adequate
and effective.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Company has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
Auditor of the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2017,
PricewaterhouseCoopers received HK$1.8 million for audit
services. Non-audit services provided to the Group mainly
represented (i) the reporting accountant’s work in connection
with the Listing provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers of
approximately HK$4.7 million and (ii) internal control reviews
and taxation services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers
Limited of HK$0.09 million in aggregate. The reporting
responsibilities of PricewaterhouseCoopers are set out in pages
94 to 96 of this annual report.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit

Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditor during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with its
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The disclosure of the Group’s information in a reasonable and
timely manner by the Board is to facilitate the shareholders
as well as the investors to have a better understanding of
the business performance, operations and strategies of the
Group. The Company’s website at www.trio-ieg.com allows the
potential and existing investors as well as the public to get
access to and acquire the Company’s up-to-date corporate and
financial information.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone hotline, email address and postal address,
in order to enable them to make any query that they may have
with respect to the Company.

They can also send their enquiries to the Board through the
above means. The contact details of the Company are set out
in “Corporate Information” section of this annual report and the
Company’s website.

The Board welcomes views of the shareholders and encourages
them to attend general meetings to raise any concerns that
they may have with the Board or the management directly.
Board members and appropriate senior staff of the Group are
available at the meetings to answer any questions raised by
shareholders.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE
AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors,
for shareholders’ consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant
to article 68(c) of the Articles, the Directors may, whenever they
think fit, convene a general meeting, and general meetings shall
also be convened on such requisition, or in default, may be
convened by such requisitionists, as provided by the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622, the laws of Hong Kong) (the “HKCO”).
If any time there are not within Hong Kong sufficient Directors
capable of acting to form a quorum, any Director or any two or
more members of the Company representing at least 10% of
the total voting rights of all members having a right to vote at
general meetings, may convene a general meeting in the same
manner as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may
be convened by the Directors.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company or put
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board. The contact
details are as follows:

Board of Directors
Trio Industrial Electronics Group Limited
Address: Block J, 5/F, Phase Il, Kaiser Estate,
51 Man Yue Street,
Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Telephone hotline: 2765 8787
Email address: felix@trio-ieg.com

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting or a
general meeting, the shareholders shall submit a written notice
of those proposals with detailed contact information to the
Board/Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the
proposed resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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Moreover, the notice period concerning the notice to be given
to all the shareholders for consideration of the proposals
submitted by the shareholders concerned varies as follows
pursuant to article 70 of the Articles and subject to section
578 of the HKCO.

(a) foranannual general meeting, it shall be called by notice
in writing of at least twenty-one clear days (or such longer
period as may be required by the Listing Rules); and

(b) for a general meeting other than an annual general
meeting, it shall be called by notice in writing of least
fourteen clear days (or such longer period as may be
required by the Listing Rules),

shall be given in the manner mentioned in the Articles to all
members, to the Directors and to the Auditors.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the Company’s
registered office and provide their full names, contact details
and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted an amended and restated articles of
association (the “Amended and Restated AA”) on 27 October
2017 and the Amended and Restated AA took effect on the date
on which the Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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The Board is pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding. The Group are principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sales of electronic products.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

Pursuant to the reorganisation of the Group in connection with
the Listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange, the Company
became the holding company of the Group on 12 September
2016. Details of the reorganisation are set out in note 1.2 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since the
Listing Date.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
97 to 100.

On 15 March 2017, the Company declared an interim dividend
of HK$15,000,000 per share (2016: HK$11,750,000 per share),
totaling HK$30,000,000 (2016: HK$23,500,000) to its then
shareholder of the Company which was paid on 28 March 2017.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK2.0 cents
per ordinary share of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: nil) to the Shareholders. The proposed
final dividend, subject to the approval of the Shareholders at
the AGM to be held on Friday, 25 May 2018, is expected to be
paid on Thursday, 14 June 2018 to all Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Monday, 4 June 2018.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM
to be held on Friday, 25 May 2018, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Friday, 18 May 2018 to Friday,
25 May 2018, both days inclusive, during which no transfer
of Shares will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 17 May
2018.

In order to ascertain the entitlement to the final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 31 May 2018 to Monday, 4 June 2018, both days
inclusive. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 30 May 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year ended 31 December 2017, the key factors affecting
its results and financial position, and the information on the
compliance with laws and regulations, environmental policy
and relationships with stakeholders are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report. Furthermore, a fair review of, and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business are set out in the
sections headed “Statement of the Management” of this annual
report. Save as disclosed in this annual report, since the end of
the year ended 31 December 2017, no important event affecting
the Group has occurred.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The five largest customers accounted for more than 70.0%
of the total revenue. Any loss of the major customers or any
request for price reduction may materially and adversely
affect our business performance and financial condition.

Since (i) the Group does not enter into long-term sale and
purchase agreements with the customers and do not have
long-term purchase commitment from them; and (ii) the Group
is not their exclusive supplier, there is no assurance that the
five largest customers will continue to purchase the products
at current levels or at all in the future. If the prices of the
products are not as competitive as those set by the competitors
for comparable products or if the quality of the products does
not meet the customers’ expectations or requirements, the
customers may reduce their purchase volume or may not make
purchases from the Group. If any of the five largest customers
significantly reduces its purchase volume or ceases to place
purchase orders with the Group, and the Group are unable to
identify new customers, the business performance, results
of operations and financial condition may be materially and
adversely affected.

In addition, there is no assurance that the major customers
will not negotiate for a reduction in the price of the products
in the future. In order to maintain business relationships with
them, the Group may have to offer a more competitive price to
them. If the Group are unable to reduce the production cost
accordingly and maintain the profit margins, the profitability,
results of operations and financial condition may be materially
and adversely affected.

Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials may affect the
cost of sales and adversely affect our business operations
and profitability.

The major raw materials include integrated circuits, metal
parts, plastic parts, PCB components, capacitors, connectors,
transistors, cables and cores. The prices of the raw materials
generally follow their respective price trends in the market and
vary with industry conditions and market supply and demand.

Annual Report 2017 %

IRERRTEERER

AAREFEEHBRENTONUELE - TEXFH
FAEASNEATAEENER  EHRKRM
NEBRBERMBRRERERATNTE -

HROAEBEYEETFII Y RAEERZR
ARG B EES R F AR BEREA 0 R>IA
SEXIFMBPFBRERER  WAERELX
%3)5 RRBESRARKPRBIESREE

e MEMEBEBREZRBEFHFRRARERM
IEWﬁT%WE.XT@éDDE%*@EHE\%}EE}‘]/Hﬁ
EHEBFR - FPARRIRBELATEIEM
AEETETE - MEAMARTEP AR RE
REEXRUIEAANKRETREE  BAKH
BEEAMEHES  AKREMNEHRR EEX
AL HAN L EZBNEA R TMEZE -

AN EAREEBZEF AR I ERARER
ERETHER SEFEREFNXRTHEE X

SEAEZARFRHEEABF HNERE - i
AN £% (B 4 0% A FE b RUAR A B AR N K M R B
o AAREENEFED - KERERTHR
MATREEXBNERTHFE -

EMBERRDAEHHERTERVERY
EBEBRBANEIELTRZE -

TERMHUBRENER BT BB
1fF EDF'J BEARF A EEEE‘*‘@TKE& fm i
ERRZL - RMBOER - RRERS
XEEAW%E’J{ET&@*‘“ » WIRIT ARG IA KT
Bk mMEIE

8 H>



Since the Group does not enter into long-term supply contracts
with the suppliers, there is no assurance that the suppliers
will not significantly increase the prices of raw materials
in the future, in particular when the market prices of or the
market demand for such raw materials increase. There is also
no assurance that the Group will be able to pass the increase
in the costs of raw materials to the customers in a timely
manner or at all to avoid adverse impacts on the profitability.
If, in the event of material fluctuations in raw material prices,
the customers do not agree to a price adjustment or the Group
cannot pass the increase in the cost of raw materials to them
in atimely manner or at all, the profitability, financial condition
and results of operations may be materially and adversely
affected.

Any slowdown of the industrial electronics industry may
materially and adversely affect our results of operations,
financial condition and business prospects.

As an EMS provider specialising in the manufacturing and
sales of customised industrial electronic components and
products, our business performance depends, to a large extent,
on the performance and condition of the industrial electronics
industry.

The industrial electronics industry may experience slowdown
or downturn due to market or industry conditions, global
economic environment or other factors beyond control. Any
decrease in the demand for industrial electronics equipment
such as renewable energy facilities, telecommunications
equipment, commercial freight equipment, medical devices
and security systems may reduce the demand for our OEM
products. In such circumstances, the sales may decline and
the results of operations, financial condition and business
prospects may be materially and adversely affected.

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risks.

The major functional currency is US$, while some of the
business transactions and the cost of sales are denominated
HK$, EUR and RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risks as a result of sales and purchases that are denominated
in a currency other than US$. Any significant changes in the
exchange rate between US$ and other currencies may result in
substantial loss for the Group and the financial condition and
results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.
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Failure to retain the services of key personnel may adversely
affect the results of operations.

The success to date has largely been attributable to the
contributions, commitment and experience of the management
team and key employees, in particular their familiarity with
the business operations and their experience and expertise in
the industrial EMS industry. Some of our Executive Directors
have more than 30 years of experience in the electronics
industry. In particular, Mr. Tai Leung Lam and Mr. Mac Carthy,
the Executive Directors, have more than 45 and more than 20
years of experience in the electronics industry, respectively.
The continued success is dependent on the ability to retain
the services of members of the senior management and key
employees who possess the necessary experience and expertise
in the industrial EMS industry. If there is any significant or
material change to the composition of the key management
team, the Group may not be able to recruit experienced or
qualified personnel in a timely manner or at all, and may need
to incur additional cost and resources in the recruitment
and training of the new staff members. In addition, if the
Group loses the key management personnel or employees to
the competitors, the competitiveness, business performance,
results of operations as well as business prospects may be
materially and adversely affected.

There is no assurance that the business strategies and future
plans will be successfully implemented.

The successful implementation of the business strategies
and future plans will depend on various factors, including
but not limited to the ability to (i) retain the major customers;
(i) enhance the production efficiency; (iii) retain the existing
workforce and recruit new staff members at a rate that is
consistent with the business growth; (iv) raise additional
funds to support the business expansion; and (v) explore new
business opportunities, in particular in the ATE segment. There
is no assurance that the Group will be able to successfully
implement the business strategies or future plans. Even if the
business strategies or future plans are implemented, there
is no assurance that they will increase the market share or
enhance the market position. The results of operations and
financial position may be materially and adversely affected if
the business strategies or future plans are not successfully
implemented.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last four financial years is set out on page 188 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details (including the principal activities) of the Company’s
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations was made by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s distributable reserves
available for distribution is HK$20,661,000 (2016: HK$278,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders unless otherwise
required by the Stock Exchange.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRSTEERRAT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExawRs

MBEHRE

AEEBENEMRFENEE EEMRE
MEHNAFRE188E LB E I TEKEE
RS EHmER—8 D -

B B8 2 B

AAFRMBARAR _E—tF+_-_A=+—~H
ZEIE (BRI RS %ﬁ) R A MR
16 °

M~ BERRE

$Kl#@i—xft¢+:ﬂz+f5¢¢
B2 BELAIESHFBIANGETH
WERMIFE14 -

ZEBRM

AEEBRBE_Z—tF+-_A=t—AHL
FEYEERBREREMBR (ZF—RF
') o

KD B0 2k
NRZZE—+E+_A=+—HB XAFHA
MO IREEE 520,661,000 70 (=T — /N 4F
278,000/ 7T) °

BrEEE

BREXXMAEREIN @RI ETHEAEH
BEBEENRTE - BRARBARLOIAR
BRRIEZHEHK -

[N

ARARRAEENRAESFBEHENGEYH
MR FE24 -

Annual Report 2017 “E%f

5/



58

TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEEERAT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgRE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up todate of RAFENHEBEEAFHABH I EETHIIW

this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

=

T

HITES

Kwan Tak Sum Stanley (appointed on 15 April 2016)
AR (RZZE—ARFNATHBESRE)
Lai Yiu Wah (appointed on 15 April 2016)
BRI (RZE—ARFUA+RHBEZE)
Tai Leung Lam (appointed on 15 April 2016)
R (RZE2E-—REEATHAEZE)

Joseph Mac Carthy
Joseph Mac Carthy

(appointed on 15 April 2016)
(R=ZE—REWNATHhAEZE)

Independent non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Fung Chun Chung (appointed on 10 February 2017)
IS (R=ZE—tF-_A+HEZT)
Cheung Kin Wing (appointed on 10 February 2017)

SRR (R—Z—+F-_A+HEZT)
Wong Raymond Fook Lam (appointed on 10 February 2017)
ERiERES (R=—Z—+F-_A+HEZT)

Pursuant to article 119(c) of the Articles, any Director so
appointed, either to fill a casual vacancy or by way of addition
to their number, by the Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company, and
shall then be eligible for re-appointment.

Pursuant to article 120(a) of the Articles, subject to article
120(e), at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors (excluding those Director(s) who are not subject to
the rotation requirement under the Articles) or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three the number which is nearest
to and is at least one-third, shall retire from office by rotation.
Aretiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to article 120(e) of the Articles, any Director who holds

the position as an Executive Director shall not be subject to the
retirement-rotation requirement of the Article.
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Accordingly, Mr. Fung Chun Chung, Mr. Cheung Kin Wing and
Mr. Wong Raymond Fook Lam will retire pursuant to article
119(c) of the Articles, and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Pursuant to the A.4.2 of the CG Code, all directors (no matter
executive or independent non-executive directors) including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. As such,
Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley, Mr. Lai Yiu Wah and Mr. Tai Leung
Lam voluntarily retire pursuant to article 120(a) of the Articles.
Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley has decided not to stand for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM. Mr. Lai Yiu Wah and Mr. Tai
Leung Lam, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as
Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Directors of subsidiaries of the Company during the year or
the period and up to the date of this annual report are as follows:

Trio Engineering Company Limited
Kwan Tak Sum Stanley

Lai Yiu Wah

Tai Leung Lam

Joseph Mac Carthy

Professional Electronics Manufacturing Solutions Limited
Kwan Tak Sum Stanley

Lai Yiu Wah

Tai Leung Lam

Panyu Trio Microtronics Co., Ltd.
Kwan Tak Sum Stanley

Lai Yiu Wah

Tai Leung Lam

Guangzhou Professional Electronics Manufacturing Solutions
Limited

Kwan Tak Sum Stanley

Lai Yiu Wah

Tai Leung Lam
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e-Tech Engineering Company Limited

Lai Yiu Wah (appointed on 20 December 2017)

Tai Leung Lam (appointed on 20 December 2017)
Joseph Mac Carthy (appointed on 20 December 2017)

Trio-tronics Manufacturing Global Limited

Lai Yiu Wah (appointed on 7 February 2018)

Tai Leung Lam (appointed on 7 February 2018)

John Anthony Tiernan (appointed on 7 February 2018)

Trio Engineering GmbH (GmbH in Formation)
Trio Engineering Company Limited (appointed on 28 February
2018)

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules as at
the date of this annual report and considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 23 to 33 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has signed a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years, commencing
from 10 February 2017 (subject to termination in certain
circumstances as stipulated in the relevant service agreement).

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has signed
a service contract with the Company for an initial term of
three years, commencing from the Listing Date (subject to
termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the
relevant service contract).
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None of the Directors has or is proposed to have entered into
any service contract or letter of appointment with any member
of the Group (excluding agreements expiring or determinable
by any member of the Group within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation).

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the business of the Group to which the Company,
or its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director or a connected entity of a director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year, nor was there any
transaction, arrangements or contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries
by a controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) or
any of its subsidiaries for the year. There was also no contract
of significance between the Company or one of the subsidiaries
and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors on a named basis
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 9
to the consolidated financial statements.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Under the remuneration policy of the Company, the
Remuneration Committee will consider factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment,
responsibilities and performance of the Directors and senior
management, as the case may be, in assessing the amount
of remuneration payable to the Directors and members of
the senior management. The Remuneration Committee
will periodically review the compensation levels of the key
executives. Based on the performance and the executives’
respective contribution to the Group, the Remuneration
Committee may, within the aggregate remuneration amount
having been approved in a Shareholders’ meeting, make
recommendations to our Board as to salary increases or
payment of discretionary bonuses.

The Group’s employee benefit expenses mainly included
salaries, overtime payment and discretionary bonus, share
options, other staff benefits and contributions to retirement
schemes.

Remuneration is determined with reference to the qualification,
experience and work performance, whereas the payment of
discretionary bonus is generally subject to work performance,
the financial performance of the Group in that particular year
and general market conditions.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers’
liabilities have been in force to protect the Directors and
officers of the Group from their risk exposure arising from
conducting the business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Articles and subject to the provisions of the
HKCO, the Directors shall be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against any liability, loss or expenditure incurred
by him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal,
which relate to anything done or omitted to be done or alleged
to have been done or omitted to be done by him as a Director.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING
OF THE COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(ii) which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEsgHE

EERIETBRAEBREAQTRS - 8
RO REERRANQ TR EMH A
BrE 2 EMERERNEERAR

RZE—+F+_A=+—H EZRARQA
TBETBRABRARRREMBEEZE (XL
&7 M ERPIFEXVER) BBy R K
ERFTHEA()VRIEEZ KRB IERPIEXVERET
K FE8D BB G AN A MR Py s AR
(BREBRERERLAEERINABIEURENE
ERB REENREIAR) » HNBRIBEES R
HA 5 {610 58 35 216k ZR RC BRI a% R P 2 B RE i O 4
g MORA - i) RIE LR AP + P E R 24
STRIZEFIG AR R LB X FrrtEm fORB AT

Percentage of
shareholding in
the Company’s

Number of Shares/ issued share

Name of Directors Nature of interest underlying Shares held capital
HAEAT

IE=33) ERITRAZ

E=pn ERME HEARG A RET DL
Kwan Tak Sum Stanley Interest in a controlled corporation 750,000,000 (L)(Note 2) 75.0%
=R MREEEE N R 750,000,000 (L) (FiF&E2) 75.0%
Tai Leung Lam Interest in controlled corporation 750,000,000 (L)(Note 2) 75.0%
R REEEE N E R 750,000,000 (L) (Fff&E2) 75.0%
Beneficial owner 7,000,000 (Note 3) 0.7%

EREBA 7,000,000 (Ff#E3) 0.7%

Lai Yiu Wah Interest in controlled corporation 750,000,000 (L)(Note 2) 75.0%
RIBE INERZZNE: R F 750,000,000 (L) (FfF&E2) 75.0%
Beneficial owner 7,000,000 (Note 3) 0.7%

BmEAA 7,000,000 (Ff&E3) 0.7%

Joseph Mac Carthy Interest in controlled corporation 750,000,000 (L)(Note 2) 75.0%
Joseph Mac Carthy M2 AB R RS 750,000,000 (L) (FffsE2) 75.0%
Beneficial owner 6,000,000 (Note 3) 0.6%

BEHEAA 6,000,000 (FfI#E3) 0.6%
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(1) The letter “” denotes a long position in the Shares

(2) These shares are held by Trio Industrial Electronics Holding Limited (“Trio
Holding”). Trio Holding was owned as to 32.5%, 32.5%, 17.5% and 17.5%
by Nawk Investment Inc. (‘Nawk Investment”), LLT Investment Inc. (“LLT
Investment”), Proactive Investment Inc. (“Proactive Investment”) and
Grand Energy Investment Limited (“Grand Energy”), respectively. Nawk
Investment, LLT Investment and Proactive Investment were directly and
wholly owned by Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley, Mr. Tai Leung Lam and Mr. Lai
Yiu Wah, respectively. Grand Energy was directly and wholly owned by King
Fung Nominees Limited (“King Fung Nominees”) on trust for Mr. Joseph
Mac Carthy. Because of their interests in Trio Holding, Mr. Kwan Tak Sum
Stanley, Mr. Tai Leung Lam, Mr. Lai Yiu Wah and Mr. Joseph Mac Carthy,
Nawk Investment, LLT Investment, Proactive Investment, Grand Energy
and King Fung Nominees are regarded as the controlling shareholders
and together be entitled to exercise and control 75.0% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2017.

(3) These interests represented the total underlying Shares comprised in the
share options granted by the Company on 28 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors nor chief executive of the Company has registered
an interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii)
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or any
specified undertaking of the Company or any other associated
corporations” above, at no time during the year were any rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
the chief executive of the Company or any of their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2017, the
following persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the
Company) will have or be deemed or taken to have an interest
or short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which would be recorded in the register required to be kept

under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Percentage of
shareholding in
the Company’s

Number of issued share
Name of shareholders Nature of interests Shares held capital
LER NG
ERITRAZ
REEH ERMtE RGO E RET DL
Trio Holding Beneficial owner 750,000,000 (L) (Note 2) 75.0%
BB BEEERA 750,000,000 (L) (M#5E2) 75.0%
Nawk Investment Interest in a controlled corporation 750,000,000 (L) (Note 2) 75.0%
Nawk Investment MEEEENE R 750,000,000 (L) (Hi5E2) 75.0%
LLT Investment Interest in a controlled corporation 750,000,000 (L) (Note 2) 75.0%
LLT Investment MREEEE N ER 750,000,000 (L) (F#5£2) 75.0%
Proactive Investment Interest in a controlled corporation 750,000,000 (L) (Note 2) 75.0%
Proactive Investment REEEB R S 750,000,000 (L) (Bf5E2) 75.0%
King Fung Nominees Trustee; interest in a controlled 750,000,000 (L) (Note 2) 75.0%
corporation
King Fung Nominees RFEA RERIEEERER 750,000,000 (L) (FfzE2) 75.0%
RUAN David Ching Chi Interest of controlled corporation 80,944,000 (Note 3) 8.09%
RUAN David Ching Chi REEE R 80,944,000 (K7¥3) 8.09%
RAYS Capital Partners Investment manager 80,944,000 (Note 3) 8.09%
Limited
RAYS Capital Partners WEKE 80,944,000 (P5E3) 8.09%
Limited
Asian Equity Special Beneficial owner 76,436,000 7.64%
Opportunities Portfolio
Master Fund Limited
Asian Equity Special ExnEEA 76,436,000 7.64%

Opportunities Portfolio

Master Fund Limited
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(1) The letter “l” denotes a long position in the Shares

(2) These shares are held by Trio Industrial. Trio Holding was owned as to
32.5%, 32.5%, 17.5% and 17.5% by Nawk Investment, LLT Investment,
Proactive Investment and Grand Energy, respectively. Nawk Investment,
LLT Investment and Proactive Investment were directly and wholly owned
by Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley, Mr. Tai Leung Lam and Mr. Lai Yiu Wah,
respectively. Grand Energy was directly and wholly owned by King Fung
Nominees on trust for Mr.Joseph Mac Carthy. Because of their interests in
Trio Holding, Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley, Mr. Tai Leung Lam, Mr. Lai Yiu Wah
and Mr. Joseph Mac Carthy, Nawk Investment, LLT Investment, Proactive
Investment, Grand Energy and King Fung Nominees are regarded as the
controlling shareholders and together be entitled to exercise and control
75.0% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2017.

(3) Accordingly to the information available on the website of the Stock
Exchange, Asian Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio Master Fund
Limited is owned as to 100% by RAYS Capital Partners Limited, which in
turn is owned as to 95.24% by Mr. Ruan David Ching Chi.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons who had any interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which would be recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO, and/or who are directly
or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of
the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of the
substantial shareholders, as at 31 December 2017, no other
person is individually or collectively entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of 5% or more of the voting power at the
general meetings of the Company and are able, as a practicable
manner, to direct or influence the management of the Company.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales for the year ended 31 December 2017
generated from the Group’s major customers is as follows:

- The largest customer
—BAEF%

- Five largest customers
—HXREF%

The percentage of suppliers for the year ended 31 December
2017 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers is as follows:

- The largest supplier
— BRAHEE%
- Five largest suppliers

— ARHERE%

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) nor any shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or its five largest suppliers for the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Save for the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on the
Listing Date, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

DIRECTOR’S SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Director’s securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code. Having been made a specific enquiry by
the Company, all Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard of dealings and code of conduct
regarding securities transactions throughout the period from
the Listing Date to the date of this annual report.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date
of this annual report, none of the Directors nor the controlling
shareholders nor substantial shareholders (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company or their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) were considered to
have any interests in a business which competed or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group and/or caused, or was likely to cause any other conflicts
of interest with the Group.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The Company confirms that the deed of non-competition
of each of Trio Holding, Nawk Investment, LLT Investment,
Proactive Investment, King Fung Nominees, Grand Energy, Mr.
Kwan Tak Sum Stanley, Mr. Tai Leung Lam, Mr. Lai Yiu Wah and
Mr. Joseph Mac Carthy, details of which were set out in the
Prospectus has been fully complied with and enforced since
the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2017. The Board also
confirms that there are no other matters in relation to the
aforesaid undertaking which should be brought to the attention
of the Shareholders and the potential investors of the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved and
adopted in compliance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules by
written resolutions of the then Shareholder on 27 October 2017.
A summary of the Share Option Scheme and the movement
of the share options granted was set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an Audit Committee on 27 October
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules
3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C3 and paragraph D3
of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
include, but are not limited to, the following: (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
removal of the external auditor; (ii) reviewing the financial
statements of our Group and monitoring the integrity of such
financial statements; and (iii) overseeing our financial reporting
system and internal control procedures. The Audit Committee
comprises three members, namely Mr. Cheung Kin Wing, Mr.
Fung Chun Chung and Mr. Wong Raymond Fook Lam. The
chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Cheung Kin Wing, who
holds the appropriate professional qualifications as required
under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the
opinion that the preparation of such results complied with the
applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal
requirements, and adequate disclosures have been made.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during
the year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report. None of these related party
transactions constituted a connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules for the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

From the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital are held by the public at
all times throughout the period from the Listing Date to the
date of this annual report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to implementing good corporate
governance practices. Information on the principal corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 34 to 51 of this
annual report.

THE FORTHCOMING AGM

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held at Strategic
Room 1, 24/F, Admiralty Centre I, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong on Friday, 25 May 2018 at 2:30 p.m. and the notice
convening such meeting will be published and despatched
to the Shareholders in the manner as required by the Listing
Rules in due course.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there are no significant
events affecting the Group after the year ended 31 December
2017 and up to the date of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. The Board has taken the Audit Committee’s
recommendation that a resolution for their re-appointment as
independent auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

There is no change of independent auditor for the year and up
to the date of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

Lai Yiu Wah
Deputy Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
report by the Group, highlighting its ESG performance, with
disclosure reference made to the ESG Reporting Guide as
described in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and Guidance set
out by the Stock Exchange.

The Group is an industrial EMS provider exporting products
mainly to Europe, the USA and Asia Pacific, etc. This ESG report
covers the Group’s overall performance in two subject areas,
namely, Environmental and Social of the business operations
in the manufacturing plant in Nansha District, Guangzhou,
the PRC, from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017, unless
otherwise stated. The Group’s head office in Hong Kong was
not included in the scope as it has no significant environmental
and social impacts.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY

The Group values input and feedback of its stakeholders as
they bring potential impacts to the Group’s business. Internal
and external stakeholders have been involved in regular
engagement activities to share views regarding the Group’s
operations and performances. The Group has specifically
engaged the board members, senior management, frontline
staff, suppliers and customers to gain further insights on
ESG material aspects and challenges in the reporting period.
Through meetings and surveys, the Group and its stakeholders
identified the following top five material aspects:

. Occupational health and safety;
. Labour standards;
. Customer service;
. Anti-corruption; and
Canteen food health and safety.
The above aspects are strictly managed through the Group’s
policies and guidelines. Management of the aspects have been

described in separate sections below. In particular, the Group
was planning to:
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B HREARRE

. Set up small-scale fire stations to facilitate responsiveness
towards accidents;

. Join the “Nansha District anti-corruption alliance” in
respond to the government’s anti-corruption campaign
to promote anti-corruption, business ethics and fair
competition; and

. Enhance food safety measures through installation of
CCTVs and tests for agrochemical residues.

The Group will continue to identify areas of improvement for
the concerned aspects and keep close communication with its
stakeholders to share and exchange ideas for advancing the
Group’s ESG management.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on its
social and governance approach and
performance. Please give your suggestions or share your views
with us via email at ad_hjbin@triopy.com.

environmental,

THE GROUP’S MISSION AND STRATEGIES

Mission

Powered by partnership, we try endlessly to innovate the
best ways out to deliver our EMS services, plan to avoid
environmental and safety failure, yet create friendship, care
and respect among all people working with us.

Strategies
1. Dedicated marketing and regional sales support

2. Manufacture products of higher value and contributions
3.  Expand ATE business segment

4. Further enhance efficiency and capability

5. Strengthen presence in the industrial EMS sector

6. Continue to recruit talents and professionals

In summary, we strongly believe the human factor is the core

propeller of our business expansion. The Group’s success
formula in maintaining the best possible labour portfolio is:
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People are our core foundation

t.i‘
Respect

BE&E

ACCREDITATION AND CERTIFICATION

The Group adopts a progressive approach in its management.
It complies with various international standards to stay
competitive in the industry and enhance credibility through
third party accreditation. Certifications and membership
include:

. ISO 9001 Quality Management System

. IATF16949 Quality Management System for Automotive
Industry

. ISO13485 Quality Management System for Medical
Devices

. OHSAS 18001 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System

. ISO 14001 Environmental Management System
. TUV Certified Manufacturing Facility
. UL1446 Electrical Insulation System

UL Traceability Requirement for Printed Circuit Board
Assemblies (Category ZPVI2)

. CCC Product Certification

. Association Connecting Electronics Industries Member
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. RIE
Sources of emissions the Group involved during the ERERAN - REER)TRBEFURBIER
reporting period included natural gas, petrol, diesel, AR Am-Fh ®BARE-FH K
refrigerants, electricity, paper, water and business air 5R K REBRITIRE o NEEHRIEEST
travels. The Group was in strict compliance with the BIRIEEMBTE - ERE KRS R
national standards and regulations such as the Emission R {E(DB44/27-2001) ~ 8RB 3 i & BF
Limits of Air Pollutants (DB44/27-2001) of Guangdong AZ 2E(GB18483-2001) ~ /K5 ¥ HE MR
Province, Emission Standard of Cooking Fume (GB [R1E(DB44/26-2001) » VAR (i A R4
18483-2001), Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants MEEREEY S RRIE RE) F - K&K
(DB44/26-2001) of Guangdong Province and the Law E D REMEYUENBERNGTAIE - 2%
of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Environmental HERERS O RUEREERS - REMR
Pollution by Solid Waste. It has obtained all necessary RIS REKBRIRERHE - LAPE SRR R 257K 8
discharge permits, installed electrostatic precipitators, HERR - BFAIS0 14001Z% - KEEE,
carbon adsorption systems, grease trap and on-site BRUEEMBERS  FHERSHEBMNIR
waste water treatment facility to control emissions and RAZAEFIRIR o
discharge. To comply with the ISO 14001 standard, the
Group has a comprehensive management system to
continuously improve its environmental standards and
performances.
1. Emissions 1. B
(i)  Air Pollutant Emissions (i) Z=RSEWHER
During the reporting period, employees and guests RGN BEINEREREEFMHS
consumed petrol for Group-owned vehicles and RREMAERAE  URERERNAZEM
natural gas for cooking in the canteen operation, which FRAARER  MELBERRALY
contributed to the emission of 18.39 kg of nitrogen oxides (NOx)18.392 /T + #i & 1k ¥1(S0x)0.352
(NOx), 0.35 kg of sulphur oxides (SOx) and 0.97 kg of TR AR ASEZHLF (PM)0.97 AT ©
respiratory suspended particles (PM).
(ii) Greenhouse Gas Emissions (i) BERBIHEN
Emission Emission Total Emission
Scope of Greenhouse Gas Emissions Sources (in tCO2e) (in percentage)
—EtmFERER WHENE
RE RS R HERRIR (LAmEt) (Ao k)
Scope 1 Direct Emission
1B EHER
Combustion of fuel for stationary source Natural gas 79.61
Rt (EEIR) RAR,
Combustion of fuel for mobile sources Petrol 59.88 13%
BRI OmEniiigeiR) YUH
Refrigerants 488.70

]
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Emission Emission Total Emission
Scope of Greenhouse Gas Emissions Sources (in tCO2e) (in percentage)
“HEBYERER B E
BERBHMER BE BRI (LAWEET) (Ao k)
Scope 2 Indirect Emission
HIE2MEHER
Purchased electricity 4,226.59
BEEN
85%
Purchase of natural gas 21.85
Scope 3 Other Indirect Emission
RS 3HE fth B HE
Paper waste disposal 35.69
EREE
Water consumption 56.03
P 2%
FA7K
Business air travel 3.43
PRI RAT AR
Total
o,
. 4,971.78 100%

Note 1:  Emission factors were made by reference to Appendix 27 of the MizE1 - BRRAMBEIN  BEM ARSI LR BH 2
Main Board Listing Rules and their referred documentation as EXHRER EMREFES TR -
set out by the Stock Exchange, unless stated otherwise.

Note 2:  Combined margin emission factor of 0.63 tCO2/MWh was used fisk2 : ERBEAEREREMBEEE HUESEBERY
for purchased electricity in Guangdong Province of the PRC. MEZS0.638 — G bR EE IR LT

=

Note 3:  Emission factor for combustion of natural gas and diesel for MizE3 : EESRRORERARME R ZHERR
stationary source were calculated with made reference to GHG - REZAEREXEEZRENETE
Emissions from Stationary Combustion (Chinese), provided by TRHIBREIR B ) R E R METE T A
the Greenhouse Gas Protocol. (h30) | RetE -

Note 4:  The above emission data does not include the removal of CO: MisEs © b ut BEREIR T B 45 A Bl Yk A ok i 8H e0 —

contributed by recycling of paper.

afLhx -

The Group’s activities contributed to 4,971.78 tonnes (0.22
tC0O2/m?) of carbon dioxide equivalent (carbon dioxide,
methane, nitrous oxide and hydrofluorocarbons) emission
during the reporting period. With the Group’s effort in
recycling of paper, a total of 1,050.87 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent was removed, the carbon dioxide
equivalent emission after removal was 3,899.06 tonnes

(017 tCO2/m?).

EREHRN AEERNEHHLEE
4,971.78MB(0.22W8 /" F5K) —E Lk E
2 (8t Bl S/l LITEM
1Ea) BEm - FBTE RO U EEA - B ff
S T71,050.87ME —E(LIRE & - KA
B & tiix € = P M A3,899.06ME(0.17
WE,FHK) e
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Natural Gas, Petrol and Diesel

Apart from natural gas and petrol consumption mentioned
above, the Group also consumed diesel for generators, but it
had no significant contribution to the carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions.

Refrigerants

270 kg of HCFC-22/R22 were used in air conditioning system
during the reporting period, contributing to 488.70 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent emissions.

Paper Consumption

Paper Consumption 7.291t
Total Emission from Paper Disposal 35.69 tCO2e
Paper Collected for Recycling 218.93t

Total Emission reduced from 1,050.87 tCO2e

Paper Recycling

* For consistency, all CO2e emitted from paper consumption and removed
from paper recycling are calculated based on paper waste disposed
at landfills (referenced from Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange)

The Group distributes paper according to the monthly paper
consumption of different departments with registered record. A
total of 7.29 tonnes of paper was used for daily office operation
such as printing of documents, contracts, order forms, technical
drawings and meeting notes. The Group strives to reduce paper
consumption by:

. Developing management software to support establishment
of a paperless office;

Using recycled paper;
. Adopting double-sided printing; and

. Maintaining printers, copiers, and fax machines to avoid
wastage of paper due to poor printing quality.

Office waste paper involving confidential information was
shredded and disposed of. Only waste paper packaging
materials (a total of 218.93 tonnes) were collected by licensed
recyclers for recycling, which contributed to a removal of
1,050.87 tonnes of equivalent carbon dioxide emission.
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Business Air Travel

Employees travel by air for exhibitions and meeting their
colleagues, suppliers and customers. The Group keeps track of
their business air travels and avoids travelling by air whenever
possible. During the reporting period, its business air travels
had contributed a total of 3.43 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent emission.

(iii)

(iv)
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B BRITHCRE
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Hazardous Waste (iii) BEEEY
Wastes Generated(in %)

Hazardous Wastes BEEEY BRYELE (LD LG
Thinner R 49%
Activated carbon JBEVE M R 20%
Emulsifier BEFLIER 14%
Metal containers for thinner and paint SHIER - MR R R R R 4%
Oil-containing waste and filter EMEEE R 4%
Alcohol and oil-containing fabric SRS - RAREM 4%
Lubricating oil - i 2%
Fluorescent lamp RBEEE 2%
Dust from PCB production RELFFR AR EE 1%

The Group generated a total of 5.07 tonnes of hazardous NEBHEASO/MEEEREEZEY (0.22F

waste (0.22kg/m?). The major hazardous wastes generated T EHK) REBEEXENEEZEREY

by the Group were thinner, activated carbon and emulsifier TEAKED SEMERMIAAE - SR

which were used for cleaning of electronic products, REFEMDE - PEAEIE N 2 BRI 58

treatment of emissions and operation of air compression BT BEREMTGFREZEEEY AR

equipment respectively. Hazardous wastes were stored A WEFBKRERSFREMK - K&

in the hazardous waste containers and collected by BigENRBFRMARRSELAREESE

licensed collectors twice a year. The Group will strive to LI

reduce generation of hazardous waste through upgrading

technologies whenever possible.

Non-hazardous Waste (iv) EEREEY

The Group generated a total of 25.36 tonnes (1.11kg/m?)
of domestic waste which was mainly composed of food
waste generated from the canteen operation. All food
waste was collected by villagers to use for fish feeds.
Other recyclable materials (including waste packaging
and raw materials) were collected either by recyclers or
suppliers.

In the canteen operation, the Group banned the use
of disposable tableware and managed canteen food
through its developed system. Employees must order
their meals through the digital ordering system which
enables preparation of meals based on the received
orders. Employees can also order meals according to their
needs to avoid food wastage at source.

RNEBHEA25368 (11T, FH
K) EEREY EERFEAREMNER -
FrEEs%aN REIBIERAR - Efr]E
Wt R (BIEEENBEYEAM R R
B e skt E R IR o

“‘ﬁjiﬁ AREBZEIHFER— XM
THBERGERERENREY - 81

EEEH BT ERFIBER  UER

ﬁéﬁ BIEAIZRACHSE
CERSEREIRERY) o

<y P
Hﬂ%
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@M

Use of Resources

Reducing energy use, reducing resources consumption
and enhancing utilisation are the Group’s principles
in managing its use of resources. The Group has a
management policy regarding the use of energy and
resources such as electricity, natural gas, petrol and
diesel, water and paper.

Energy Consumption

Consumption

BIRMEM
AEEEREREMANTHE - BLEER
HIE B BRER  BRMAEX - A&
BHIETHE - BEEABREKRMEIR (1
B RAR - UM 5h - KFRE
HER ©

BEIROH#E

Consumption

Distribution Intensity

(in %) (in KWh/m?)

Energy Consumption BEIFUHFE D BEFHERE
Sources HETR (A LEE) (AT REFEHKE)
Electricity BN 92% 292.89
Natural Gas RAR, 5% 15.71
Petrol i 3% 8.55
Diesel i 0% 0.17

The energy use involved in the Group’s operation included REBLEFMERONEREES ] - XA

the consumption of electricity, natural gas, petrol and
diesel. The Group consumed a total of 7,268,593.83 k\Wh
(317.32 kWh/m?) during the reporting period.

Electricity

Electricity consumed by the Group is supplied by the
national electricity grid. The administration department
keeps track of the consumption and informs responsible
departments if abnormal consumption is found. A total
of 6,708,868 kWh was consumed during the reporting
period. Different departments of the Group maintained
equipment in good operation condition, controlled
lightings and air conditioner’s’ temperature to reduce
electricity consumption. The Group also used evaporative
coolers rather than air conditioners in the canteen and
was planning to install electricity monitoring devices to
monitor and record real-time electricity data, so as to
explore opportunities for optimising energy efficiency.

In the manufacturing area, lightings have been gradually
changing from traditional lightings to LED lightings
with higher efficiency. The Group has installed over 300
energy-saving lightings during the reporting period,
which contributed to a saving of 2,000 kWh of electricity
consumption.
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(i)

(iii)

Natural gas, Petrol and Diesel

The Group keeps record of its consumption of natural gas,
petrol and diesel. During the reporting period, 36,417m?
of natural gas, 22,112 L of petrol and 390 L of diesel were
consumed. The administration department, the electrical
and mechanical technicians and the logistic department
work together to avoid wastage of natural gas, petrol and
diesel due to malfunctioned or deteriorated equipment,
generators and vehicles.

Water Consumption

The Group consumed freshwater supplied by the
municipal freshwater supplier. Water is mainly consumed
for domestic use and the canteen operation. Water
consumption of the Group during the reporting period
was 94,660m® (4.13m*/m?. The Group encourages
water conservation and reduces water wastage through
inspections and maintenance of the water supply network.

In the reporting period, auto-flush systems have been
installed in restroom urinals in the manufacturing area
to reduce flush water wastage. This contributed to a flush
water usage reduction of 8% as compared to the year
before this reporting period.

Packaging Materials
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(iii)
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BEME

Consumption Distribution (in %)

Packaging Materials aEME MEAES M (LB DR
Paper 4 70%
Wood 7N 16%
Plastic B 7%
Sponge ST 7%

Upon customer’s agreement, the Group adopts recyclable
materials as packaging materials. During the reporting
period, the Group had consumed a total of 617.58 tonnes
of paper, wooden crates, cushioning sponge, plastic
blisters and plastic bags for products packaging.

KEFRE  AEEKRAEKRHESR
HME EREBHN - AEBMHRENE
mBEME - B RFE B8 T
ML - £617.580F -
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B. SOCIAL B.
1. Employment and Labour Practices 1.
(i) Employment (i)

Total Employees and Turnover

The Group had a total number of 1,586 employees as of
31 December 2017, in which all employees were full-time
employees from the PRC.

Distribution Of Employees by Gender
EEMRIZ e

40%

B Female = Male
egi Bt

Distribution of Employees by Age Group
BEFRD M

1%

9%

24%

B 18-25 B 26-35 I 36-45
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A total of 942 employees left the Group in the reporting period
(average turnover rate: 5.74%)".

Turnover Rate by Gender

MRER (BLERIE)

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%

10%

0%
Male
Xl

Female

gk

Employee Benefits and Welfare

The Group abides by the Labour Law of the PRC and provides
social insurance, subsidies, holidays and other welfare
according to the statutory requirement. Employment contract
terms were stipulated under the principles of fairness,
voluntarism, mutual consent, integrity and credibility. The
Group provides employees with competitive compensation and
discretionary bonus. The regular work hours are 40 hours per
week, with overtime pay calculated according to the specified
equations in the Employee Handbook. Salary adjustment
is performed annually according to the financial results of
the Group, work performance of individual employee and the
market trend. Employees are entitled to casual leave, annual
leave, marriage leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, lactation
break, sick leave and compassionate leave. Employees are also
provided with share option, subsidised meals and temporary
accommodation if necessary. No material non-compliance in
relation to employment laws and regulations was recorded
during reporting period.

1 The average turnover rate is calculated by averaging the monthly turnover
rates. Monthly turnover rate is calculated by number of employees who left
the Group in a specific month/total number of employees in the previous
month*100%. Employees who leave the Group within a month is not
counted.

I T
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KB RERRE (FHRKERRL74%) ' -

Turnover Rate by Age Group
AR (LLFRREH)
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Labour Standards

In pursuance of the employment contract, the Group’s
regulations and policies, the Labour Law and other related
national laws of the PRC, there was no child labour nor forced
labour working in the Group. The job application requirement
specifies that job applicants must be at least 18 years old.
To ensure that job applicants can meet the age requirement,
identities of job applicants are verified against their valid
identity documents, relevant permits and certificates.
The human resources department is required to carry out
background checks to authenticate information provided by
job applicants and is required to fill in forms that confirm
hired employees have met the age requirement. No material
non-compliance in relation to laws and regulations regarding
prevention of child and forced labour was recorded during
reporting period.

Equal Opportunity

When there is a job vacancy, the Group recruits internally
before recruiting externally. Recruitment process is carried out
according to the Group’s regulations on employee recruitment
management. The Group provides equal opportunities for
employees in respect of recruitment, job advancement,
training and development, etc. Employees are not discriminated
against or deprived of such opportunities on the basis of
race, nationality, religion, physical condition, disability, gender,
pregnancy, sexual orientation, political status, age and any
other discrimination prohibited by applicable law. Employees
shall not act in discriminatory manner or they can be subject
to disciplinary actions.
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(ii)

(iii)

Employee Relations

The Group believes that strong communication is
a prerequisite for effective management. Regular
communication at different levels is maintained in
accordance with the Group’s guideline for standardised
communication management. The guideline helps new
employees adapt to the work environment, existing
employees acquire adequate support and the Group gain
feedback and suggestions from departing employees.
The Group communicates with 100% of all types of
employee categories (new employees, existing employees
and departing employees). Means of standardized
communication includes trainings, individual and group
interviews and phone calls. Adequacy of communication
is examined through random sampling surveys and
interviews. The sampling or interview rate is not lower
than 20%.

Apart from the standardised communication procedures,
the Group also organizes celebration activities, gatherings
and lucky draws to foster employees’ sense of belonging.

Employee Health and Safety

Occupational Health and Safety

With the OHSAS 18000 certification, the Group
has established standardised procedures for its
occupational health and safety system. Employees
exposing to high occupational hazards are provided with
occupational health checks and their health records are
well-maintained. Personal protective equipment (“PPE”)
is provided by the Group and employees are only allowed
to enter the production area when all necessary PPE has
been put on. All results from the annual occupational
hazards and risk factors assessment have met the
required standards and no material non-compliance in
relation to health and safety laws and regulations was
recorded during reporting period.

The Group gives special attention to fire hazards in its
workplace. An on-site fire station has been set up to
provide prompt support to fire accidents. Fire safety is
also ensured through regular fire drills and maintenance
of electrical and fire equipment. During the reporting
period, three fire drills have been held. Employees were
able to evacuate within two minutes and use various types
of fire-fighting equipment from past drill experiences.
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(iv)

Days
Occupational Health and Safety Data in 2017 2017EREEERZ2HE X
Work related fatality [ESI T 0
Work injury cases >3 days ATEBAZR=ZETIERNEZR 5
Work injury cases <=3 days ATHBEET DR =EATERNEZR 7
Lost days due to work injury EITEERTIERBE 195

The 12 work injury cases in the reporting period were
all minor injuries. In response to the injury cases, the
Group has analysed cause of the injuries and developed
corresponding measures to avoid reoccurrence.

Food Health and Safety

The Group follows its regulations regarding canteen
management, hygiene and safety management to ensure
that food served in the canteen is of high quality and safe
to eat. It only purchases food materials that are fresh,
hygienic, clean and in compliance with all applicable
national standards and regulations. Samples of each dish,
rice and soup are kept 48 hours every day for record and
testing if necessary. Food premises are sanitized regularly
and inspected every day. There were no complaints
regarding food quality in the reporting period.

Development and Training

People are the most treasurable assets of the Group.
Investing in people is one of the Group’s focuses and a
key factor contributing to the Group’s continuous growth.
The Group therefore provides comprehensive training and
development opportunities to its employees:

a.  Orientation training — To familiarise employees with
the Group’s objectives, culture, rules and regulations,
safety and product-related knowledge on the first
day of work;

b.  Pre-job training - to familiarise new employees or
transferred employees with their new duties;

Annual Report 2017 %

(iv)

EREHR ABETN2RIBEF X
BEHRER - ARECHTHEFEFRF
ERRA - YHEREER  ABREMF
BREE -

RYRERZZ
AEEETERREEE FLEMNZEE
BEORE  WERREMHENRYRE
BR AIZERA - REMBENRY
BRE  BEBR ANEMEER
MBI RIZEFER - MRS ER
5~ RERFG RO - (RIF48/1NE - AR
EBERERETCEMRA - RESTEH
HE - WEBRETRE - EREHA - R
BEREBRRYME MR -

R KRIEI

AT RAGEREEEE - RABR 1
BRTERENEREM 2 — LRED
SEFEERN-EAEERE A K
SERETEIRH‘EEZEMNZIIMERE

&

a. MBI -EEIEAEIERSE
AZKEMBRE X REMT
A AR BT MERNFE

b. MAIFI —EAABKERNET
AT B



C. Internal and external trainings - To ensure
employees participate in continuous personal,
vocational and other technical skills development;
and

d. Key operation training - To ensure designated
employees obtained permits (through examinations)
before performing key operations. Designated
employees are required to take refreshment
trainings regularly to maintain their professional
competence.

The Group arranges trainings according to needs of
employees, which were identified annually by individual
departments. Apart from classroom trainings, e-learning
system is also in place to cater for different needs of
employees.
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Training and Development Data in 2017

2017 B R BRBIE

Total Number of Employees
Total Training Hours

Percentage of Employees trained by Gender

Male

Female

Percentage of Employees trained by
Employment Category

Senior Management

Middle Management

Frontline and Other Employees

Average Training Hours Completed per
Employee by Gender

Male

Female

Average Training Hours Completed per
Employee by Employee Category

Senior Management

Middle Management

Frontline and Other Employees

®IEE AH 1,586
4R 1551 85 44,868
ZIEEF DL - BMRIF

B 186%
pegis 146%

ZIEEESL - HESERIG

SR EIRE 100%
hREEE 86%
B4R R HME S 165%

BREESVFHIRIEGH - EURIE

B4 32
74 26
BEETHIZINE - RESERG

RARERE 9
PREIRE 23
B4R R HM(ES 29
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(i)

Distribution of Suppliers by Geographical Regions

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

Equipment or materials are purchased based on
specifications, quality and safety performance of
equipment, reputation, after-sales service and delivery
time of the supplier. The Group compares different
suppliers to select qualified suppliers (based on their
product specifications, product compliances, production
management, quality management and also corporate
social responsibility performances) before the Group
enters into contract with the qualified suppliers.

When selecting energy or water consuming equipment,
the Group places preferences to energy efficient and
water-saving equipment according to its management
policy on energy and resources use. During the reporting
period, the Group sourced its major materials from
suppliers of the following geographical regions?.

RiED WHERE T

(i)

gELRX

HrEREE

BBREIMAE > FEERBORSE
HBERRE2ERE  URHEANER &
BREMXERBE - AEBEEGERH
EBRIAHA  SLBRIRAHEER - £
BEEMBE EmaflE £ETE -
HEEHE URBEHERIHRE MU
BHEEROHER -

EERRERNEES  AEERRR
BB AR MA R SRR - BEE
BRI A A - ISR - A
B 1 A T 7 D ) 0 7 40 B
$i2 o

5%
1%
2%
2%
44%
4%
5%
5%
32%
B Mainland China = Hong Kong UK ® USA ® Taiwan B Germany | Singapore M France ™ Others
EAlTPNS E mE EH =) | BE ¥ EE HAh,
2 Other geographical regions include suppliers (less than 1% each) in 2 HihmOESRAE  NE % FEH &

Malaysia, India, Korea, Ireland, Thailand, Italy, Japan, Israel, Austria,
Denmark, Australia, Spain, Samoa, Philippines and Holland.
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(ii)

Product Responsibility

Product Assurance and Recall

The Group is committed to ensuring its product quality
and reliability. Product quality is controlled and managed
through laboratory tests, Restriction of Hazardous
Substances Directive (“ROHS”) spectrum inspections,
automatic optical inspections, burn-in tests, and unit
under tests, etc. Products and its incoming components
are examined for not less than three times. There are
responsible persons for quality assurance of incoming
materials, intermediate products and final products.

Upon receipt of complaints, the Group responds in 24
hours and provides analysis reports to complainant
within seven working days. There was no product recalled
due to safety and health reasons and no material
non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
product health and safety recorded during the reporting
period; 39 complaints have been received, of which all
complaints had been resolved with corrective actions and
preventive measures taken.

Intellectual Property Rights and Information Security
Intellectual property (“IP”) includes trademarks, service
marks, copyrights, rights in inventions and rights
in know-how etc. The Group registered patents and
copyrights for its inventions including its technologies,
software and systems. It is also committed to using third
party licensed rights and IP assets rightfully without
infringement of any applicable laws and regulations.
Suppliers also undertake to respect IP rights and act in
accordance with the suppliers’ code of conduct developed
by the Group.

The Group has policy on customer property control.
Property under protection does not include only tangible
properties but also IP rights, personal information and
confidential information. Non-disclosure agreements are
signed between the Group and clients if necessary. No
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in
relation to customer data protection and privacy was
recorded during reporting period.
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(iii) KEE
BREAEENNEBEHRE  2EEIEE

(iii) Anti-corruption
According to the Group’s anti-corruption policy, all

88

employees shall abide by the laws and regulations of
the PRC and shall not engage in any illegal activities.
Employees shall uphold the code of ethics, advocate fair
competition and act against bribery. Any bribery, fraud,
money laundering and embezzlement are prohibited.
Employees must not accept or request any improper
benefits including banquets, gifts, securities, valuables
and high-expenditure entertainment activities from
business partners, suppliers and merchants, etc.

When there is any alleged case in violation of laws,
regulations, code of conduct or Group’s policies, the
Group will investigate and impose disciplinary actions
upon offenders after verification. Employees have the
responsibilities to report any wrongdoing through the
Group’s whistleblowing hotline.

Mr. Felix Fok

Company Secretary
Tel:+852 2355 9926
Email:felix@triohk.com.hk

Mr. Edwin Cheung

Chairman of the Audit Committee
Tel:+852 9126 0524
Email:edwin@trimpf.com

Whistle-blowers are protected from retaliation and their
information will be kept strictly confidential.

The Group was in compliance with all applicable laws
on prohibiting corruption and bribery of the PRC. There
was no concluded legal case regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees during the
reporting period.
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(ii)

(iii)

Community Investment

The Group is committed to creating friendship, care and
respect among our community. It mainly contributes
through sponsorship.

Poverty Alleviation

On 13 January 2017, the Dongchongzhen’s city authority
organized a Dongchong Town Charity Party 2017 to raise
fund for poverty alleviation in town. More than 800 guests
including villagers, representatives from corporates,
organisations and the government attended the party.
The Group sponsored a total of RMB50,000 to the poverty
alleviation fund during the event.

Protecting Workers’ Rights

The Nansha District General Union (the “Union”)
safeguards rights and interests of workers, deals with
labour disputes, conducts collective bargaining and offers
assistance, training and development to workers. To
support the Union’s operation, the Group had sponsored
more than RMB9,000 to the Union in July 2017 for
supporting people in need in Nansha District.

Caring for the Community

The Group cares for its community including the elderlies,
children and farmers in the villages. It sponsored
activities for the elderlies (RMB5,000) in January
2017 and celebrative activities for children during the
International Children’s Day (RMB3,000). The Group also
actively participated in the voluntary blood donation to
discharge individual and corporate social responsibilities.
In August 2017, a total of 60 employees participated in
the Dongchong Town blood donation activity initiated by
the Group.

InJanuary 2017, sugar cane farmers were under pressure
due to poor sales performance of their produces. The
Group purchased 3,000 kg of the sugar cane dead stock
directly from the farmers through its procurement process
to ease their financial burden. Sugar canes were then
distributed to employees for free.
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To the members of Trio Industrial Electronics Group Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Trio Industrial
Electronics Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 97 to 187, which comprise:

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to the net
realisable value assessment of inventories.

Key Audit Matter

BRETEE

RRNER
BAEREFEGAMASRMHN (CEBEAE
A) EITER - RIEZXFEATAENELID
EARSE [ BB R A M RRARENE
£ WMo EE—rEa -

BFRRE - RSN ETREELT R E
B ARMNETT IR AR -

Bt
REBESMAGSEMN(EEXS AR
SSAD A TEE R RFABLIN EE
C WEETTAFMHEMERERET -

REETER
RRETFHEREBEMANEXRAE KoY
TG A BRRNEARAEENFTR - &
LEFITERMBABERGAMBHRRILA
EAFETREEN - LM TS HELFHIEM
BERENER -

RVEET R BANHRETEBRBNEE
BT R F R -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

RAWESTNNEERRETSH

Net realisable value assessment of inventories

Refer to notes 4(b) and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements

FENTERFEFME
FRHRFE AN T 40) 17

Our procedures in relation to the net realisable
value assessment of inventories included:

Understanding, evaluating and testing the key
controls in relation to inventory costing and
net realisable value assessment ;

BAsFEN 2R FEMGETHRFEE ¢

TR HERANTERAREHTERHEY
R Bz
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Key Audit Matter
BARESSEE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has inventories
of HK$156 million, which were stated at lower of
cost and net realisable value.

The determination of net realisable value
required judgement to be made by management
on the estimated selling price, estimated cost to
completion and other cost necessary to make the
sale including but not limited to marketing, selling
and distribution costs.

We focused on this area because of the significance
of the balances and the judgements and estimates
involved.

RoZ—tE+-A=+—B AEBNGE
BB - TR R T R E R BIE 2 55

7%1565
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETNAEERARENSE

. Tested, on a sample basis, whether invoiced
costs for raw materials have been correctly
recorded and that the allocation of directly
attributable costs has been correctly
calculated;

Assessed the reasonableness of estimated
selling price determined by management
by testing, on a sample basis, the sales
subsequent to the year end. If subsequent
sales were not available, we compared the
estimated selling price against the most
recent selling price prior to the year end and
assessed the impact of recent price trends for
these inventories;

+ Assessed the reasonableness of (i) the
estimated costs to completion by comparing
to the historical costs to completion and (ii)
other costs (including marketing, selling and
distribution) by comparing to costs incurred in
previous years.

We found the judgements and assumptions used
by management in determining the net realisable
value of inventories were supported by available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

. HEEEMRASIHTEENBEEREL
%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%méﬁﬁo

. g%%%mﬁ%%%@ﬁgwm%%ﬁﬁ
HiEw o RIBPIERMENEE @ #E
Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ%%iﬁ?ﬁm
M femA e SRy BEENKELE
BRNELABARE - WRBEMABRTFHEE
KT\E&%’V_{ CRIB M EE B RE TR

ﬁ%%&%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%#%ﬁ%ﬁ
- BREBHEMNBEETR  BAIRMAEEE
%%ﬂ%mﬁﬁ B AE TR R BRI
Bh¥RE B EPTESHOB|ETERRE - A1 &
KRERESBERAEEH BEXETERFE

- FESAMBHRRNERBIRSA - &
ﬂWm'@%&% AR ARG AR
BHRERBRZZHMEE -

- B BEEANERAEBTINIBEER
EERFER BENFRE  UEHES
HBHREERER - BMEE B5£EH
PRI BEEMEIT - RPIABAER
FIEREEME -

BEMEER)  RMAEBEZZBESHAENE
EJr%ﬁE CRHERH EAFRABRRFET TR

B BAPIEE ST R R R B B E A
Eﬁﬁ%°

BMTRMEZZESRIER  HHRMER
EEBBEEREREEBERENR - WM
HEAESEMERAELERMBE LN
EEFEMEMEE - AREEAOBER T HE
BB IR M ETT TR B

Annual Report 2017 “E%f

95



96

TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT % M #% & Al i &5

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ms Yau Yu Xin, Amelia.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRSTEERRAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #R& 2 H W& &

(For the year ended 31 December 2017) (BHE=T—+tF+-A=1+—HIEFE)

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
btaE FET FET
Revenue W as 6 788,042 744,899
Cost of sales 4 R 7 (552,142) (536,403)
Gross profit FEH| 235,900 208,496
Other (loss)/ income Htb (B8), WA 6 (2,920) 5,955
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER 7 (17179) (15,689)
Administrative expenses THAX 7 (115,315) (90,054)
Other operating expenses HEms s 7 (4,285) (1,895)
Profit from operations AR 96,201 106,813
Finance expenses, net B % F 58 10 (9,053) (9,458)
Profit before income tax B PT1S L Bl ) 87,148 97,355
Income tax expense FrigHif 2 11 (17,140) (22,098)
Profit for the year F R 70,008 75,257
Other comprehensive income HEm2mEkas
Items that will not be reclassified HET BN HES
subsequently to profit or loss: PBamhyEE -
Fair value gains on revaluation BT REFEH
of land and building, net of tax NFEWE (NFE) 1,279 1,493
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZ W R 4258 71,287 76,750
Earnings per share BRAF
- Basic and diluted, HK cents — ERREE B 12 9.01 10.083

The notes on pages 101 to 187 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

F1012187HENKI AR BRENT T 5 F

B e
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEEERAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %R & Bf # Ak % &=

(As at 31 December 2017) (R=ZZT—+F+=-A=+—H)

2017 2016
—E—t5F —E-RF
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
k=3 FET FET
Assets BE
Non-current assets IREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB NEE 14 44,729 47,756
Financial asset at fair value BN ER AR
through profit or loss HEREE 15 2,651 2,535
Prepayment TERTRIE 19 418 430
47,798 50,721
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 155,597 101,479
Trade and other receivables B 5 Nk E MW 18 139,345 114,397
Prepayments and deposits ERFIERES 19 12,286 10,979
Restricted bank deposits 2R B ERITIF K 20 8,084 10,079
Bank and cash balances RITRIR B MR 20 161,626 6,569
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 476,938 | 243,503
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R H b T 5B 21 163,165 99,555
Borrowings B 22 17,994 18,972
Finance lease payables B E RS FERSRIE 23 1,849 3,472
Derivative financial instruments PTEERMTA 26 - 721
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFRS i aE 5,459 13,037
188,467 135,757
Total assets less current liabilities AERERABAE 336,269 158,467
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 27 3,705 3,712
3,705 3,712
Net assets EEFE 332,564 154,755
Equity s
Share capital &N 24 281,507 145172
Reserves G 28 51,057 9,583
Total equity AR 332,564 154,755

The financial statements on pages 97 to 187 were approved F97FE187B MR CHEFTeN T —
by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2018 and were signed  nE=fg -+ =F# & THATESAEE

on its behalf

Lai Yiu Wah
RRE

Director

EFE

financial statements.

FERFE

Tai Leung Lam
HRM

Director

EZE

The notes on pages 101 to 187 are an integral part of these E101E187 BT AR EREN T A H 2
EilSa)
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRSTEERRAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &R &= E )k

(For the year ended 31 December 2017) (BHE=FT—+tF+-A=1+—HIEFE)

Share
Share Other  Statutory Revaluation option  Retained
Note capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

Hi e ARk iERE  EGER  RRERE  REEW it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK§:000
TAT FAT T FAT FAT TET FAT

Balance at 1 January 2017 KI5+
—A-Hfg 145,172 (125,162) 6,077 19,785 - 108,883 154,755
Revaluationsurplus onbuilding ~ EFEREH - - - 1,419 - - 1,419
Taxeffect of revaluation surplus ~ EfEREHEZE = - = (140) = = (140)
Realisation of revaluation surplus ~ EREfE B4 = - - (891) - 1,038 147
Contributions by/ BENE/ (EEA
(distribution to) owners: 1EHAIE) -
Issuance of shares by public BRAREEEARY
offering, net of expenses TBHEY % 136,335 - - 136,335
Equity-settled share-based NEREERENA
transaction ERETHRS 2% - - - 40
Profit for the year FER - - 70,008 70,008
Dividends paid ERRE 13 = = (30,000) (30,000)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
TZR=t-B&# 281507 (125,162) 6,077 20,173 40 149,029 332,564
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZ2—75-A-H
g3 - 20,010 6,077 18,765 - 80,075 124,927
Revaluation surplus on building ~ BFEREMH - - - 1,656 - - 1,656
Taxeffect of revaluation surplus ~ BfERSHETE - - - - - (163)
Realisation of revaluation surplus ~ EREfB% - - 551 78
Contributions by/ BEANEE /(BN
(distribution to) owners: 1ELAI) -
Issuance of shares upon PR ERTLER
incorporation 24 - - - -
Issuance of shares upon RERRERY
reorganisation 24 145,172 (145,172) - -
Profit for the year EfgH - - 75,257 75,257
Dividends paid ERRE 13 - - (47.000) (47,000)
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZE-RE
T-A=1T-H&% 145172 (125162) 6,077 19,785 108,883 154,795

The notes on pages 101 to 187 are an integral part of these 1012187 A MW 3T AR KR E a5 =
financial statements. R4
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ZZ8BHERE R
(For the year ended 31 December 2017) (BE-Z—+F+-_A=+—HILtEE)
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E-REF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaE FEIT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities RETEBHESRE
Cash generated from operations KEZEESIRE 31 89,117 87,855
Finance expenses paid BRI (9,255) (9,5619)
Income tax paid ERFTEH (24,717) (18,628)
Net cash generated from KEFEBMSRE
operating activities pEE= 55,145 59,708
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEESRE
Net decrease/(increase) in restricted SR FIRITIF 5K
bank deposits WA (i)
R 1,995 (517)
Bank interest received EERITF & 39 30
Purchases of property, plant BEVE BERX
and equipment B (5,209) (4,582)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BERE
plant and equipment RABFTIS A 18 66
Settlement on derivative miirﬂl,\,u#
financial instruments (577) (10,922)
Net cash used in investing activities REFBMARSE
HEE (3,734) (15,925)
Cash flows from financing activities mEITHEERE
Shares issued pursuant to the BIBEAFHES
public offering BIIRG 155,000 -
Transaction costs attributable to the # Hﬂ%?ﬂfﬁfﬂ’] N
public offering debited to equity BRI FHHA (18,665)
Balances with shareholders Hx%%*ﬁ‘}‘ (88) 11,776
(Repayments of)/proceeds from B (&),
borrowings FrigRI8 (978) 2,038
Repayments of finance lease payables  (EEREHEER
IE (1,623) (789)
Dividends paid B S (30,000) (49,000)
Net cash used in financing activities mMEEEMARS
HEE 103,646 (35,975)
Net increase in cash and HeRELEEY
cash equivalents R EE 155,057 7,808
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January A—F—HBWERER
REZEEY 6,569 (1,239)
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—B=+—8%®
at 31 December RERRESEEY 161,626 6,569
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERELSZEBYIH
Time deposit up to three months REA=E A KA THY
EHIER 20 90,000 -
Bank and cash balances RITNIBR e ER 20 71,626 6,569
161,626 6,569
The notes on pages 101 to 187 are an integral part of these 1012187 B WM T AR ERKR N AT D E
financial statements. R4y o
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1.2

TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B 18 3RR Mzt

GENERAL INFORMATION AND REORGANISATION

General information

Trio Industrial Electronics Group Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong
and listed (the “Listing”) on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 23 November 2017 (the “Listing Date”). The principal
place of business and registered office of the Company is
at Block J, 5/F., Phase Il, Kaiser Estate, 51 Man Yue Street,
Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales
of electronic products. The immediate holding company
of the Company is Trio Industrial Electronics Holding
Limited (“Trio Holding”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability. The Directors
of the Company consider the controlling shareholders of
the Group are Mr. Kwan Tak Sum, Stanley (“Mr. Kwan”), Mr.
Tai Leung Lam (“Mr. Tai”), Mr. Lai Yiu Wah (“Mr. Lai”) and
Mr. Joseph Mac Carthy (“Mr. Mac Carthy”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$’000"), unless
otherwise stated.

Reorganisation

Prior to the incorporation of the Company and the
completion of the reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
as described below, the Group’s business was carried out
by Trio Engineering Company Limited (“Trio Engineering”),
Panyu Trio Microtronics Co., Ltd. (“Trio Microtronics”) and
Professional Electronics Manufacturing Solutions Limited
(“PEMS”).

1
1.1

1.2

—RERKEA

—REH

HETXETREARAR ([RAAF))
R—FEKRBEEMRINBER AR > R
—E—+Ft+—AZt=B (LHBEH)
EEBMARSAARIR (B =
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IE LR O 2HBIBUE -
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ER] —XREBEZESTMA L
BRAR) - RRRAEFERAAEEREZE
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

1.2

GENERAL INFORMATION AND REORGANISATION
(continued)

Reorganisation (continued)

Prior

to the Listing, the Group underwent the

Reorganisation as detailed below:

(i)

(iii)

On 15 April 2016, the Company was incorporated in
Hong Kong. Upon incorporation, one ordinary share
was allotted and issued to Trio Holding.

On 29 August 2016, the Company purchased the
entire shareholding interests in Trio Engineering
and PEMS from Mr. Kwan, Mr. Tai, Mr. Lai and
Grand Energy Investment Limited (“Grand Energy”)
in consideration of which one ordinary share
in the Company was allotted and issued to Trio
Holding. Since then, the Company holds the entire
shareholding interests in Trio Engineering and
PEMS.

Upon completion of the Reorganisation on 12
September 2016, the Company becomes the holding
company of the subsidiaries now comprising the
Group.

On 3 November 2016, Guangzhou Professional
Electronics Manufacturing Solutions Limited
(“Guangzhou PEMS”) was established as a wholly
foreign owned enterprise under the laws of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with a
registered capital of RMB500,000 and is wholly-
owned by PEMS.

After the Listing, e-Tech Engineering Company Limited

(“e-Tech”) was incorporated in Hong Kong on 20 December
2017 with share capital of HK$10,000 and is wholly-
owned by the Company.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

Basis of presentation

2.1.1 Statement of Compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), and in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, the laws of
Hong Kong) ("HKCO”). These consolidated financial
statements also include applicable disclosure
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

2.1.2Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of land and buildings,
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
and derivative financial instruments, which are
measured at fair value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

2.1
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of presentation (continued)
2.1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)
Amended standards effective in 2017 which are
relevant to the Group’s operations

The following amendments to standards have
been adopted by the Group for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 and do not
have a material impact to the Group.

HKFRSs Annual Improvements
(Amendments) 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 7

Amendments to Recognition of Deferred
HKAS 12 Tax Assets for

Unrealised Losses

New and amended standards effective after 2017
which are relevant to the Group’s operations and yet
to be adopted

The following are new standards and amendments
to standards relevant to the Group that have been
issued but are not effective for the accounting
period beginning 1 January 2017 and are yet to be
adopted:
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTEEERRAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

New and amended standards effective after 2017
which are relevant to the Group’s operations and yet

to be adopted (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEHBEME (£&)
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of presentation (continued)
2.1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

21 E23EE (&)
212 RBEE ()
ﬁA_T FIF B LR BN [F
BB M A R IR BT AT RAS IS 5T
ER ()

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUT BHR 2 #BRE
SHEEN
Annual Improvements Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle 1 January 2018
Project
HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and Measurement of 1 January 2018
Share-based Payment Transactions
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and 1 January 2018
Advance Consideration
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an To be determined
(Amendments) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
BANBRELERFESEER —NEE-T-NFEBZFELE —Z2-\5—H—H
BEAMBREERE 2R (BFTER)  URHAERNRRZINIBERITE —2-\&—H—H
BBM B RELRFEIR TEIA —E-N\F—H—H
BBMBRELERNFE15% REEFERZBA —E-N\F—H—H
BE (BRMBRERE INERZ B RTERNRE —2-\—A—H
ZBE®)- REFE2%R
BB (BRMBRERRE PR ETE M /R 1E —Z-NF—-H—-H
ZE88)- 2BF2H
BEMBRELNE 169 HE —Z-h&—A—H
BRI BREERE 105 R REEHHBENANELEREZFEDN FE
EHEGERIFE 285 (BFTAR) BEHEITE
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

21

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of presentation (continued)

2.1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)
New and amended standards effective after 2017
which are relevant to the Group’s operations and yet
to be adopted (continued)

(i)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”

Nature of changes

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”, addresses
the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. It replaces the guidance in HKAS
39 that relates to the classification and
measurement of financial instruments.
HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes three
primary measurement categories for financial
assets:amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income and fair value through
profit or loss. The basis of classification
depends on the entity’s business model and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. Investments in equity
instruments are required to be measured at fair
value through profit or loss with the irrevocable
option at inception to present changes in
fair value in other comprehensive income
not recycling. There is now a new expected
credit losses model that replaces the incurred
loss impairment model used in HKAS 39. For
financial liabilities there were no changes to
classification and measurement except for
the recognition of changes in own credit risk
in other comprehensive income, for liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss. HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for
hedge effectiveness but contemporaneous
documentation is still required. Management
is in the process of assessing the impact of
HKFRS 9. Measurement of impairment loss on
trade receivable based on an expected credit
losses model requires the use of historical data
as well as forward looking information and
may have an impact to the Group’s financial
statements.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTEEERRAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of presentation (continued)

2.1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)
New and amended standards effective after 2017
which are relevant to the Group’s operations and yet
to be adopted (continued)

(i)

(ii)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” (continued)

Potential impact

Based on the assessment undertaken to date,
the adoption of expected credit losses model
may result in earlier recognition of allowance
for impairment of trade and other receivables.
Other than the adoption of expected credit
losses model and disclosure changes, the
adoption of HKFRS 9 is currently not expected
to have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

Nature of changes

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” replaces the previous revenue
standards HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11
“Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations on revenue recognition.
HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining when to recognise
revenue and how much revenue to recognise
through a 5-step approach: (i) identity the
contract(s) with customer; (i) identify separate
performance obligations in a contract; (iii)
determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate
transaction price to performance obligations;
and (v) recognise revenue when performance
obligation is satisfied. The core principal is that
a company should recognise revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to
the customer in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. HKFRS 15 provides specific guidance
on capitalisation of contract cost and license
arrangements. It also includes a cohesive set
of disclosure requirements about the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from the entity’s
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
an entity normally recognises revenue when
a performance obligation is satisfied. Impact
on the revenue recognition may arise when
multiple performance obligation are identified.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

21

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of presentation (continued)

2.1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)
New and amended standards effective after 2017
which are relevant to the Group’s operations and yet
to be adopted (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (continued)

Potential impact

Based on the assessment undertaken to date,
the Group does not expect the adoption of
HKFRS 15 would have a material impact other
than presenting more disclosures.

The Group intends to adopt the standard
using the modified retrospective approach
which means that the cumulative impact of
the adoption will be recognised in retained
earnings as of 1 January 2018 and that
comparatives will not be restated.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

Nature of changes

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the statement of financial
position, as the distinction between operating
and finance leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the leased
item) and a financial liability to pay rentals
are recognised. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases. The accounting for
lessors will not significantly change.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTEEERRAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of presentation (continued)

2.1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)
New and amended standards effective after 2017
which are relevant to the Group’s operations and yet
to be adopted (continued)

(iii) HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Potential impact

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group’s operating leases.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$2,556,000 as disclosed in note 30(b). Based
on the preliminary assessment undertaken
to date, it is estimated that the adoption of
HKFRS 16 would result in recognition of right-
of-use assets and financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position
primarily arising from leases of various office,
warehouses and factory. The interest expenses
on the lease liabilities and the depreciation
expenses on the right-of-use assets under
HKFRS 16 will replace the rental charge
under HKAS 17 in the consolidated income
statement. Management expects the adoption
of HKFRS 16 will not have significant impact on
the consolidated financial position and finance
performance of the Group.

The new standard is mandatory for financial
years commencing on or after 1 January 2019.
At this stage, the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date.

Except those mentioned above, the Group anticipates
that the application of the other amendments and
improvements to standards that have been issued
but are not yet effective will have no material impact
on the results of operations and financial position.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combination. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interest issued by the group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of
any assets or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. ldentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investment in subsidiaries is accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The result of subsidiaries
is accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investment in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from this
if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiaries in the

investment

period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amounts of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amounts in the
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

2.3 Segmentreporting

2.4

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the

operating segments, has been identified as the Board of

Directors of the Company that makes strategy decisions

Foreign currency translation

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the Functional Currency”). United
States dollars (“US$”) is the Functional Currency of
principal operating subsidiaries of the Group. The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK$, which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Company.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in financial statements
Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the end of that reporting
period;

(b) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(c) all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Annual Report 2017 %

2 FESHBEBE (B

2.4 HNEBE (F)

(ii)

(iii)

MBBEROR S K &R

SNER BRR 5E AIAR AT
ENHBERNNRTERRESY
EEH HEZFXINERERE
KA INEAHENEREELA
18 1 2 A Y HME W e K B BN AR B
EHEHWERER

EWAT

T #8596 5 2 5 5 R R 2 A
EER (2 Ty RRERREHR
REH) 2 E MBI
ERE R 2IIE -

() SHEBIHBBRAENZE
EEAERRRE R W
R

(o) BHBEmRAZWIZFYE
FE (RIFUFHERL
ﬁ%*%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ”Z%%ﬂr
FEZEENE  EUIS
D H&iIEE&X%E/H\HZE
FHE) R

c) FAMLELZEREBEEE
RE M2 W R o



2.5

TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (except for land and
building) is stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amounts or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amounts of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Land and buildings comprise mainly offices. Land and
buildings are carried at fair values, based on periodic
valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation and impairment losses. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of valuation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amounts of the
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued
amount of the asset.

Revaluation increases of land and buildings are
recognised in the profit or loss to the extent that the
increases reverse previous revaluation decreases of the
same asset. All other revaluation increases are credited
to the property revaluation reserve in the shareholders’
equity. Revaluation decreases that offset previously
revaluation increase of the same asset are charged
against property revaluation reserve directly in equity.
All other decreases are recognised in the profit or loss. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued building,
the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the
property revaluation reserve is transferred directly to
retained profits.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost or
revalued amounts less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Land and buildings 3.33%
Plant and machinery 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Leasehold improvements 20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if necessary, at each reporting
date.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amounts of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Leases

(i)

(ii)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
expensed in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the
leased asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception
of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the consolidated statement of financial position
as finance lease payable. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

2.7

2.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Costs include cost of purchase (including taxes, transport
and handling) net of trade discounts received and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition, and are calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable value is
determined based on estimated selling price less all
estimated costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and
distribution.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised in profit or
loss in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.
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2.9

TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is managed and evaluated
on a fair value basis is classified as financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss. Derivatives are
also categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade and other
receivables”, “restricted bank deposits” and “cash
and cash equivalents”in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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2.9

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date - the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial asset carried at fair value through profit or
loss is initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Loans and receivables are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss is subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the “financial asset at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “other (loss)/income” which
they arise.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group
or the counterparty.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or “events”) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amounts and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amounts of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.
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2

2.10

211

212

213

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The gain
or loss is recognised in “other operating expenses” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less, and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated statement
of financial position, bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities.

Revenue from the sales of goods are recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amounts to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted
at the original effective rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loans and receivables is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Employee benefits

(i) Pension obligations
The Group joined the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for those qualifying employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance, and who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continued)

i)

Pension obligations (continued)
The MPF Scheme
scheme, the assets of which are held in separate
trustee-administered funds. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contribution
has been paid. The Group’s contributions to the
scheme are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. When employees leave
the scheme prior to the full vesting of the employer’s
voluntary contributions, the amount of forfeited
contributions is used to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group.

is a defined contribution

The Group in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
relevant government authorities for its employees
in the PRC and contribute to these plans based on
certain percentage of the salaries of the employees
on a monthly basis, up to a maximum fixed monetary
amount, as stipulated by the relevant government
authorities. The government authorities undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations
payable to all existing and future retired employees
under these plans.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

insurance
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled
within twelve months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
period in which the associated services are rendered
by employees.
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2

217

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services
in exchange for shares or rights over shares of the
Company. The cost of such transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the date at which the entity and another
party (including an employee) agree to a share-based
payment arrangement, being when the entity and the
counterparty have a shared understanding of the terms
and conditions of the arrangement (“Grant Date”). The fair
value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a
reserve within equity. The fair value is determined using
the Binomial Option Pricing Model, taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at fair value
of the goods or services received, except where the fair
value cannot be reliably estimated, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. In all cases, the fair value is measured at the
date the Group obtains the goods or the counterparty
renders the services.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the vesting conditions are to be
fulfilled, ending on the date on which the entitlement of
relevant employees to the award is no longer conditional
on the satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions
(“Vesting Date”). During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest ultimately
is reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior years is charged/credited to
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year of the review, with a corresponding adjustment to the
reserve within equity.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)
Equity-settled transactions (continued)

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be
transferred to share capital. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Taxation

The tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(i) Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period in the
countries where the Group operates and generates
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Taxation (continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the Financial Information.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates. Only when
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group
the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax
liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is
not recognised.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Taxation (continued)

(ii) Deferred income tax (continued)
Outside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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2

2.19

2.20

2.21

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense within “finance expenses, net” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction cost) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will
be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probably that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowings and borrowing costs (continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in which they are incurred.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

2.21

2.22
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Entities within the Group are exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect
to HK$, Euro (“EUR”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from export
sales, purchases, other future commercial
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities
that are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency.

Management has set up a policy to require
the group companies to manage their foreign
exchange risk against their functional
currencies. The group companies do not adopt
formal hedge accounting policy. It manages
its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
the movement of foreign currency rates and
will consider to enter into foreign exchange
contracts to reduce the exposure should the
need arises.

As at 31 December 2017, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5 percent against EUR with
all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December
2017 would have been HK$589,000 (2016:
HK$143,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange loss on translation of EUR
denominated trade and other payables, and
cash and cash equivalents.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTEEERRAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, if the US$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5 percent against
RMB with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2017 would have been HK$5,515,000 (2016:
HK$1,442,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange differences on
translation of RMB denominated trade and
other receivables, deposits, trade and other
payables, and cash and cash equivalents.

Under the Linked Exchange Rate System in
Hong Kong, HK$ is pegged to US$, management
therefore considers that there is no significant
foreign exchange risk with respect to the HK$.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
exposure to foreign exchange risk arising
from certain currency exposures such as Great
British Pound, Singapore dollar, etc. are not
significant.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by cash
held at variable rates. Borrowings obtained
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The Group does not adopt
any interest hedging strategy.

Bank borrowings of the Group were arranged
at floating rates varied with the then prevailing
market condition.

As at 31 December 2017, if interest rates on
borrowings at variable rates had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2017 would have
been HK$16,000 (2016: HK$18,000) lower/
higher as a result of higher/lower net interest
expenses.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

3
3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises mainly from cash deposited
at banks, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit
risk is considered to be low as the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit rating agencies.

Management makes periodic assessment on the
recoverability of trade and other receivables based
on historical payment records, the length of the
overdue period, the financial strength of the debtors
and whether there are any disputes with the debtors.
The Group’s historical experience in collection of
trade and other receivables falls within the recorded
allowances and management is of the opinion that
adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has
been made in the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the customer bases are
widely dispersed despite that 37.3% (2016: 43.9%)
of the trade receivable were due from the Group’s
largest customer and 70.3% (2016: 77.9%) were due
from the five largest customers determined on the
same basis.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating
entities of the Group. Such forecasting takes into
consideration the Group’s debt financing plans,
covenant compliance and, if applicable external
regulatory or legal requirements - for example,
currency restrictions.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of
sources including orderly realisation of short-term
financial assets and receivables; and long-term
financing including long-term borrowings. The Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
sufficient bank balances, committed credit lines
available and interest bearing borrowings which
enable the Group to continue its business for the
foreseeable future.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTEEERRAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BXEREE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBRBRAR (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) RBEEZRR (&)
The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative TEAMERERREGORMA
and derivative financial liabilities into the applicable HRTHEFARENTERITE
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at TRIBEISKERINHEAER -
the end of reporting date to the contractual maturity FEBREREHNARBBERERE -
date. The amounts disclosed are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within one
amount cash flow year
BHRER
FEE HReReEsLs —£R)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+=-A=t—-8
Trade and other payables EWRE S R A EMNFIE
(excluding sale deposit received) (MEREWHEE ) 151,954 151,954 151,954
Borrowings fE% 17,994 18,302 18,302
Finance lease payables BERERTHE 1,849 1,913 1,913
171,797 172,169 172,169
At 31 December 2016 RZFB—RF
+-A=1+-8
Derivative financial instruments TESMTE 721 721 721
Trade and other payables EWRE 5 REMEN TR
(excluding sale deposit received) (TREBWEE) 91,603 91,603 91,603
Borrowings 5 18,972 19,654 19,654
Finance lease payables BEMERNHIE 3,472 3,629 3,629
114,768 115,607 115,607
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Group uses bank borrowings to finance its operations.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amounts paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (include bank borrowings
and finance lease payables) less cash and bank balances.
Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position, plus net
debt, where applicable.

The Group’s strategy was to maintain optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. The gearing ratios
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

MEEBER (&)

EoEE
AEEEREANEERREAEELR
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A BRI A AR AS o 75 SR AR 1T f 3B
BT -
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TR ARk & B E AR AMETS -

AEBUBEREL R BEEERENR - BH
fERALT—E - R RILFERER A
RENGE - FEBZAER (BRERTT
fER LR E RS RNFRIR) BIRE MRTT
AT E - BENREE MR ERMR

[#Ez | FER (Em) 55 -

REB R R AR RIZAH B AZIE I
[REREAKRAN R -_B—EFR-_FT—RX
FTZA=1T—"HOBERLLEWT :

2017 2016

—E—+F —E-REF

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FET

Borrowings (note 22) & (MEE22) 17,994 18,972

Finance lease payables (note 23) BE M E R IE (MfEE23) 1,849 3,472

Less: Cash and bank balances B R RIRTTER

(note 20) (Ff5E20) (161,626) (6,569)

Net debt TFAE (141,783) 15,875

Total equity s 332,564 154,755

Total capital BB AR (190,781) 170,630

Gearing ratio (S S g N/A 9.3%
i A
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three
levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
(thatis, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, all the Group’s assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are categorised into
level 2.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation technigues maximise the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely
as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrumentis included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

The following table presents the changes in the Group’s
assets and liabilities carried at fair value for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016:

B ERER (&)

AT
TR AR DT 6 R AR 8 AR
BOER  SARER-F—tFR=

E-RE+T-A=T—BRAFEIKZ
BENAIE - BB ABIRTIZ T Xt
MaBEARFEREAN=(ERAR

- HABEXRBBEIREEMIZH
HE CREHE) (B1E) -

- BTBE1IEMEREOREIN  ZEE
MBENABEENEGEA AR
B (BIPInER) sEE (AR E
B (F2E) -

. AERAELFEETHRETSK
Wit A (3T BRE A) (83
B -

RIB—+FER_FE—RF+-_A=+—
H - KEIF)’T%TQASFTE@JEEE’UEE&E
BEHBAF2E -
BHE_ZT—+tF+_A=1T—BHLFE
BEE  2R3EZRMNE®R (ZF— X
FE)-

WIHRERMS EXZNERBTE (105
&I\?ﬁiiﬂ) MR ETERMGET AR
c REFHETEEEERAHRERZA

&Wm%%ﬂﬁ TRERVARERET
HE Mt ERTANRTEREZEE
BABBEIHUTEE  AIEBEIASHE
PAZE2RE °

W& —HK A L2 BB EWIFRBEAE

EMISEMGE - ZLTABRIAFEIE -
TREVNEE-_FTLFR-_T-RE+

_ﬂ:+*5¢¢f$%liﬁ’&3ﬁ§§uﬂf?
ZEENBENES

Annual Report 2017 “E%f

135



136

TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

BBEMER (&)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 DFEME (&)
Financial
asset at
Land and Derivative fair value
building financial through
at fair value instruments profit or loss Total
BATE BATE
FrEM i FFABRE
T REF ERMIAE HNEMEE #st
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
For the year ended BHE_T—LF
31 December 2017 T-A=+—HItFE
Opening balance B4 23,900 (721) 2,535 25,714
Gain recognised in profit or loss  FME R R S - 144 116 260
Gains recognised in other REA 2 H WG R
comprehensive income Uz 1,419 - - 1,419
Depreciation e (919) - - (919)
Settlement ®E - 577 - 577
Closing balance HR R 24,400 - 2,651 27,051
For the year ended HE_ZT—RF
31 December 2016 +-A=+—HItFE
Opening balance EEIE S 23,100 (12,805) 2,423 12,718
Gain recognised in profit or loss  FMEZEHER RIS - 1,162 112 1,274
Gains recognised in other RAE fth 2 E a5 B R Y
comprehensive income Uz 1,656 - - 1,656
Depreciation e (856) - - (856)
Settlement ®E - 10,922 - 10,922
Closing balance HR&E% 23,900 (721) 2,535 25,714
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 3.4 TREERTEMAMBZEE

3.4

As at 31 December 2017, there were no financial assets
or financial liabilities which were subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting or similar agreements (2016:

Nil).
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING THE GROUP’S
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below

(a) Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment
The Group has substantial investments in property,
plant and equipment. Judgement is required
in the area of asset impairment, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has incurred that
may indicate that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (2) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
or value-in-use, which is the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions used to
determine the level, if any, of impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group’s financial condition and
results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting
future cash flow projections, it may be necessary
to take an impairment charge to the profit or loss.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING THE GROUP’S
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in customer taste and competitor actions
in response to severe industry cycle. Management
reassesses these estimates at the end of each
statement of financial position date.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group’s management estimates the provision
of impairment of trade receivables by assessing
their recoverability. Provisions are applied to
trade receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible and require the use of estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact carrying value
of trade receivables and impairment charge in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING THE GROUP’S
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Income taxes (continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised
when management considers it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. When the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred income tax assets
and taxation charges in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

Valuation of equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The fair value of share options has been calculated
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model which
requires the input of highly subjective assumptions,
including the expected volatility of the share price.
Because changes in subjective assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate, in the
opinion of the Directors, the existing model may
not always necessarily produce a reliable single
measure of the fair value of the share options.
Details of the assumptions used are set out in note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

4 ERFEESTERENTIESHME
R (E)

FTEEFHEFREBR (&)

(d)

(e)

e (&)

2R ER R AR RE R F A
NS ZREXH AR R - B
EAMEREERBCHRNE TR
REBMRBEBEARM EBEHE
RERRRAGFE  ZEEZEE
FEETCHEREENERIARZ
FHEAERFNHAREES -

UEZEERROBERARBOR
Z1EE

BREATEER -_EAERET
BEAGE ZEXTERAKEE
ITEBENGAE (BEROERD
FEETRIE) - AR EERBOEFE ]
HATEGAENEATE EF
RE BABEARURBERELT
BEM—RENFETN - BAMEK
ARENFBEHERGE M BHHREM
725 °
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the information reviewed by the CODM. The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segment, has
been identified as the Board of Directors of the Company.

Operating segments are reported in the manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
CODM. The Group is subject to similar business risk, and
resources are allocated based on what is beneficial to
the Group in enhancing the value as a whole. The Board
of Directors considers the performance assessment of
the Group should be based on the profit before income
tax of the Group as a whole and regards the Group as a
single operating segment and reviews internal reporting
accordingly. Therefore, the Board of Directors considers
there to be only one operating segment under the
requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.

The Group provides manufacturing and sales of electronic
products, which are carried out internationally, through
the production complexes located in the PRC during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Segment assets and liabilities

No assets and liabilities are included in the Group’s
segment reporting that are submitted to and reviewed by
the CODM internally. Accordingly, no segment assets and
liabilities are presented.

Information about major customers

External customers contribute over 10% of total revenue
of the Group for any of the year ended 31 December 2017
are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

EEECDRBEARKERREZNNER
BELEDH BEREKERREREDR

REDHNERLFHEERE - AREE
/Rﬁ%iéi“@ﬂéﬁﬁ&%fﬁ%&%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ’]i’%
B MARBDEEERBEAERKLERE
EIa

REDEHW2HND ABEHRT EELER
FOABEHR B - AREEBRRALUE
BREKR BERERHREAAEEREE
BEENNRANSEK EFERRAEED
FRIR AT 4 FE A AN 52 B B R RR B AR AU (F
o BARERE —KED AW EERN
MBS - Fit - EFERA - RIEFA
B EERNFES EL D] HRE -
ERA—(EEZLDEL

>3+§ ‘H’ﬁﬁ

REBEE-_FT—tHF+-_A=1t—HLHF
CAREEBURNTENEERARR

ETEMREREE (BRERXR) -

g %

B X

<
2

THREERER

MEBRZR T BB R EREE R EERE

WAEESHRELBERRETMNEELA
B FAit - BEZNDHEERALE -

FEEFWNEHR
BE_Z—+F+-_A=+—B 1AW
FE IIBEFEMAEBR AW D BB
10% -

2017 2016

—E—+F NS

HK$000 HK$°000

FET FET

Customer A EPFPA 131,535 125,536
Customer B EFB 341,538 336,601
Customer C 250 65,847 57,242
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 oBER (E)
Geographical information 3R B AR
During the year ended 2017, majority of revenue were REBE-_ZT—+EFLFE AP UWH
sold to customers in Europe (mainly Switzerland, the KERNER (EEAK T  EF - E6
United Kingdom, Ireland, Denmark and Austria), while B FERRMF)  ERREKEET
the remaining revenue were sold to customers in the BAZE ([ZE]) - P - E5Fs LR
United States of America (the “USA”), the PRC, Malaysia MRS o
and Australia.
In relation to non-current assets held by the Group MAEEFRBEENIERSEE (TE2AY
(primarily represented by property, plant and equipment 2 . mELHE SFEBEHNAME14) M
as detailed in note 14), land and buildings with carrying = R-ZT—+E+-A=+—0" K
values as at 31 December 2017 of HK$24,400,000 (2016: T {8 524,400,000 7T (= T — < & -
HK$23,900,000) are located in Hong Kong. Other property, 23,900,000 5T) ¥+ RIS RIAE
plant and equipment are primarily located in the PRC. e HMYE BERRETLIEMAS
o
REVENUE AND OTHER (LOSS)/ INCOME 6 WERHM (BR) KA
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
HK$°000 HK$000
TFET THETT
Revenue g
Sales of goods EmiEE 788,042 744,899
Other (loss)/ income Hith (E518),/ WA
Commission income HaA 141 146
Fair value gain on financial assets BRAFEFABRED
at fair value through profit or loss TMEEATERS 116 112
(Loss)/gain on foreign exchange HNEE (F518), e (4,436) 4,155
Sundry income HIEUA 1,259 1,542
(2,920) 5,955
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEEERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included “cost of sales”, “selling and distribution
expenses” and “administrative expenses”, and “other
operating expenses” are analysed as follows:

EMEE X

Y BEHERAN] [HERDHER]
RITBERATZ] RTEMEERmT] 54
mE

2017 2016
—EB—tF —T-REF
HK$000 HK$000
FAEITL FHEIT
Employee benefit expenses (including BERMHAX (B
directors’ emoluments) (note 8) Z=E=Pe) (K13E8) 152,685 132,296
Listing expenses FHHEX 13,540 3,966
Auditors’ remuneration 2 B 3 B
- Audit services — B RS 2,150 865
- Non-audit services — TR 35 57
Depreciation (note 14) E (Miix14) 9,623 12,497
Amortisation of insurance expense IRB 7 S 8H 12 12
Gain on derivative financial instruments #7444 @ T Az (144) (1,162)
Obsolete inventories written off [REF BN 1,541 110
Operating lease payments EERE R 5,181 5,333
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, LEWE  BEX
plant and equipment HfEEE () 14 (3)
Provision for impairment loss on FEREEBRE (HE17)
inventories (note 17) 623 1,501
8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 8 EERMBX (BIEEEMHL)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
HK$000 HK$'000
FAEITL FEIT
Wages, salaries and allowances IE& - Hrek=h 130,046 112,328
Retirement benefit costs RURAB B AR 22,599 19,968
Share-based payment (note 25) AR D BETERT SR (F5E25) 40 -
152,685 132,296
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 9 EENEINRER

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the section

RIBEBRRGRD] (£622F) £383f5RM

383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) is BREEHMOT ¢
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHET

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect FHEAAEEEE (E:m5

of a person’s services as a director,

R AIHEMERAES)

whether of the Company or its BTk El s e ¢

subsidiary undertaking:
Fees we 660 -
Basic salaries, bonus, allowance and EAH® B4 2K

benefits in kind Eki=p 14,387 10,790
Employer’s contribution to a retirement RREFIET BB E = H R

benefit scheme 1,532 990
Share-based payment VAR 9 B ERE T 3R 28 -

16,607 11,780

(a) Directors’ retirement benefits (a) ESZRABEH

(b)

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by any directors in respect of their other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiary undertaking during
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

(b)

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to Directors as compensation
for the early termination of the appointment during
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

REBE-_FT—tF+-_A=1+—H
HFE BEAETNEETARER
AN B SHE BN R F 15 ) H A AR
B A KW AR ER (ZF
—NEF ) e

EECREER
REBEE-_FT—tHF+-A=1+—H
LHFE BERRPERLZENS
BEEXNEMNRIEREE (ZF—
NE R o
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B 53R R M st

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available Directors’ services

Save at disclosed above , no other payment was
made to the former employer or Directors for making
available the services of them as a Director of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of Directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
Directors

Save as disclosed in note 29(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, there are no loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of Directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such Directors during the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).
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(e)
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ZRE

BREXEEEN RBEE-T—+
F+-—A=Z+—BLEE HEHR
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 9

(continued)

(f) Directors’emolument

The remuneration of every Director for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 is set out below:

EESNEMNRES (F)

f) EEMS
HE-_Z—+tFR-_ZT—X"F+=
A=+ BUHFESESTHFMO

™~
Remunerations
Basic salaries, paid or
bonuses, Employer's receivable
allowances contribution in respect of
andbenefits ~ Discretionary ~ toaretirement  accepting office Share-based
Fees in kind bonuses  benefit scheme as director payment Total
Exge w4 BIARAGEN  REIEESEE  JROAER
e ZURENEA 32040 EXHR  CHOERzEH IES Eh
HK$ 000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$ 1000 HK$ 000 HK$000  HK$000
& AT 7T AT TET TEr  TET
2017 I 3
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Kwan Tak Sum BERLE (Mihi)
Stanley (note vi) - 4,390 - 558 - - 4,948
Mr. Tai Leung Lam B ()
(note vi) - 4,390 - 558 - 10 4,958
Mr. Joseph Mac Joseph Mac Carthy £
Carthy (note vi) (Fizkvi) - 2,44 - - - 8 2,252
Mr.LaiYiu Wah (note i, iv) - SB% 54 (Wi, iv) - 3,363 - 416 - 10 3,789
Independent Non- BIEFIT
executive Directors 2=
Mr.FungChunChung  /B8shot (Hfkty)
(note v) 220 - - - - - 220
Mr. Cheung Kin Wing FRELE (W)
(note v) 220 - - - - = 220
Mr. Wong Raymond ALk (i)
Fook Lam (note v) 220 - - - - - 220
660 14,387 - 1,532 - 28 16,607
2016 TR
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Kwan Tak Sum BERLE (M)
Stanley (note vi) - 3510 - 486 - - 3,996
Mr. Tai Leung Lam ERMEE (k)
(note vi) - 3510 - 486 - - 3,996
Mr. Joseph Mac Joseph Mac Carthy £
Carthy (note vi) (Pzi) - 1,690 - - - - 1,690
Mr. Lai Yiu Wah (noteii,iv)  REBZERE (W3, iv) - 2,080 - 18 - = 2,098
- 10,790 - 990 - - 11,780
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 9 EEZENEAR#ER (&)
(continued)
(f) Directors’ emolument (continued) (f) E=Me (&)
Notes: B
(i) Mr. Kwan Chan Kwong resigned as a Director of Trio (i BRSNS EER —_F—RFRAZ+=H

(g)

Microtronics on 22 June 2016.

(i) Mr. Lai Yiu Wah was appointed as a Director of Trio
Microtronics on 22 June 2016.

(iii) Discretionary bonuses are determined based on the overall
performance of the individual and the Group.

(vi) Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley, Mr. Tai Leung Lam, Mr. Lai Yiu Wah
and Mr.Joseph Mac Carthy were appointed as the Executive
Directors of the Company on 15 April 2016.

(v) Mr. Fung Chun Chung, Mr. Cheung Kin Wing and Mr. Wong
Raymond Fook Lam were appointed as Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company on 10 February
2017.

There was no arrangement under which a Director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 included 4 Directors (2016: 4 Directors) whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining 1
individual during the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: 1 individual) are as follows:

(8)

BIEREMERES -

(i) BBEERER_T-XFAA-+-AH
EZIRREMERES -

(i) BIBIEATZERA L RAKE R R
RAETE °

(iv)  BIERSTHE - BRMEAE  REELL
KJoseph Mac Carthyfe R —ZF—X
FUNA+HHEZAARRBIMITE
=

v BHEPEE  REREERERBRELE
R-ZB—LHE A+ RAEREREAAT
BIIFMITESE -

RBE-ZT—+tF+-_A=+—PLFE &
FRTETRABRT BELHNERRBREST
A (=T —RF &) -

TEBREHFMAL
HE-_Z—+F+=-_A=+—HI1E
FE AEEREERSFHALE
BERASTREEMSMN4sBES
T RF LRER) -BE-T
—+tF+-_A=Z+—HLFE JE
HBTI1BENAL (ZE—RF:
1ZERIAL) ST -

2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
HK$'000 HK$000
FETL FET

Basic salaries, allowances EAFH& « 2K
and benefits in kind a%mﬂ 1,293 855
Bonuses 167 306
Pension scheme contributions F'J?FiquiMﬁw\ = 18
Share-based payment VARR D A ERE R R 1 -
1,461 1179

Annual Report 2017 %



9

2017 2016
—E—tHF —ZE-RF
number of number of
individuals individuals
AZ A&
Nil - HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T - -
HK$1,000,000 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,00187LE
1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
10 FINANCE EXPENSES, NET 10 BB FHE
2017 2016
—E—+F AN S
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Finance income EUR TN
Bank interest income IRITFIBUA 98 30
Other interest income E R EWA 104 31
Finance income B R U A 202 61
Finance expenses BB 2
Interest on bank borrowings RITERFLE
- Wholly repayable within five years —BRAFAZBER (3,647) (4,193)
Other finance expenses H gAY
Bank charges RITIE (5,517) (5,176)
Finance lease charges BEHERE (91) (150)
Finance expenses BB (9,255) (9,519)
Finance expenses, net B FEE (9,053) (9,458)

TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 9

(continued)

(g) Five highest paid individuals (continued)
The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell

within the following band is as follows:

EESNEMNRES (F)

@ TEBEFMAL ()
H N T LA T A E 3L B R 3T
BeHesHEEABNT -
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FBHEAX
The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement RETEBERABESENT ¢
of comprehensive income represents:
2017 2016
—E—+tF A
HK$'000 HK$000
FAEITL FET
Current income tax — Hong Kong: BVERRT1S 8 — B -
Provision for the year FARE 12,598 12,602
Current income tax — The PRC: ENEAFRSHY — H B -
Provision for the year FNEE 4,542 9,622
17,140 22,124
Deferred income tax EIEFTIS TR
Origination and reversal of By T 2 R A R B[]
timing differences - (26)
Income tax expense FrAS i 2 17,140 22,098

Hong Kong profits tax is provided at the rate of 16.5%
based on the assessable profits for the year ended 31

December 2017 (2016: 16.5%).

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”) is provided on
the assessable income of entities within the Group
incorporated in the PRC, calculated in accordance with
the relevant regulations of the PRC after considering the

available tax benefits.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law passed
by the Tenth National People’s Congress on 16 March
2007 (the “CIT Law”), the CIT rate for domestic and foreign
enterprises has been unified at the rate of 25%, effective

from 1 January 2008.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

ETXEFEBAERLA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

On 11 December 2017, Trio Microtronics was awarded
the “New and High Technology Enterprise” (“NHTE”)
accreditation by Guangdong Science and Technology
Department (B3R & BHE2FIITEE) (‘GDSTD”) as indicated in a
non-public announcement made by GDSTD on its website.
The website indicated NHTE certificate with number
“GR201744011322” was assigned to Trio Microtronics for
an effective period of three years from 11 December 2017 to
11 December 2020. By virtue of the NHTE accreditation,
the Directors, having regard to the relevant requirements
under the Administrative Measures in relation to the
Recognition of New and High Technology Enterprises
({RFBMEEREEEIIE) ) and Guidelines on
New and High Technology Enterprises Recognition
Management ( (@RI EREEIETIERS]) ) jointly
issued by Ministry of Science and Technology of the PRC
(PZE AR HEMBIRIZEATER), Ministry of Finance of the
PRC (RZEARKEMBIGI ) and State Administration
of Taxation of the PRC (BEIZR#Hi#42/®), considered that
Trio Microtronics is entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15% (the “Preferential Rate”) for three years from 2017
to 2019 together with some financial subsidies from
the district, municipal and provincial authorities. As at
31 December 2017, Trio Microtronics received an initial
subsidy amounting to RMB200,000 from the People’s
Government of Nansha District of Guangzhou City (B!
MY @A R as a result of the NHTE accreditation.

As at the date of approval of the audited consolidated
financial statements, although Trio Microtronics has yet
to perform record filing with the relevant tax authority
pending the receipt of the physical NHTE certificate
from GDSTD, the Directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to apply the Preferential Rate in determining
the provision of CIT for the year ended 31 December 2017.

P& Z‘HFaﬁi(f}

RZZE—+F+ZA+—H  BEHUE:S
Z%Eﬁ%éﬂ%&fﬁ/%%(f%:ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁn
ﬁ%f%‘%ﬂfi?ﬁﬁ%i((%%ﬁ&?ﬁﬁ%)
RFE - WEEBRERREEEBLARE
HHIEARBERET  ZEWMBRRER
% [GR201744011322] m%%ﬂiﬁm%
FEEE THREMER  ARHH=
+tE+-A+—HBHE-_ZT-_ZTF+— ﬂ+
—BAB=F - BEZRFTRWEER
FHERELERHTPEARKMBERZE
T &R ~ A EE A R RN 3 B B AR K B R R RS
BRBAEEMN(IMBEMEERTERE
WE) R(EFBEMEERTER IR
SI) 2 HEARTERRE  BEMEREE
H-Z—tHFE_T - NFE-F=FH
15% 2 BEBE ([BEBR]) ERMT
BT - BT & BSR4 T #) — LEBf
AL - ERZ e RS ERE R
TE—tF+ZA=+—H BEWESRD
WEIBMNTELEARBIFAGE T AEA
R¥200,0007C I ¥ 5L o

BELEZGAMBHRERMWERY  #2A
HEMERDFIRRERE R K
BHRMEREYES - WA RERBEN
BEFIMEF Y BEERA - £
EHE-_Z—tHF+_A=1+—HLEFE
MEXRMEHBEEREAESHEIEA
i o
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

11

12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

tax rate applicable to profits as follows:

FrigBimMx% (&)

7R ER 1B R P A5 750 A1 g M 75 TR ERAR R A
MO ERGFEZ R mBREERNNT ¢

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEITL FEIT
Profit before income tax BR P S35 A A 87,148 97,355
Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% BIE16.5% (ZF—/~F ¢
(2016:16.5%) 16.5%) StE 2 Hi1E 14,379 16,063
Effect of different tax rates in other EMBERTRAMENTE
countries (410) 2,437
Income not subject to tax BARTA (55) (96)
Tax losses for which no deferred tax WERRLEMSHEEZ
asset was recognised MIAEE 21 80
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AT F 3,222 3.618
Utilisation of previously unrecognised PRABERTHERS
tax loss WMIBEE (17) (4)
Income tax expense PRSI 17,140 22,098
EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 SREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREZXER

The basic earnings per share is calculated on the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year ended 31 December 2017.

BREXRBMNIDRARBBRERSE
ANEEREMNGEUNBEE —T—tF+
“A=t—HULEFEDHTEAER
IEFHBEEH -

2017 2016
—E—tF —TF
Profit attributable to equity RRFIRERB ATEG
holders of the wmH (FAT)
Company (HK$'000) 70,008 75,257
Weighted average number of BTN T IR
shares in issue (thousand shares) (R (BEEG))
(note (i) 777,397 750,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) SRRERZF GEAL) 9.01 cents 10.03 cents
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRSTEERRAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share (continued)

Note:

0]

The weighted average of 777,397,000 ordinary shares used
in the calculation of basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2017 comprising: (i) 2 ordinary shares
of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2016; and (ii)
749,999,998 ordinary shares of the Company issued and
allotted to Trio Holding without payment and credited as
fully-paid shares pursuant to the shareholders’ resolution
dated 27 October 2017 as if these shares had been issued
at 1 January 2017, the beginning of the earliest period
reported; and (iii) 250,000,000 ordinary shares offered to
the public were issued on 23 November 2017.

The weighted average of 750,000,000 ordinary shares used
in the calculation of basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2016 comprising: (i) 1 ordinary share of
the Company issued and allotted at the date of incorporation
on 15 April 2016; (ii) 1 ordinary share of the Company issued
and allotted during the Reorganisation and (iii) 749,999,998
ordinary shares of the Company issued and allotted to Trio
Holding without payment and credited as fully-paid shares
pursuant to the shareholders’ resolution dated 27 October
2017 as if these shares had been issued at 1 January 2016,
the beginning of the earliest period reported.

Diluted earnings per share

For the year ended 31 December 2017, diluted
earnings per share presented was same as the
basic earnings per share as the share options of the
Company have an anti-dilutive effect.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, diluted
earnings per share presented was same as the basic
earnings per share as there were no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares issued during the year.

12 BREF (&

() BREXER (&)

(i) AEHECE -+ A=+—HI1
FE 2 FRERZF FE R MEFY
777,397,000 E@RBIE - (WA=
T—RNFE+-_A=+—HBEHEITH2K
ARAREBEI  M(NVBEESHAE-ZT—
tFE+AZTEENRERER - UE
ERARS AR RMD 5[ B L&
1T ML H749,999,008 0% A A 7
W BAZERNER =T —tF—
A—R (BFH®ENREHEMAEE)
BT RNWRZZ—tF+—A=+
= BmAREEMEITHI250,000,000
% AR o

HEHEE-T-RF+-A=+—AL
FEZEREARFFERNMETS
#750,000,000%8 L @A 2 1E : (VR &
Mk BB - —RNFNA+RBET
MECEMIRA QAR EBEA  (WREA
BRI MR EMNTRAARLBER &
(iIMREEHA=-T—+F+A=++
BRBRERHE - LEERARY AR
ERMARNMBMLIERETRERN
749,999,998/ AR A B E AR - I F&
ERHER=_ZT—XF—A—A8 (BFr
HEMNSFHMMGBA) BT -

BEREERF
BE_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—H1It
FE - FENNESRESRNESR
EARBAAER - TIEKRR B R
A RS -

(b)

HE-—ZT-—RF+-A=+—-AL
FRE 25 ERBERTEGR
EABMMER - AR ZFELE
BITEEEELAR -
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HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

13 RE

REBEEZZE—+tF+_A=+—HLHF
B ARERZZE—tF+—ALEWAH]
MARAFERMNBRRST KT KRBT
15,000,0005% JT & #£30,000,0007%
c ANBIEFPBRRAFAE L Tk
ﬂiﬁﬁﬂxgtﬂﬁ CBRR2.078L - BN B A
#5420,000,000/8 7T °

13 DIVIDENDS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
had declared an interim dividend of HK$15,000,000 per
share, totaling HK$30,000,000 to its then shareholder of
the Company prior to the Listing in November 2017. A final
dividend of HK$2.0 cents per ordinary share, amounting
to a total dividend of HK$20,000,000, is to be proposed
at the AGM.

REBEE-_Z—XNE+-_A=+—BLI*F
B ARRMARRERFMHNBRREEIR
FROHER R B & R%11,750,0008 T A ,ﬂi\
23,500,000/ 7T > A AR — KB A

MEERRREREZ T —~F+= )E]

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
had declared an interim dividend of HK$11,750,000 per
share, totalling HK$23,500,000 to the then shareholder
of the Company. A subsidiary of the Company declared
an interim dividend of HK$117.50 per ordinary share,

totaling HK$23,500,000 to its then shareholders for the Et-HEFEZHBHREGREERKR
year ended 31 December 2016. 117.50%8 70 » £ 4£23,500,000/8 7T °
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 Y% BERSZE
Land & Plant&  Furniture & Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
buildings  machinery fixtures  equipment vehicles improvements in progress Total
1HRET BERER HEREE HOERE RE  RENERE RIE @it
HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
FET FEr FET FET TFET FET FEr  TEr
Year ended BE-E-tE14
31 December 2017 Zt-RLEE
Net book value at R-B-+5-f-H
1 January 2017 MR FE 23,900 7,325 6,547 905 551 8,297 231 47,756
Additions AE - 1,754 2,501 21 - 897 36 5,209
Surplusonrevaluation  Ef4E# 1,419 - - - - - - 1,419
Disposals ih & - (1) (30) (1) - = = (32)
Depreciation il (919) (2,826) (2,166) (507) (140) (3,065) - (962)
Balance as at RZE-tE1+ZA
31 December 2017 S T-BHER 24,400 6,252 6,852 418 411 6,129 267 44,729
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+%1+ZA
=t-H
Cost or valuation RS E 24,400 31,893 14,021 3,368 3,163 26,768 267 103,880
Accumulated depreciation  2if47% - (25681) (7,169) (2,950) (2,752) (20,639) - (59,151)
Net book value at RZB-+51+-A
31 December 2017 =t-ANERFE 24,400 6,252 6,852 418 411 6,129 267 44,729
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HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

14 ¥% - BMERRE (£)

Land & Plant& Furniture & Office Motor  Leasehold Construction
buildings  machinery fixtures equipment  vehicles improvements inprogress Total
1#HEEF HEREE GEREE HLERE RE  RENEEE HEIR gt
HK§000 HK$:000 HK$ 000 HK$:000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT TA1
Year ended BE-E-RE1CR
31 December 2016 Zt-ALEE
Net book value at RZE-7~E-A-H
1 January 2016 HERFE 23100 9,317 6,228 1,543 912 12,789 189 54,078
Additions AE - 1,626 2729 3 182 - 4 4,582
Surplus on revaluation EffRH 1,656 - - - - - - 1,656
Disposals e - (1) (56) (6) - - - (63)
Depreciation il (856) (3617) (2.354) (635) (543) (4,492) - (12.497)
Balance s at RZE-AE+ZA
31 December 2016 =T-BRER 23,900 7325 6,547 905 551 8,297 231 47756
At 31 Decernber 2016 RoE-RE
Cost or valuation T-A=1-H
AAS e 23,900 30,270 11572 3378 3,563 2871 B 98785
Accumulated depreciation  Z3tHTE - (20949) (5,029) (2,473) (3,012) (17574) - (51,029
Net book value at RZE-AE+ZA
31 December 2016 S T-BEERSE 23,900 7325 6,547 905 551 8,207 21 47756
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2017 of the above assets is as follows:
FHMEER - ZE—+tF+ A=+ HOKEREEIFTOT
Mt cost Rk - 6,252 6,852 418 411 6,129 27 20,329
At valuation k(e 24,400 - - - - - - 24,400
24,400 6,252 6,852 418 411 6,129 267 44,729
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017, depreciation
expense of HK$2,826,000 and HK$6,797,000 (2016:
3,616,000 and HK$8,881,000) was charged to “cost of
goods sold” and “administrative expenses” respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s land and buildings
are held under medium term leases (unexpired
period between 20 years to 50 years) and the carrying
amounts of land and buildings pledged as part of the
securities for banking facilities from a bank amounted to
HK$24,400,000 (2016: HK$23,900,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the net carrying amounts of the
Group’s fixed assets held under finance leases (note 23)
included in the total amount of plant and machinery was
HK$1,712,000 (2016: HK$3,969,000).

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s land and building was valued at 31 December
2017 and 2016 by independent professionally qualified
valuers who hold a recognised relevant professional
qualification and have recent experience in the locations
and segments of the assets valued. For land and building,
the current use equates to the highest and best use.

The Group’s finance division includes a team that reviews
the valuations performed by the independent valuers for
financial reporting purposes. This team reports directly
to the chief financial officer (“CFO”) and the directors.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the CFO, directors, the valuation team and
valuers annually. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
fair values of the land and building have been determined
by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited.

Annual Report 2017 %
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14 Y% BMERRE (£)

HE_ZT—+tF+-_A=T—HLFE "
#r £ & 2,826,000/ T N6,797,000
B (ZF — /N F 13,616,000 7T &
8,881,000 L) M Blat A & H & @

AR ITHAS] -

R-F—+F+-_A=+—H AEEZ
T RIEF AIZFEELY CRafBREA
20F E50F) #F - URBEE L RIE
F (EABRITIREMRITHEN I E
R) BRME (B 524,400,000 7T (—ZZ— X
£ 1 23,900,000/87T) °

RZZE—+tF+_A=+—8' K&

Bift \BE RS REBE ZHERE
(f#F23) HEEETEEREFESL
1,712,0008 7T (ZZF — 734 : 3,969,000
BIT) °

REENEERRE

AEENLHEEFTR-_FT—LFR-
—ANFTZA=t— ngﬁééﬁﬁi
EEREE - ZEFHEMAEARNAH
BEER UHEBEBEEMNBR NS
EEAORS -t REFmE - B
RIAEEE N &S M&ERE

TEENTEHERE—FEEK  aEFZ
B EMBI B R EEITRMNE - ZE
BEERNEFEVEE ((BEEMEBE]D &
ExWmE - -EEYBE - EF HEE
B REEMZFERHEBRERERETT
WoRZIE—EERZE-—RFEF+ZA=
+—H T REFHAFEBF BTG
BRAFERE °
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Valuation processes of the Group (continued)
At each financial year end the finance division:

. verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation
report;
. assesses property valuations movements when

compared to the prior year valuation report;
. holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Valuation techniques

For land and building, the valuation was determined
using the sale comparison approach. Sales prices of
comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted
for differences in key attributes such as property size.
The most significant input into this valuation approach is
price per square foot, which is approximately amounted to
HK$6,124 per square foot for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: HK$6,000 per square foot).

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

14 ¥% - BMERRE (£)

REBNMHERE (&)
REVRFEGEER - BEEL -

- REBUYMBERSIMAETIEHA
B

- RNUEBBEFEZBERSEE ¥
EYEMEZS

- EPVEERR

HERDT

BRI REFME @ HEFAESHLEE
BT - A RMENEEERSERE
MPEXNOERBEEEMAE - ZE
BEEACREZAEREHNETTEAIR
JER - REZE-ZE—+E+-_A=+—
BIEFEAFTFHIRG, 12487 (ZE—X
F FFHR6,00087T) °

15 BAVEFARZRNEMEE

Unlisted Key man insurance contract

JEE™H —BER

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FEIT FET

A 2,651 2,535

The financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
represented the investment element of the key man
insurance purchased for Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley, the
Director of the Company.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss pledged as
security for the Group’s bank loan outstanding amounted
to HK$168,000 (2016: HK$444,000).

BAFEFABERNEREEEAQT
EEARATEMBEEERRAOKRET
o

R_ZT—+tHF+-_A=+—8 " EALXE
EAREERTERERDNZATAETA
BaENer EEREER168,0008 7T
TN 444,000087T) °
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

16 SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2017 and 2016 are as follows:

16 KB A
RZIE—tEFR T —RF+_A=+—
Az EEHBRREBOT

Place of incorporation

or establishment and Issued and Effective interest held
Company name type of legal entity Principal activities paid in capital by the Company
BaniAE Tz AvE Y
NG HERERER TEEH BRTRESRET  AAIRECERER
2017 2016
ZB-t§ —TNF
Directly held:
EERA:
Trio Engineering Hong Kong/Limited liability Sales of electronic 200,000 shares 100% 100%
company products HK$20,000,000
BeIR B/ BREMLLT HETTER 200,000/ A1
20,000,000/7T
PEMS Hong Kong/Limited liability Sales of electronic 10,000 shares 100% 100%
company products HK$10,000
LTRETIERME &8/ BREMLT HETTER 10,0008k 17
10,0008 7T
e-Tech Hong Kong/Limited liability Sales of electronic 10,000 shares 100% N/A
company products HK$10,000
figRITR &8/ BREMLH HEETER 10,0008 A f3 T
10,000/87T
Indirectly held:
BERRE:
Trio Microtronics The PRC/Wholly Manufacturing of Registered capital 100% 100%
foreign-owned enterprise electronic US$1,385,000
products
yemES E/NEBERE HEETEM AMER
1,385,000% 7T
Guangzhou PEMS The PRC/Wholly Sales of electronic Registered capital 100% 100%
foreign-owned enterprise products RMB500,000
BMNEEETIERE hE/NEBELE HEBTEM EMER
ARH500,0007T
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

INVENTORIES 17 78
2017 2016
ZE—tF —ERF
HK$000 HK$000
FEIT FET
Raw materials R 122,370 64,349
Work in progress TRm 28,354 19,218
Finished goods 2k 3,647 12,254
Goods in transit EESm 1,226 5,658
155,597 101,479
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and BE_TLtHFT-A=+T—HLFE"
included in “cost of sales” amounted to HK$451,074,000 BRABRIZLFATHEKNSR] HFEEX
for the vyear ended 31 December 2017 (2016: N B451,074,0008 T (Z & — N F:
HK$440,529,000). A provision for impairment of 440,529,000/87T) s HE-_T—+F+=
inventories of HK$623,000 was recognised in “other B=+—HILEE  REd2HEREER
operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of HRA[EMQLEY | TS MERE
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December £623,000 70 (— T — <4 : 1,501,000
2017 (2016: HK$1,501,000). T o
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 ESRHAMEWFIE
2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
Note HK$'000 HK$000
iga TFET FET
Trade receivables B 5 R 138,767 114,169
Less: allowance for impairment of W B S EWRFIE
trade receivables VERIER AL = -
Trade receivables — net B S RWRIE — F5 (a) 138,767 114,169
Other receivables H fh fEUROR 519 228
Interest receivables FEUF S 59 -
139,345 114,397
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Trade receivables were arising from trading of
electronic products. The payment terms of trade
receivables granted to third party customers
generally range from full payment before shipment
to 75 days from end of month. Aging analysis
based on invoice date of the trade receivables is as
follows:

18 BEZRHEMEYRKIE (&)

(a)

BHREFBEREEEETEm -
BTYE=NEFPHNEZREFIAN
NRHR— R B EM2BNRE
A#ER®RISR - REXRAH BH
FEW SR IRRBREC AT AN TS

2017 2016

—E—+F —ERF

HK$°000 HK$°000

T T&T

Below 30 days 30RLATN 59,633 66,002
Between 31 and 60 days 31E60K 51,323 39,034
Over 60 days B60KLA L 27,811 9,133
138,767 114,169

Trade and other receivables are past due when a
counterparty has failed to make a payment when
contractually due.

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
HK$112,347,000 (2016: HK$104,877,000) were not
yet past due.

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
HK$26,420,000 (2016: HK$9,292,000) were past
due but not impaired. The Group has not provided for
an impairment loss as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
Nil) because there was no significant change in
credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable.
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EHF ARG BB R
B B 5 R H Al MR IR AR S 8
Hj o

R—_ZE—+tF+-_A=+—H &
SEWFNIE112,347,0008 T (=&
— N4 1 104,877,000/ 7T) HAE
Hy o

RNZE—+F+_A=+—H &
5 & WL 3% 18 526,420,000 T (=
T — N4 9,292,000 T) c BB
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no significant financial
difficulty and based on past experience, the overdue
amounts can be recovered. The ageing analysis of
these receivables is as follows:

18 EZRHEMEYRKIE (&)

(a)

()

BE@ AT EREZE S ERKIE
BEAUBEAVBERENB LR
FER BEBEBTLER  ATkEZ
S HARIE o R FEBGIAN RER
DT

2017 2016
—®—tF  STRF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T TET

Past due by: #H
Below 30 days 30K 23,581 5,844
Between 31 and 60 days 31E260XK 573 597
Over 60 days B60KLA 2,266 2,851
26,420 9,292

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade
receivables are denominated in the following
currencies:

AEEE S EYFAZEEELT
SR HEETHE

2017 2016
—B—tF ZFRF

HK$°000 HK$:000

FET FET

RMB AR 7,422 127
uUs$ X7 131,345 114,042
138,767 114,169
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in “other operating
expenses”
comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are generally written off, when
there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

in the consolidated statement of

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values as at 31 December
2017 and 2016.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable
mentioned above.

19 PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

18 BEZRHEMEYRKIE (&)
(@) (&)
R 1B 8 LA SR TR 88 £ 2 1B BRI AR B
Bt AGRAEEKER [Htb2EH
ST AR 2 RIA— RN TR
HRE R (@ 55N IR 2 R -

RZE—+tFR TR F+=A
=+t—B BEZKEMEKFIEZ
REEEENFEES -

RBERMzRREERRALX
PR S BRI WA Z R E(E

19 BEFARERRS

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$000 HK$000
T T
Prepayments TEfTRIE 9,396 8,750
Rental, utility and other deposits B AAEEREMES 3,308 2,659
12,704 11,409

Less: non-current portion R FERNERFEL
Prepayments T FRIE (418) (430)
12,286 10,979

The carrying amounts of deposits

of the Group

approximate their fair values as at 31 December 2017

and 2016.

20 RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND

CASH BALANCES

AREREOEAERLIR T —LER
—F—xF+-A=+—RAZATHEM

e

Eo

20 ZRFIBTEARBRTRESEER

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Restricted bank deposits (note (a)) SR BIRITF R (FEE(a)) 8,084 10,079
Time deposit up to three months AEI={E A AT HY

EHIER 90,000 -

Bank and cash balances IRITMIR & K5k 71,626 6,569

161,626 6,569
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRSTEERRAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

20 RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND
CASH BALANCES (continued)

(a) The Group’s restricted bank deposits represented
deposits pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities granted to a subsidiary of the Group as
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(b) The carrying amount of restricted bank deposits,
time deposit up to three months, cash and bank
balances of the Group are denominated in the
following currencies:

20 ZFRHFBOTERRBRITRASER

(&)

(a) AEBEZRHBBITFRSFTRR
RITH R - UEREA M RE
ME20MBRTASE —RHEL
AIHERTTRYE 2 AR o

(b) AKEHZRHRITER  /SHP=
A A TR EMER - B Rk
TTHRERHBREEIA TP B EHE -

The Group ZN
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
HK$000 HK$000
FHET FET
HK$ BT 149,154 10,836
uss$ ETT 13,866 2,736
RMB AR 6,656 2,960
EUR BT 12 43
Other currencies Hiph gk 22 73
169,710 16,648
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

20 RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANKAND 20 SRFIEBITERRBITRIESESR

CASH BALANCES (continued) ()
(¢) The Group’s bank and cash balances included (c) BEIFAREMERME  A5EH
the following for the purpose of the consolidated ROTRIFACEBRBIEUTIER ¢

statement of cash flows:

2017 2016

—E—tF —ET-RF

HK$°000 HK$ 000

FET FET

Time deposit up to three months BEZEASATHTEEHER 90,000 -
Bank and cash balances IRITRIR S K6k 71,626 6,569
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeEEY 161,626 6,569
The restricted deposits, time deposit up to three N—_E—+FE+_A=+—H" %
months, and bank and cash balances are at fixed BT A =EANUTHE
interest rate range from 0.01% to 1.04% per annum IS A RBITRE S ESIRE T
(2016:0.01% t0 0.60%) as at 31 December 2017 and EFERGEO.01%E.04% (—F—
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risk. S 0.01%50.60%) S8 0 B

AR RN FENRER o

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 BESRHEHMEMNRIE
2017 2016
—g-—tF  CEAF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
biaF FEITL FHEIT
Trade payables B SIS HIR 93,952 61,391
Trust receipts =R 47,491 24,361
Accruals and other payables FEET R H At e 5RIE 18,839 12,276
Sale deposits received BUWHEET S 2,883 1,439
Amount due to a shareholder B — R R R FRIA (a) - 88
163,165 99,555
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The credit terms of trade payables granted by the vendors
generally range from net 14 days to 90 days from end of
month. The aging analysis of trade payables based on

invoice date is as follows:

TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

21

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

B REMtmENRER (7)
BEAETOESEMFADEEH— K
BEA R 14EABRIORTS « RIEH
ZRHNE S RENFARRITAT -

2017 2016

—ZE—tF —ERF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Below 30 days 30K 47,423 35,000
Between 31 and 60 days 31E60K 40,485 23,043
Over 60 days 60K 6,044 3,348
93,952 61,391

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

R 5 (508 2 R U T 51 45
SHE -

2017 2016

—E—t5F —T—NF

HK$ 000 HK$000

FET FET

HK$ BT 16,810 13,117
uss EP 37,714 23,653
RMB AR 31,870 22,569
EUR BT 6,672 1,969
Other currencies Hip g 886 83
93,952 61,391

(@) As at 31 December 2016, amount due to a

shareholder of the Group was denominated in

HK$, unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on

demand.

(@ MZFE-—RF+-_A=+—HB &
SEEMN—2REROFHIEBELAE T
B BEH  RERZREREE -
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

22 BORROWINGS 22 &R

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—REF
Note HK$000 HK$000
Btat FHET FHET
Profits tax loans FEHER (a) 14,787 9,274
Term loans FHIE® (a) 3,039 9,254
Insurance premium loan REEN (a) 168 444
17,994 18,972
The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows (without AEBNBREZBROT (Rt TX

taking into account the repayable on demand clause as MisE22(a)FTsf iR B E RGN -

detailed in note 22(a) below):

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Within 1 year 1FN 17,082 13,829
Between 1 and 2 years 16529 912 3,672
Between 2 and 5 years 2 E5F - 1,471
17,994 18,972
(a) As these loans include a clause that gives the (a) EARZEEZBFE—EBEZETE
lender the unconditional right to call the loans at RABGHEENEAMNEREDE
any times ( “Repayment on Demand Clause”), F(TREREEBEERR]) - BREDE
according to HK Interpretation 5 “Presentation HREESH [MBmERAT®E — ER
of Financial Statements - Classification by AHBEABEREREERRZE
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a HERz ] ERTBE SR
Repayment on Demand Clause” which requires the ERERGFINEZHERDERR
classification of whole term loans containing the PHaE ZEERTHRLEERE

repayment on demand clause as current liabilities, BRENAE -
these loans were classified by the Group as
current liabilities.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTEEERRAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

22 BORROWINGS (continued)

(b)

As at 31 December 2017, the total borrowings
pledged by certain assets and their carrying values
are shown below:

22 B (&)
(b) RZZE—tF+=—_A=+—8"' MK
ETEEFEENAERLERR
BIRT -

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET

Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE (MiE14)
(note 14) 24,400 23,900

Financial asset at fair value through 12 AFEFFAEBZEEZ

profit or loss (note 15) SREE (H:E15) 2,651 2,535
Restricted bank deposits (note 20) SBRBIRI TR (BIFE20) 8,084 10,079
35,135 36,514

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest

AEERERNRERRNOFKEE

rate changes and the contractual repricing dates at MeREFEEBHNT -
end of the reporting period are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —TBRF
HK$000 HK$000
FET THETT
Within 1 year 15K 17,994 18,972

The fair value of current borrowings equals their
carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

The weighted average effective interest rate of bank
borrowings are 3.94% per annum for the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: 3.80% per annum).

RITRFELIFEKR - AHIEK

BE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—AL
FE - RTERONMBEFHERSF
FER3.94% (ZF—RF : FHX
3.80%) °
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22

23

BORROWINGS (continued) 22 &R (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are REBEEBRZEREBELTIEEE :
denominated in the following currencies:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$’000
T T
HK$ BT 17,826 18,528
uss$ e 168 bbb
17,994 18,972
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: REE A T RRERNEREESE :
2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET
Expiring within one year R—F A EHf 106,621 146,021
FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 23 mIEHERNRE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Gross finance lease liabilities REHERERAE
— minimum lease payments - REAENK
Within 1 year 18R 1,913 3,629
Future finance charges on finance lease REFAEMNRERMES H (64) (157)
Present values of finance lease RMEMHEABENRE
liabilities 1,849 3,472
The carrying amounts of balances of the Group AEEEBCEREEREN _ZT—+FR
approximate their fair values as at 31 December 2017 —E-RE+_BA=1+—HZAFEM

and 2016.

Assets arranged under finance leases represent plant
and machinery. The average lease term is 4 years (2016: 4
years) with effective interest rate of 3.50% per annum as
at 31 December 2017 (2016: 3.50% per annum).
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24 SHARE CAPITAL 24 R
2017 2016
—B-tF ZERE
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RAEE kx| RIDEE 5
HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FET
Issued and fully paid DRTRAR

At beginning of the year/period REH/ B 2 145172 - -
Issue of shares upon incorporation PG AR L B 21T RR 1D - = 1 -

Issue of shares upon Reorganisation REAREITRG (ME1.2)

(note 1.2) - - 1 145172
Issue of bonus shares (note a) BATALR (fi5ka) 749,999,998 - - -
Issue of shares by public offering (note b) BB AFBEELTRM

(FfzTb) 250,000,000 136,335 - -
At end of the year REXR 1,000,000,000 281,507 2 145172
(a) Pursuant to the shareholder’s resolution dated (a) REBHA-_Z—tF+A=-1++t
27 October 2017, 749,999,998 shares were issued AR FEAZRR  UWEEFXME
and allotted to Trio Holding without payment and L I8 E517749,999,908 % A% {5 - I
credited as fully-paid shares, each ranking pari ARV BE KRG - MEBRRMNE
passu in all respects with the then existing shares ETEEERHDETHRARG=E

in issue. BERIFHAL
(b) Pursuant to the shareholder’s resolution dated (b) REBHMA-FT—tF+A=+L

27 Qctober 2017, 250,000,000 ordinary shares,
representing 25% of the Company’s enlarged
issued share capital, were issued by way of
the public offering on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange at a price of HK$0.62 per share
on 23 November 2017. The gross proceeds
received by the Company after deducting the
capitalised listing expenses were approximately
HK$136,335,000. Dealings in the Company’s
shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
commenced on 23 November 2017.

HORERZER R —LF+
—AZFTZHAURHBEESR &
T 1%0.62/8 7T 2 BISTEHE 2 AT E IR
E%177250,000,00002 L@ - thAR
AEIERE BITIRAMN25% « AR
AIEHBRE RN EmAZBMET
S FRIB A RE4)5136,335,000 7T °
AABBROBHR_E—+EFE+—A=
T=HRBEBIAERES -
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25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTION

Pursuant to written resolution of the then shareholder
passed on 27 October 2017, the Company adopted a Share
Option Scheme (the “Scheme”). The terms of the Scheme
are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules.

The Scheme is a share incentive scheme established to
recognise and acknowledge the contributions eligible
participants have made to the Group. The Scheme is valid
and effective for a period of ten years commencing on the
date of the adoption of the Scheme, unless terminated
earlier by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Participants may include: (i) any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent,
partner or adviser of or contractor to any member of the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest
or a subsidiary of such company (the “Affiliate”); (ii)
the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which
include any director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to any member of the Group or an Affiliate;
or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to any member
of the Group or an Affiliate.

As at 31 December 2017, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme was 70,000,000,
representing 7% of the issued share capital of the
Company. The aggregate number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company, must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Company’s shares in issue as at the
Listing Date. The 10% limit may be refreshed at any time
by obtaining approval of the Company’s shareholders in
general meeting provided that the total number of the
Company’s shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company, must not exceed
10% of the Company’s shares in issue as at the date of
the approval of the refreshed limit.
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R-FE—+FF+-A=+—8 " BE&:t
£ E 1T A1) 48 80 570,000,0008% -
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BIRARRIMEMABRETZE R
Al FATERFT A R TE SRR B T(E R A]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTION (continued)

The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and which may be granted to any
individual in any 12-month period up to the date of the
grant, shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue. Any further grant of options in excess of this
limit must be separately approved by the Company’s
shareholders in a general meeting with such grantee and
his/her close associates abstaining from voting. Any grant
of an option to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company (or any of their respective
associates) must be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding any independent non-
executive Director who is the grantee of the option).

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder of
the Company or an independent non-executive Director (or
any of their respective associates) will result in the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options already granted and to be granted to such
person under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of grant representing in aggregate
over 0.1% of the shares in issue and having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price of the shares at the
date of each grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, such
further grant of options is required to be approved by
shareholders at a general meeting of the Company, with
voting to be taken by way of a poll.

Upon acceptance of an option to subscribe for shares,
the eligible participant shall pay HK$1 to the Company
as consideration for the grant. The subscription price
of a share subject to options granted under the Scheme
shall be a price determined by the Board and notified to
a participant and shall be at least the higher of:

(i) theclosing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the
grant of the option; and

25 LDIESEERROBERMSROR

& (&)

PREMI2EAREANEE R LB £
18 Bl A 23R e AT X B0 B AR P 0% S B
ERTREETHRMEE - TREEN
NABEETIRNEN% o Bt FREE
AEREE— TR - BASIMEARRT]
RERERRAE LA - MABARAR
HETHEABNELG LRERE - AAR
AEE  THRAEBXTEZRR (IEFE
BRBEA) ROEMERE  HELHSE
MIEHITES (TRES RBEREARA
MR FITES) #E -

WRAARAEEZRRIBIIFNTES
(HWEZBNBBEAN) RO EMBERE
SEYMNMEM12EABRAEER L A H
(BfE%ZA) ZALTREBEZFBIHARBE
MEMBREEER RS ERXOMERE
PR T RS BT R A R TTROR D A8
2 AHBBEEHEITERMNN0.1% - ARIE
FREE BBH RO WHERE - BEB
i#$5,000,000/8 7T » A bt —ZREE
BRAEARBRRERNRBRRAG LA -
BANKREFTARR -

PN ETRIBA D BRI - 581K
HEAMARAZMIBITERRRAEL
BAR(E - RIBZTEI R DB &
RN REEEAHEEEE TN MR N
EMEWNER  TRKDHEENRUATES
%

(i) BXMEAJRERARBROHNEL
BRERHNKHE : &
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25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 25 UERZRAZ£ERKROAEBRARIR

TRANSACTION (continued) 5 (&)

(i) The average closing price of the shares as stated in (i) BMXFABEMEXRMARKRONERE
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the REOERERSHNIAEZZANT
five trading days immediately preceding the date of HUTE o

the grant of the option.

The movement in the number of share options under the FRNZTETETHBERESE ST -
Scheme during the year is as follows:

Exercise  Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
price  at1January during during during at 31 December
Date of grant (note) 2017 theyear  theyear  theyear 2017
RZE-t&
TE R-F-tF tZA=t+-H
RHAH (W) -A-BAfR ERRY FREAE  FRXA KTE
HK$
AT
Executive Directors
BITEE
Mr. Lai Yiu Wah 28 December 2017 0.954 - 7,000,000 - - 7,000,000
RRERE EtE
TZAZTNA
Mr.Tai Leung Lam 28 December 2017 0.954 - 7,000,000 - - 7,000,000
RIS TtF
tZAZT/R
Mr. Joseph Mac Carthy 28 December 2017 0.954 - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
Joseph Mac Carthy2t 4 —Z—t%
TZAZtAR
Other eligible participants 28 December 2017 0.954 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
AftaERSEE TtF
t-A-t/\R
- 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000
Weighted average exercise price - HK$0.954 - - HK$0.954
MEFSETEE - 0.954/87TC - - 0.954/8 7T
note: The closing price of the share immediately before the date on which e - BRI AR B AT A W T (B A0.9578
the share options were granted was HK$0.95. JC °
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25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTION (continued)

Of the total number of options outstanding at the end of
the year, no share options had vested and were exercisable
at the end of the year.

The options granted on 28 December 2017 (the “Valuation
Date”) with an exercise price of HK$0.954 per share, are
vested for a period of three years immediately after the
date of the grant. Options granted are exercisable after
three years but not exceeding ten years from the date of
the grant.

The fair value of the options has been calculated by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited using the Binomial Option
Pricing Model. The assumptions used are as follows:

25 LDIESEERROBERMSROR

& (&)

EFEBRITENBRERHEES - HE
BRENFAERDRERATTEE -

R-T—tF+-_A-+N\B([EEH
) REMATEE RS R0.954ETTHE
PetE - DR EREREBRER=FHEE
& o PTIR e OE F MR H A #EE =
FRENBETFHHMITE -

BRENATERF I EERARRA
—EAHREETERATE - MARKREZN
™

Granted on

28 December 2017

R=—Z—t&+=A

by JINCE 3o

Grant date share price B BEBRNER HK$0.93
0.9387T

Exercise price 1TEME HK$0.954
0.9548 7T

Expected volatility TEHR IR 53.07%
Contractual option life HERR S K A 10 years
10%F

Risk-free rate B A = 216%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B K 4.93%

Since the historical volatility of the Company’s shares
over the most recent period commensurate with the
contractual life of the share options is not available, the
average of the historical volatilities of the adopted listing
guideline companies has been adopted as the expected
volatility and reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends. The risk-free rate
is the yield of Hong Kong Generic Rate with maturity
matching the contractual option life of the share options
as obtained from Bloomberg as at the Valuation Date. The
historical annualised dividend yield of the Company of
4.93% has been adopted.

The assumptions used in computing the fair value of the
share options are based on management’s best estimate.
The valuation of options is dependent upon a number of
variables using subjective assumptions. Any changes in
the variables may materially affect the estimation of the
fair value of an option.

BRI EARRTRG R EFEHARE (BER
BRENESNFEEH) NFELRBEE -
WWEFAEFER LML RARRE LK
BEHEEATBIERE - WE RBRERE
SRR ] B R AR KB Y o MR X TR
HE BB Z1E 4 (Bloomberg)# B #f H
HERESNFH - SNEERAKRE
Ko BHARRBINFEEELRE X
4.93% °

AREBREATERRANBRRKEENE
BEMSEG - BRENGBEIRRS
REMATEBERROAZER - ZFA2HF
EOEME SR e HBBE R FEMAG
BREATE -
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25

26

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 25 U#ZEERRHAEBRSTRAIR
TRANSACTION (continued) 2 (&)
There was no market vesting condition or non-market 1% B 45 L P AR A AR ) T 05 B B A
performance condition associated with the options S IETIHRIBIGHE -
granted.
Based on the fair values derived from the above pricing BEK FREBEABENRTE  FA
model, the fair value of the share options granted was BB RSN R FELA11,080,000/5
approximately HK$11,080,000, of which the Group TC o HARAREED BRURG BERR R
recognised share-based compensation expenses BB 240,000 7T + WEt AXFERERE
of HK$40,000 to the consolidated statement of FEHWER (ZE—RF T8 (Wit
comprehensive income during the year (2016: HK$Nil) 8) °
(note 8).
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26 fTHEE€®MITA
The fair values of the Group’s derivative financial REBENTESR T AERMEANE R K
instruments at the statement of financial position date NSV
were:
2017 2016
—E—+t5F ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Forward foreign exchange contracts RENEAKHBE
liabilities - 721
Less: Non-current portion R IEBNEAER - -
- 721

The fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts have
been determined at the end of the reporting period using
observable market information.

As at 31 December 2017, all outstanding contracts have
been settled (2016: HK$6,200,000).

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, there is no commitment
in respect of the foreign exchange contract entered by the
Group.
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27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a principal
taxation rate of 16.5% for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: 16.5%). The net movement on the deferred
income tax liabilities, arising from accelerated tax
depreciation is as follows:

27 EIEFTEH

HE_Z—+F+-_A=+T—HILEE"
BEMGHDRABEEMRENEE M
EZERFBEREKICLEN (ZFE—RNF:
16.5%) 5T & - AINERBIIEFTEGHNIE
RS AEFESHOT -

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEITL FEIT

At beginning of the year F9) 3,712 3,656
Credited to the consolidated statement  R4AZ2EWEERFTA

of comprehensive income (note 11) (BFEET1) - (26)

Charged to equity R 2 FOBR (7) 85

Others HAh = (3)

At end of the year FR 3,705 3,712

The net deferred income tax liabilities are expected to be
settled after more than 12 months.

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$3,869,000 as at
31 December 2017 (2016: 2,633,000) have not been
recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries.
Unremitted earnings as at 31 December 2017 is
HK$77,371,000 (2016: 52,652,000).

ELEFMGRAEFEESERSB12(8A
BES °

WZZT—+tF+-_A=+—8" HA5z
AT KB AR KIE L AR EMNSHBINH
e R IR I P 15 X B & 733,869,000/
7T (= Z — 7N 12,633,000 L) ° B
—ET—+tF+_AZ+—BNEREH
B A A77,371,0008 T (ZF — N F
52,652,000/87T) °
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28 RESERVES

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Other capital reserve

Other capital reserves as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
represent the aggregate paid-in capital of the subsidiaries
acquired, offset by investment costs in subsidiaries of the
Company during the Reorganisation.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles
of association of those group companies incorporated in
the PRC, the group companies are required to appropriate
10% of their profits after tax, as determined in accordance
with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and
the Accounting System for Business Enterprises and
other regulations applicable to group companies, to the
statutory surplus reserve until such reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital of the group companies.
The appropriation to the reserve must be made before
any distribution of dividends to holders of the group
companies. The statutory surplus reserve can be used
to offset previous years’ losses, if any, and part of the
statutory surplus reserve can be capitalised as the group
companies’ capital provided that the amount of such
reserve remaining after the capitalisation shall not be
less than 25% of the capital of the group companies.

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
represent the revaluation of land and buildings held by
the Group.

Share option reserve

The fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period
with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest and the impact of the revision of
these estimates, if any, is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the remaining vesting
period, with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve.
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28 RESERVES (continued)

(d)

29

Share option reserve (continued)

At the time when the options are exercised, the amount

previously recognised in the share option reserve is

transferred to the share capital. When the share options

are forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date,

the amount previously recognised in the share option

reserve is transferred to retained profits.

BANKING FACILITIES

(a)

At 31 December 2017, the Group had banking
facilities totalling HK$206,000,000 granted by
three banks. These facilities were secured by
the leasehold land and buildings of the Group,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of the Group, fixed deposits placed in two banks,
and a corporate guarantee from the Company.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had banking
facilities totalling HK$198,000,000 granted by
three banks. These facilities were secured by the
leasehold land and buildings of the Group, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of the
Group, fixed deposits placed in three banks, and
joint and several guarantees executed by Mr. Kwan,
Mr. Tai and, Mr. Mac Carthy (which was replaced by
the corporate guarantee from the Company following
successful listing of the Company on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 23 November 2017).

28
(d)

29

(&)

BRERE (B)

ERBIRARRATER - 2 B B U e
ROSRBRERA - EEREEORE K
ZEEm A BIDRETE - 2 AT ERER
BEANSEBEEREEN -

RITEME
@ R-FT—tF+-A=+—8

AEBBEBEA=RBTELEH
206,000,000 7L 2 RITRLE °
@ﬂémﬁﬁlmﬁfim&$§+
REBRAFEAABRENSH®
BE FRWMREITHEHETA
REAARN AR EEREERE -

R—ZE—RF+—_A=+—80"
AEEHEBHA-FRBOTELEH
198,000,000 T 2 SRITRLE ° %F
BMERASBENHEE L REF -
REBRZAFEFAERZEN SR
BE  BFR=ZREBITHTEHFHA
M@ A - # 54k KMac Carthyst
A Hh A R (R B R Y AR VE AR (B
AABIR_E—+tF+—A=+=
BEB R ERMK LHE - BA
NAI T EERRUR) ©
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29 BANKING FACILITIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

The Group’s borrowings and obligations under
finance lease (note 23) of HK$1,849,000 as at
31 December 2017 were secured by plant and
equipment of the Group, a guarantee executed
by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government (“HKSAR”),
guarantee from the Company.

and the corporate

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s borrowings and
obligations under finance lease of HK$3,472,000
were secured by plant and equipment of the Group, a
guarantee executed by the HKSAR Government, and
an unlimited guarantee from Mr. Kwan, Mr. Tai, and
Mr. Mac Carthy (which was replaced by the corporate
guarantee from the Company following successful
listing of the Company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 23 November 2017).

At 31 December 2016, the Group had general
banking facilities under the Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited ("HKMC”) SME financing
guarantee scheme granted by two banks to the
extent of HK$12,000,000. These facilities were
secured by HKMC and joint and several guarantees
executed by Mr. Kwan, Mr. Tai and Mr. Mac Carthy
(which was replaced by the corporate guarantee
from the Company following successful listing
of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 23 November 2017). These loans were
fully repaid by the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017.
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTEEERRAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

30 COMMITMENTS 30 &I
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAEIE
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet BRI EREENEAFELZNOT :

incurred is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
TFET FET
Property, plant and equipment M - BERERE 23 18
(b) Operating lease commitments — as a lessee (b) REHEEHRE - EFHEREAA
The Group leases staff dormitory, offices, AREFERETOBE Y SLHASH
warehouses, and car parking spaces under XEEETES WAT AER
non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The BB AEMNT—S=F X«
lea§e 'terms are between one to three years, and the AT E 2 B H R AR I T
majority of lease agreements are renewable at the B o
end of the lease period at market rate.
The Group also leases various warehouses ARG B IR IR R U 2 A A
and factory under cancellable operating lease ZHEZERERTIH - AEE
agreements. The Group is required to give a RIS RERAR L A ARA -
six-month notice for the termination of these
agreements.
The total future minimum lease payments under HEEMEMBBEIAIRE &2
non-cancellable operating lease for the rented HERKENREHEENRBEL
premises are payable as follows: T
2017 2016
—E—tE —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET TETT
Within one year —F R 1,421 789
In the second to third years, inclusive RE_EF=F (BEMF
BIEEN) 1,135 586
2,556 1,375
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

mERSRBRHTEE
B GBLATE N SR EE A 2 R YR

31 NOTE TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 31

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash
generated from operations:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEITL FET
Cash flows from operating activities RETHAERERE
Profit before income tax B PT1S B Bl ) 87,148 97,355
Adjustments for: HTINEIERE
Bank interest HRITH A (98) (30)
Amortisation o 12 12
Depreciation e 9,623 12,497
Equity-settled share based R EE ARG B ET
payment expense N3 40 -
Finance costs & R 9,255 9,519
Gain on derivative financial instruments T4 & T Az (144) (1162)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BEREE
plant and equipment &ie (a) 14 (3)
Provision for impairment GTERERERE
loss on inventories 623 1,501
Obsolete inventories written off PR &2 17 S 5 1,541 110
Fair value gain on financial assets RAFEFAEREN SR
at fair value through profit or loss EENQNFERE (116) (112)
Operating profit before working EBEEHANLE R
capital changes 107,898 119,687
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE 3gm),md (56,282) 19,648
Increase in trade and other receivables 5 N H b fE U FRIE N (24,889) (17,012)
Increase in prepayment and deposits FERT I MRS 1N (1,307) (2,940)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B 5 N E M FRIE
other payables #hn, G ) 63,697 (81,528)
Net cash generated from operations REFTSEESFE 89,117 87,855
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31

NOTE TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 31

(continued)

TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTEEERRAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

RERSREBRMEE (&)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing METHEE2EBEYHEK:
activities:
Finance Insurance
Balance with lease Profit tax premium
shareholders ~ Term loans payables loans loan
MERE
RREH EHER ENRE  RSHRER REER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET TET
At 1 January 2016 RZE—"E—H—H (11,688) 13,390 4,261 2,831 713
Cash flows Hene 11,776 (4,136) (789) 6,443 (269)
At 31 December 2016 RIZE—RF
+ZA=1+-AH 88 9,254 3,472 9,274 444
Cash flows HEnE (88) (6,215) (1,623) 5,513 (276)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F
+-A=+-H = 3,039 1,849 14,787 168
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEEERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BEBARS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries ARAEEMBARZHANRHENEE

have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed AR B RS SH T WA R AN A KRR o BRA

in this note. Save for those disclosed elsewhere in these e MBREEMES KRENATIN - A

consolidated financial statements, details of transactions SERHEMBAR D 2RO ZFRREN

between the Group and other related parties are disclosed T

below:

(a) The Directors of the Company are of the view that (@) ARBEZRR UTEH /1A
the following parties/companies were related RRBEZFT—LFRZF—AF
parties that had transaction or balances with the tTZA=T - HLEFEEAEEZ
Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 [BIA X 5 s A aR A B 7 -
and 2016:

Name of related parties

Relationship with the Group

MBEHE A8 BEAREEAEAF
Mr. Kwan Tak Sum, Stanley A controlling shareholder and executive director of the Company
BEREE RAFERIRR LATES

Mr. Lai Yiu Wah
BB

Mr. Tai Leung Lam
BRMELE

Mr. Joseph Mac Carthy
Joseph Mac Carthy%t 4

Mr. Kwan Chan Kwong

Grand Energy Investment
Limited

Grand Energy Investment
Limited

Multi-Trend Investment Limited
(“Multi-Trend”)

KEREERAR ([ES])

PSI Europe Limited (“PSI”)

PSI Europe Limited ([PSI])

Ms. Wai Yuet Wah (“Ms. Wai”)
Wai Yuet Wahz £ ([WaiZz £ ])

Annual Report 2017 %

A controlling shareholder and executive director of the Company

RRREEBRBRRMATES

A controlling shareholder and executive director of the Company

RRREEBRBRRMATES

A controlling shareholder and executive director of the Company

RRREEBRBRRMATES

A co-founder and the then shareholder of the Group

REE KR BIHA K E R IRR

Shareholder of the Company controlled by Mr. Joseph Mac Carthy,
a controlling shareholder of the Company

RARIRE - AR AMIZERREJoseph Mac Carthy 7t 412

Controlled by Mr. Kwan Tak Sum, Stanley, Mr. Tai Leung Lam, Mr.
Kwan Chan Kwong and Grand Energy Investment Limited
MEEARLEE B RMITE B KL E KGrand Energy

Investment Limited$% &l

Controlled by Mr. Joseph Mac Carthy, a controlling shareholder of
the Company, up to 15 December 2015
BEEZZT—AF+ZA+HEBHBAARTAZERRKFRJoseph Mac
CarthyJc A 15 )

Spouse of Mr. Kwan Tak Sum, Stanley
B S A BB A



TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRSTEERRAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group had the following transactions with related
parties that are not members of the Group, which
in the opinion of the directors, were conducted at

32 BEHBARS (&)

(b) RBE-—ZT—+&F+-A=+—8
IFEE - AEBREH S (BIEAE
EHRERF) BITUTRS  mE
ERARERS R ATEERTE

arm’s length and on normal commercial terms: R IRTGETT
2017 2016
—E—+tF A
HK$000 HK$000
TFET FET
Rental expense to Multi-Trend EREeEmAERY - 40
Commission expense to PS| FERTPSIF AR - 10
Rental expense to Ms. Wai EfWaiz THHEER - 41

Year end balances with related parties
As at 31 December 2017

(c) BAMAERER
R-TB—tF+-_A=1t—H

Outstanding

amount  Outstanding Maximum
atthe amount  outstanding
beginning at the end during
of the year of the year the year
LIRS FERE FARS
FEEEE AEEE  KEHZE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$:000
FET TET TET

Amounts due from then shareholders  JEE B IR R FIE

— Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley -BEREE
— Mr.Tai Leung Lam - HRMEE
= Mr. Lai Yiu Wah - REERE
— Grand Energy — Grand Energy
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEEERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Year end balances with related parties (continued)

As at 31 December 2016

32

BBIXS (&)
(c) BT ERES (4)

R-ZE—

Outstanding

AFT=A=+—A

amount  Outstanding Maximum
at the amount  outstanding
beginning at the end during
of the year of the year the year
FOX FRX FRBEX
EEEH EREH EREH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Amounts due from then shareholders ~ EMEEREZIE

— Mr. Kwan Tak Sum Stanley -BEREE 6,003 - 9,750
— Mr.Tai Leung Lam - HRWEE 6,003 - 9,750
— Mr. Lai Yiu Wah - REERL 2 - 8,313
— Grand Energy — Grand Energy 2 - 8,313
12,010 - 36,126
2017 2016
—F—tF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET

Amount due to then shareholder ERERRRE
— Grand Energy — Grand Energy = 88
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Amounts due from/to a related party and then
shareholder of the Group are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Members of key management during the year
comprised the Directors only whose remuneration
is set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Guarantees by Directors

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements, there are no other guarantees
by Directors as at 31 December 2017.

32 BHMARS (&)

(d)

(e)

(f)

FEUZ " FEAS BR B 75 e & B PR R A 3R
ARAEER RENRREREE -
FIBBHRRIFESNE -

RAFETEEREXNEERARF
MBI NEFRE M B RERMEICE
EFTARRK

EERER

B E P RAR A B TS SRR T 522040 -
R-ET—+E+-A=+—BAE
B EE T EER -
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf I SR i ot

RRRMBRRRREEED

2017 2016
—EB—tF —T-REF
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
it FET FET
Assets BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries R B RRIMIEE 16 145,182 145172
145,182 145172
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b e WA 20,059 4,000
Prepayments and deposits ERFERES 325 3,299
Amount due from a subsidiary FEW —FRW B A RIIA 5,100 -
Bank and cash balances IRIT RN EH 140,912 423
____________________________________________________________________________________ 166,396 = 7722
Current liabilities REBASE
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk EH b T IR 6,615 2,298
Amount due to a subsidiary e —REW B AR ZIAE 10 5,146
Current tax liabilities BNEAT S AR 2,745 -
9,370 7,444
Net current assets REBEEFE 157,026 278
Net assets BEERE 302,208 145,450
Equity R
Share capital & 24 281,507 145172
Reserves i (a) 20,701 278
Total equity s 302,208 145,450

The statement of financial position of the Company were
approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2018 and

were signed on its behalf

Lai Yiu Wah
Ry

Director

EF
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33 XA TMBMRARRFZEEESH

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(a)

Reserve movement of the Company

(%)

() FATRBEE

Share Retained
options reserve profits Total
BRERE REER @t
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 FHET FHET FET
At 15 April 2016 RZE—R"FMA+THA
(date of incorporation) (Galiizaask:) - - -
Profit for the period iyl - 23,778 23,778
Dividend paid ERRE 13 - (23,500 (23,500)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE
+=A=1+-H - 278 278
Profit for the year FRET - 50,383 50,383
Equity-settled share-based  ABZEE AR &
transaction AMAFHRSH 25 40 - 40
Dividend paid BARE 13 - (30,000) (30,000)
At 31 December 2017 RZB—+4
+-A=1+—H 40 20,661 20,701
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTRERRAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R & Bf 4 3R i &t

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34 €WMIA—RERHE D
As at 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+-_A=+—H

Assets at fair
value through
Loansand the profit or

receivables loss Total
BEREk BROFEFA
FEWHE BRERNEE st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET
Financial asset at fair value BATEFAERRENEREE
through the profit or loss - 2,651 2,651
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E YR IE 139,345 - 139,345
Deposits bl 3,308 - 3,308
Restricted bank deposits IR HIRITER 8,084 - 8,084
Bank and cash balances RekReEn 161,626 - 161,626
Total st 312,363 2,651 315,014
Financial
Financial liabilities at
liabilities at amortised
fair value cost Total
BAVEFEZ REBHEHATE
cRaE Zemas met
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Trade and other payables 85 R EMENTIE
(excluding sale deposits (BEBSHERT 2RI
received) - 151,954 151,954
Borrowings a3 - 17,994 17,994
Finance lease payables BMEMERMHRE - 1,849 1,849
Total st - 171,797 171,797
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED
HEIXRESTEEERRAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B # SR MiaE

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34 @I HE —&ZERIED (&)

35

(continued)
As at 31 December 2016

R=T-—A~E+=A=+—A

Assets at fair
value through

Loans and the profit
receivables or loss Total
BATLERA
EXREYRFRE BRENEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FET
Financial asset at fair BATENAERRENSREE
value through the profit
or loss - 2,535 2,535
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EH MW 114,397 - 114,397
Deposits ®we 2,659 - 2,659
Restricted bank deposits X HIRITER 10,079 - 10,079
Bank and cash balances Re kR EH 6,569 - 6,569
Total a5t 133,704 2,535 136,239
Financial Financial
liabilitiesat  liabilities at
fair value amortised cost Total
BAVENEZ REHEMATE
cRAEE ZERAE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FAET FHET
Trade and other payables 85 R E MR FIE
(excluding sale deposits (BUEHERT2BRIN)
received) - 91,603 91,603
Borrowings LN - 18,972 18,972
Finance lease payables BEHERMNRIE - 3,472 3,472
Derivative financial THESRITA
instruments 721 - 721
Total Bt 721 114,047 114,768

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

35 HAREE

KoB—tE+=A=+—0  A%EYL

BEMEARAAE

S

—=
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TRIO INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS GROUP LIMITED

HETXEFEEERAT

FOUR YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY P B #& 1 =

For the year ended 31 December

BEtT-A=T-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014
—E—tF ZE-RE ZE-HF ZFT—@HEF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Results E5
Revenue W %5 788,042 744,899 657,614 517,479
Profit before income tax B PT{S B Bl 87,148 97,355 42,513 28,507
Income tax expense FriS Rl (17,140) (22,098) (12,756) (6,623)
Profit for the year F R 70,008 75,257 29,757 21,878
Attributable to: JE1s
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIEZ SN 70,008 75,257 29,757 21,878
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014
—E—+tFE ZB-XE —ZEBE-RF —E-—NOF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities HERAE
Total assets BERE 524,736 294,224 308,895 278,203
Total liabilities EREFGES (192,172)  (139,469)  (183,968)  (170,324)
Net assets BEFE 332,564 154,755 124,927 107,879
Equity attributable to owners RARER ABIE R
of the Company 332,564 154,755 124,927 107,879
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Trio Industrial Electronics Group Limited

BETRETFRERRLF

Block J, 5/F,, Phase I, Kaiser Estate, 51 Man Yue Street, Hung Hom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

BEENEAMRME 51 Rl LEP L 268U E

www.trio-ieg.com
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